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PART I.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands, except share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                                SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
                                                                                     (UNAUDITED)      DECEMBER 31, 
2001
                                                                                -------------------   ------------
-----
<S>                                                                             <C>                   <C>
ASSETS
CBO collateral, net                                                                  $ 1,088,742            $   
522,258
Operating real estate, net                                                               111,387                
524,834
Real estate held for sale                                                                  2,052                   
--
Marketable securities, available for sale                                                  7,184                 
14,467
Loans and mortgage pools receivable, net                                                    --                   
10,675
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries                                                  --                   
73,208
Cash and cash equivalents                                                                  7,119                 
31,360
Restricted cash                                                                           13,198                 
34,508
Due from (to) affiliates                                                                  (1,839)                
11,334
Deferred costs, net                                                                        7,925                 
17,988
Receivables and other assets                                                              15,248                 
21,487
                                                                                     -----------            ------
-----
                                                                                     $ 1,251,016            $ 
1,262,119
                                                                                     ===========            
===========
LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTEREST , REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
CBO bonds payable                                                                    $   867,770            $   



445,514
Other bonds payable                                                                       37,078                
319,303
Notes payable                                                                             50,618                
111,116
Repurchase agreements                                                                      1,457                  
1,457
Credit facility                                                                             --                   
20,000
Derivative liabilities                                                                    54,454                 
11,732
Dividends payable                                                                          6,595                  
8,882
Accrued expenses and other liabilities                                                     7,137                 
10,633
                                                                                     -----------            ------
-----
                                                                                       1,025,109                
928,637
                                                                                     -----------            ------
-----
MINORITY INTEREST                                                                           --                    
2,527
Redeemable preferred stock, $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
1,020,517 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2001                                --                   
20,410
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized,
16,488,517 shares issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2002 and December 31, 2001                                                     165                    
165
Additional paid-in capital                                                               210,978                
309,356
Dividends in excess of earnings                                                          (13,548)                
(7,767)
Accumulated other comprehensive income                                                    28,312                  
8,791
                                                                                     -----------            ------
-----
                                                                                         225,907                
310,545
                                                                                     -----------            ------
-----
                                                                                     $ 1,251,016            $ 
1,262,119
                                                                                     ===========            
===========
</TABLE>

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Unaudited) (dollars in thousands, except
share data)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                       THREE MONTHS    THREE MONTHS    NINE MONTHS     NINE MONTHS
                                                      ENDED 9/30/02    ENDED 9/30/01   ENDED 9/30/02   ENDED 9/30/01
                                                      -------------    -------------   -------------   -----------
--
REVENUES:
<S>                                                   <C>            <C>             <C>             <C>
Interest and dividend income                          $    20,197     $    11,740     $    51,253    $     36,848
Rental and escalation income                                5,178           4,880          15,196          15,503
Gain on settlement of investments                           2,604              30           7,605           7,451
Management fee from affiliate                                --             2,235           4,470           6,705
Incentive income from affiliate                              --            28,846          (1,218)         28,846
Other income                                                    5              23              17              42
                                                       ----------      ----------      ----------      ----------
                                                           27,984          47,754          77,323          95,395
                                                       ----------      ----------      ----------      ----------

EXPENSES:
Interest expense                                           13,483           8,546          34,992          27,060
Property operating expense                                  2,190           1,922           6,554           6,670
Loan servicing expense                                        126              65             327             181
General and administrative expense                            670             467           2,248           1,080
Management fees to affiliate                                  917           3,775           8,085          10,996
Preferred incentive return to affiliate                       614          16,075           1,441          16,075
Depreciation and amortization                                 705             919           2,520           2,655
                                                       ----------      ----------      ----------      ----------



                                                           18,705          31,769          56,167          64,717
                                                       ----------      ----------      ----------      ----------
Income before equity in earnings of
unconsolidated subsidiaries                                 9,279          15,985          21,156          30,678
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
subsidiaries                                                 --               760             362           1,885
                                                       ----------      ----------      ----------      ----------
Income from continuing operations                           9,279          16,745          21,518          32,563
Income (loss) from discontinued operations                 (1,775)          1,451             245           5,870
                                                       ----------      ----------      ----------      ----------

NET INCOME                                                  7,504          18,196          21,763          38,433
Preferred dividends and related accretion                    --              (638)         (1,162)         (1,902)
                                                       ----------      ----------      ----------      ----------
INCOME AVAILABLE FOR COMMON STOCKHOLDERS              $     7,504     $    17,558     $    20,601    $     36,531
                                                       ==========      ==========      ==========      ==========
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE, BASIC AND DILUTED        $      0.46     $      1.06     $      1.25    $       2.21
                                                       ==========      ==========      ==========      ==========
Income from continuing operations per common
share, after preferred dividends and related
accretion, basic and diluted                          $      0.56     $      0.98     $      1.23    $       1.86
                                                       ==========      ==========      ==========      ==========
Income (loss) from discontinued operations per
common share, basic and diluted                       $     (0.10)    $      0.08     $      0.02    $       0.35
                                                       ==========      ==========      ==========      ==========
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING, BASIC AND DILUTED                         16,488,517      16,494,203      16,488,517      16,494,120
                                                       ==========      ==========      ==========      ==========
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE                   $      0.40     $      0.50     $   1.60        $      1.50
                                                       ==========      ==========      ==========      ==========
</TABLE>

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK
(Unaudited) FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(dollars in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

                                                                           REDEEMABLE PREFERRED
                                                                                  STOCK               COMMON STOCK
                                                                        ------------------------------------------
---
                                                                        SHARES          AMOUNT           SHARES       
AMOUNT
                                                                        ---------       --------       -----------   
--------
<S>                                                                     <C>             <C>             <C>           
<C>
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - DECEMBER 31, 2001                                1,020,517       $ 20,410        16,488,517       
$165
Dividends declared by predecessor prior to commencement
  of our operations                                                            --             --                --         
--
Distribution to predecessor upon commencement of our operations                --             --                --         
--
Dividends declared to predecessor after commencement of our
  operations, but prior to our initial public offering                         --             --                --         
--
Redemption of redeemable preferred stock                               (1,020,517)       (20,410)               --         
--
Comprehensive income:
  Net income                                                                   --             --                --         
--
  Unrealized gain on securities                                                --             --                --         
--
  Realized (gain) on securities:  reclassification adjustment                  --             --                --         
--
  Foreign currency translation                                                 --             --                --         
--
  Foreign currency translation:  reclassification adjustment                   --             --                --         
--
  Unrealized (loss) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges              --             --                --         
--
  Realized (gain) on derivatives designated as cash flow
     hedges:  reclassification adjustment                                      --             --                --         
--
  Total comprehensive income
                                                                        ---------       --------        ----------       
----



Stockholders' equity - September 30, 2002                                      --       $     --        16,488,517       
$165
                                                                        =========       ========        ==========       
====
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - DECEMBER 31, 2000                                1,020,517       $ 20,167        16,499,765       
$165
Dividends declared                                                             --             --                --         
--
Redemption of common stock                                                     --             --           (11,248)        
--
Accretion of redeemable preferred stock                                        --            243                --         
--
Transition adjustment - deferred hedge gains and losses                        --             --                --         
--
Comprehensive income:
  Net income                                                                   --             --                --         
--
  Unrealized gain on securities                                                --             --                --         
--
  Unrealized loss on securities: reclassification adjustment                   --             --                --         
--
  Foreign currency translation                                                 --             --                --         
--
  Unrealized (loss) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges              --             --                --         
--
  Total comprehensive income
                                                                        ---------       --------        ----------       
----
Stockholders' equity - September 30, 2001                               1,020,517       $ 20,410        16,488,517       
$165
                                                                        =========       ========        ==========       
====
</TABLE>

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                                               ACCUM.
                                                                 ADDITIONAL      DIVIDENDS     OTHER          TOTAL 
STOCK-
                                                                 PD. IN        IN EXCESS OF       COMP.        
HOLDERS'
                                                                 CAPITAL         EARNINGS      INCOME          
EQUITY
                                                                ---------       --------      --------       -----
-----
<S>                                                             <C>            <C>            <C>            <C>
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - DECEMBER 31, 2001                        $ 309,356       $ (7,767)     $  8,791       $  
310,545
Dividends declared by predecessor prior to commencement
  of our operations                                                    --        (20,949)           --          
(20,949)
Distribution to predecessor upon commencement of our operations   (98,378)            --       (11,075)        
(109,453)
Dividends declared to predecessor after commencement of our
  operations, but prior to our initial public offering                 --         (6,595)           --           
(6,595)
Redemption of redeemable preferred stock                               --             --            --               
--
Comprehensive income:
  Net income                                                           --         21,763            --             
21,763
  Unrealized gain on securities                                        --             --        80,799           
80,799
  Realized (gain) on securities:  reclassification adjustment          --             --        (2,550)          
(2,550)
  Foreign currency translation                                         --             --         3,364            
3,364
  Foreign currency translation:  reclassification adjustment           --             --          (258)            
(258)
  Unrealized (loss) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges      --             --       (50,629)         
(50,629)
  Realized (gain) on derivatives designated as cash flow
     hedges:  reclassification adjustment                              --             --          (130)            
(130)
                                                                                                             -----
-----
  Total comprehensive income                                                                                     
52,359
                                                                ---------       --------      --------       -----
-----
Stockholders' equity - September 30, 2002                       $ 210,978       $(13,548)     $ 28,312        $ 
225,907
                                                                =========       ========      ========       
==========
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - DECEMBER 31, 2000                        $ 309,551       $ (7,666)     $ (1,395)       $ 



300,655
Dividends declared                                                     --        (26,403)           --          
(26,403)
Redemption of common stock                                           (195)            --            --             
(195)
Accretion of redeemable preferred stock                                --           (243)           --             
(243)
Transition adjustment - deferred hedge gains and losses                --             --         4,064            
4,064
Comprehensive income:
  Net income                                                           --         38,433            --           
38,433
  Unrealized gain on securities                                        --             --        36,492           
36,492
  Unrealized loss on securities: reclassification adjustment           --             --           954              
954
  Foreign currency translation                                         --             --        (2,516)          
(2,516)
  Unrealized (loss) on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges      --             --       (15,578)         
(15,578)
  Total comprehensive income                                                                                 ------
----
                                                                                                                 
57,785
                                                                ---------       --------      --------       -----
-----
Stockholders' equity - September 30, 2001                       $ 309,356       $  4,121      $ 22,021       $  
335,663
                                                                =========       ========      ========       
==========
</TABLE>

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                             NINE MONTHS ENDED       NINE MONTHS 
ENDED
                                                                             SEPTEMBER 30, 2002      SEPTEMBER 30, 
2001
                                                                             ------------------      -------------
-----
<S>                                                                          <C>                     <C>
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income                                                                        $  21,763              $ 38,433
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities
(inclusive of amounts related to discontinued operations):
Depreciation and amortization                                                         7,882                10,383
Accretion of discount and other amortization                                         (3,135)               (2,515)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries                                      (362)               (1,885)
Accrued incentive income from affiliate                                               1,218               (14,423)
Minority interest                                                                        14                   (89)
Deferred rent                                                                        (1,149)               (1,523)
Gain on settlement of investments                                                    (5,935)               (9,388)
Change in:
Restricted cash                                                                      (5,880)                 (956)
Receivables and other assets                                                         (3,956)                1,571
Accrued expenses and other liabilities                                                5,876                 2,452
Due from affiliates                                                                  (1,002)               (1,205)
                                                                                   --------                ------
Net cash provided by operating activities:                                           15,334                20,855
                                                                                   --------                ------
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase and improvement of operating real estate                                    (2,254)               (3,826)
Proceeds from sale of operating real estate                                          42,826                    --
Repayments of loan principal                                                         12,055                29,730
Proceeds from settlement of loans and foreclosed real estate                            364                28,652
Contributions to unconsolidated subsidiaries                                        (19,991)              (22,588)
Distributions from unconsolidated subsidiaries                                        8,265                19,787
Purchase of CBO collateral                                                         (646,420)              (47,509)
Proceeds from sale of CBO collateral                                                225,923                67,531
Payment of deferred transaction costs                                                (1,432)               (4,174)
Purchase of marketable securities                                                    (6,941)                   --
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities                                              --                10,052
                                                                                   --------                ------
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities:                               (387,605)               77,655
                                                                                   --------                ------
</TABLE>



See notes to consolidated financial statements.             Continuing on Page 5
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)
(dollars in thousands)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                             NINE MONTHS ENDED        NINE MONTHS 
ENDED
                                                                             SEPTEMBER 30, 2002       SEPTEMBER 30, 
2001
                                                                             ------------------       ------------
------
<S>                                                                          <C>                      <C>
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under repurchase agreements                                                   --                10,000
Repayments of repurchase agreements                                                      --               (15,840)
Repayments of notes payable                                                         (65,840)                 (771)
Issuance of CBO bonds payable                                                       438,787                    --
Repayments of CBO bonds payable                                                     (17,742)                   --
Issuance of other bonds payable                                                      37,169                    --
Repayments of other bonds payable                                                    (8,151)              (35,156)
Draws under credit facility                                                          20,000                11,000
Repayments of credit facility                                                        (1,750)              (34,000)
Minority interest distributions                                                          --                (5,078)
Redemption of common stock                                                               --                  (195)
Redemption of redeemable preferred stock                                            (20,410)                   --
Dividends paid                                                                      (19,938)              (26,552)
Distribution of cash to predecessor                                                 (12,423)                   --
Payment of deferred financing costs                                                  (1,672)                 (366)
                                                                                    -------               -------
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities                                 348,030               (96,958)
                                                                                    -------               -------
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS                                (24,241)                1,552
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD                                       31,360                10,575
                                                                                    -------               -------
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD                                          $   7,119              $ 12,127
                                                                                  =========              ========

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for interest expense                                  $  42,608              $ 44,138
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Common stock dividends declared but not paid                                      $   6,595              $     --
Contribution of assets to unconsolidated subsidiary                               $  (1,454)             $     --
Deposit used in acquisition of CBO collateral                                     $  23,631              $     --
Distribution of non-cash assets and liabilities to predecessor                    $(109,453)             $     --
</TABLE>

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

                                       5
NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited) SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
(tables in thousands, except per share data)

1.       GENERAL

         Newcastle Investment Corp. and subsidiaries ("Newcastle") was formed in
         June 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Newcastle Investment Holdings
         Corp. ("Newcastle Holdings") for the purpose of separating the real
         estate securities and credit leased real estate businesses from
         Newcastle Holdings' other investments. In July 2002, Newcastle Holdings
         contributed to Newcastle certain assets and liabilities in exchange for
         16,488,517 shares of Newcastle's common stock. However, for accounting
         purposes this transaction is presented as a reverse spin-off. Under a
         reverse spin-off, Newcastle is treated as the continuing entity and the
         assets that were retained by Newcastle Holdings and not contributed to
         Newcastle are accounted for as if they were distributed at their
         historical book basis through a spin-off to Newcastle Holdings.
         Newcastle's operations commenced on July 12, 2002.

         Newcastle is a Maryland corporation that invests in real estate
         securities and other real estate-related assets. Newcastle conducts its
         business through two primary segments: (i) real estate securities and
         (ii) revenue producing real estate, primarily credit leased real
         estate.

         Newcastle is organized and conducts its operations to qualify as a REIT
         for federal income tax purposes. As such, Newcastle will generally not



         be subject to federal income tax on that portion of its income that is
         distributed to shareholders if it distributes at least 90% of its REIT
         taxable income to its shareholders by the due date of its federal
         income tax return and complies with various other requirements.

         In October 2002, Newcastle sold 7 million shares of its common stock in
         a public offering at a price to the public of $13.00 per share, for net
         proceeds of approximately $80 million after deducting the underwriters'
         discount and other offering expenses. A portion of the proceeds of this
         offering were used to purchase a portfolio of mortgage loans and to
         make additional investments. Subsequent to this offering, Newcastle has
         23,488,517 common shares outstanding.

         Newcastle Holdings is a Maryland corporation that invests in real
         estate-related assets on a global basis. Its primary businesses are (1)
         investing in marketable real estate-related securities, (2) investing
         in commercial properties leased to third parties, (3) investing in
         Fortress Investment Fund LLC ("Fund I") and (4) investing in
         distressed, sub-performing and performing residential and commercial
         mortgage loans, or portfolios thereof, and related properties acquired
         in foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure. At the date of the
         commencement of Newcastle's operations, Newcastle Holdings had
         16,488,517 common shares and no preferred shares issued and
         outstanding.

         Newcastle has entered into a management agreement (the "Management
         Agreement") with Fortress Investment Group LLC (the "Manager"), an
         affiliate, under which the Manager advises Newcastle on various aspects
         of its business and manages its day-to-day operations, subject to the
         supervision of Newcastle's board of directors. For its services, the
         Manager receives an annual management fee and a preferred incentive
         return, both as defined in the Management Agreement. The Manager also
         manages Newcastle Holdings and Fund I.

         The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Newcastle
         and its controlled subsidiaries, subsequent to the date of commencement
         of its operations, and also include the accounts of its predecessor,
         Newcastle Holdings, prior to such date.

         Newcastle Holdings' investments in real estate securities and a portion
         of its investments in revenue-producing real estate were transferred to
         Newcastle. The real estate (GSA portfolio) and real estate loans
         operations treated as being distributed to Newcastle Holdings have been
         accounted for as discontinued operations, because they constituted a
         component of an entity, while the other operations treated as being
         distributed to Newcastle Holdings, including the investment in Fund I,
         have not been accounted for as such, because they did not constitute a
         component of an entity as defined in SFAS No. 144 "Accounting for the
         Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

         The accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes of
         Newcastle have been prepared in accordance with accounting principals
         generally accepted in the United States for interim financial reporting
         and the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X.
         Accordingly, certain information and footnote disclosures normally
         included in financial statements prepared under accounting principals
         generally accepted in the United States have been condensed or omitted.
         In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for
         a fair presentation of Newcastle's financial position, results of
         operations and cash flows have been included and are of a normal and
         recurring nature. The operating results presented for interim periods
         are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
         any other interim period or for the entire year. These financial
         statements should be read in conjunction with Newcastle's registration
         statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-90578), which was declared
         effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 9, 2002.

2.       INFORMATION REGARDING BUSINESS SEGMENTS

         Newcastle conducts its business through two primary segments: real
         estate securities and revenue-producing real estate.

         Newcastle Holdings conducted its business in four primary segments:
         real estate securities, revenue-producing real estate, real estate
         loans, and its investment in Fund I.

         The real estate securities segment was retained by Newcastle. The
         revenue-producing real estate segment, which comprised three portfolios



         of properties, was split as follows: the Bell (Canadian) and LIV
         (Belgian) properties were retained by Newcastle while the GSA (U.S.)
         properties were distributed to Newcastle Holdings. The real estate
         loans and Fund I segments were distributed to Newcastle Holdings.
         Certain amounts have been reclassified from the Unallocated segment to
         the Fund I segment; such amounts did not effect net income or total
         assets in either segment.
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

         Summary financial data on Newcastle's segments is given below, together
         with a reconciliation to the same data for Newcastle as a whole
         (including its predecessor, as applicable, as described in Note 1) (in
         thousands):

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>                                            Real Estate
                                                         Debt                    Real Estate
                                                      Securities    Real Estate     Loans     Fund I       
Unallocated     Total
                                                      ----------    -----------   ---------   --------     -------
----  -----------
<S>                                                   <C>            <C>          <C>         <C>          <C>          
<C>
September 30, 2002 and the Nine Months then Ended
Gross revenues                                        $    58,728    $  15,138    $     --    $  3,287     $    170     
$    77,323
Operating expenses                                           (370)      (7,133)         --      (3,861)      (7,291)        
(18,655)
                                                      -----------    ---------    --------    --------     -------
-     -----------
Operating income (loss)                                    58,358        8,005          --        (574)      (7,121)         
58,668
Interest expense                                          (28,864)      (3,792)         --          --       (2,336)        
(34,992)
Depreciation and amortization                                  --       (2,090)         --        (329)        (101)         
(2,520)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries              --           --          --         303           59             
362
                                                      -----------    ---------    --------    --------     -------
-     -----------
Income (loss) from continuing operations                   29,494        2,123          --        (600)      (9,499)         
21,518
Income (loss) from discontinued operations                     --          744        (499)         --           --             
245
                                                      -----------    ---------    --------    --------     -------
-     -----------
Net Income (Loss)                                     $    29,494    $   2,867    $   (499)   $   (600)    $ (9,499)    
$    21,763
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Revenue derived from non-US sources:
Canada                                                $        --    $  10,198    $     --    $     --     $     --     
$    10,198
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Belgium                                               $        --    $   3,736    $     --    $     --     $     --     
$     3,736
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Italy                                                 $        --    $      --    $    180    $     --     $     --     
$       180
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Total assets                                          $ 1,117,126    $ 128,201    $     --    $     --     $  5,689     
$ 1,251,016
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Long-lived assets outside the US:
Canada                                                $        --    $  57,220    $     --    $     --     $     --     
$    57,220
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Belgium                                               $        --    $  70,981    $     --    $     --     $     --     
$    70,981
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
December 31, 2001
Total assets                                          $   560,155    $ 565,481    $ 12,920    $ 97,562     $ 26,001     
$ 1,262,119



                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Long-lived assets outside the US:
Canada                                                $        --    $  51,060    $     --    $     --     $     --     
$    51,060
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
Belgium                                               $        --    $  68,399    $     --    $     --     $     --     
$    68,399
                                                      ===========    =========    ========    ========     ========     
===========
</TABLE>
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                               Real Estate
                                                  Debt                      Real Estate
                                               Securities     Real Estate      Loans         Fund I       
Unallocated      Total
                                               ----------     -----------      -----         ------       --------
---      -----
<S>                                            <C>            <C>             <C>           <C>           <C>           
<C>
Three Months Ended September 30, 2002
Gross revenues                                  $ 22,870       $  5,109       $    --       $     --       $     5       
$ 27,984
Operating expenses                                  (137)        (2,287)           --             --        (2,093)        
(4,517)
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Operating income (loss)                           22,733          2,822            --             --        (2,088)        
23,467
Interest expense                                 (12,197)        (1,286)           --             --            --        
(13,483)
Depreciation and amortization                         --           (705)           --             --            --           
(705)
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Income (loss) from continuing operations          10,536            831            --             --        (2,088)         
9,279
Income (loss) from discontinued operations            --         (1,775)           --             --            --         
(1,775)
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Net Income (Loss)                               $ 10,536       $   (944)      $    --       $     --       $(2,088)      
$  7,504
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Revenue derived from non-US sources:
Canada                                          $     --       $  2,446       $    --       $     --       $    --       
$  2,446
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Belgium                                         $     --       $  1,101       $    --       $     --       $    --       
$  1,101
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2001
Gross revenues                                  $ 42,081       $ 15,661       $    --       $ 36,068       $ 1,585       
$ 95,395
Operating expenses                                  (181)        (7,152)           --        (21,128)       (6,541)       
(35,002)
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Operating income (loss)                           41,900          8,509            --         14,940        (4,956)        
60,393
Interest expense                                 (20,519)        (4,234)           --             --        (2,307)       
(27,060)
Depreciation and amortization                         --         (1,918)           --           (395)         (342)        
(2,655)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
subsidiaries                                           --             --            --          3,540        
(1,655)         1,885
                                                 --------       --------       -------       --------       ------
-       --------

Income (loss) from continuing operations          21,381          2,357            --         18,085        (9,260)        
32,563
Income from discontinued operations                   --          3,913         1,957             --            --          



5,870
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Net Income (Loss)                               $ 21,381       $  6,270       $ 1,957       $ 18,085       $(9,260)      
$ 38,433
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Revenue derived from non-US sources:
Canada                                          $     --       $ 12,034       $   124       $     --       $    --       
$ 12,158
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Belgium                                         $     --       $  5,448       $    --       $     --       $    --       
$  5,448
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Italy                                           $     --       $     --       $   653       $     --       $    --       
$    653
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Three Months Ended September 30, 2001
Gross revenues                                  $ 11,577       $  4,918       $    --       $ 31,164       $    95       
$ 47,754
Operating expenses                                   (65)        (2,033)           --        (16,658)       (3,548)       
(22,304)
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Operating income (loss)                           11,512          2,885            --         14,506        (3,453)        
25,450
Interest expense                                  (6,571)        (1,394)           --             --          (581)        
(8,546)
Depreciation and amortization                         --           (640)           --           (164)         (115)          
(919)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
subsidiaries                                          --             --            --            630           130            
760
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Income (loss) from continuing operations           4,941            851            --         14,972        (4,019)        
16,745
Income from discontinued operations                   --          1,423            28             --            --          
1,451
                                                --------       --------       -------       --------       -------       
--------
Net Income (Loss)                               $  4,941       $  2,274       $    28       $ 14,972       $(4,019)      
$ 18,196
Revenue derived from non-US sources:
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Canada                                          $     --       $  3,660       $    45       $     --       $    --       
$  3,705
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Belgium                                         $     --       $  1,812       $    --       $     --       $    --       
$  1,812
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
Italy                                           $     --       $     --       $   (64)      $     --       $    --       
$    (64)
                                                ========       ========       =======       ========       =======       
========
</TABLE>
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The following table summarizes the activity affecting the equity held by
Newcastle in unconsolidated subsidiaries.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                      Fortress Investment
                                                     Austin Holdings         Fund LLC              Total
                                                     ---------------         --------            --------
<S>                                                  <C>                    <C>                  <C>
Balance 12/31/01                                        $ 4,977             $ 68,231             $ 73,208
Contributions to unconsolidated subsidiaries              3,237               16,754               19,991
Contribution of assets to unconsolidated
subsidiaries                                              1,454                   --                1,454
Distributions from unconsolidated
subsidiaries                                               (522)              (7,743)              (8,265)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated



subsidiaries                                                 59                  303                  362
Equity in OCI of unconsolidated subsidiaries                 --                  (15)                 (15)
Other                                                        --                 (329)                (329)
Distribution to Newcastle Holdings                       (9,205)             (77,201)             (86,406)
                                                         ------              -------              -------
Balance 9/30/02                                         $    --             $     --             $     --
                                                        =======             =======              ========
</TABLE>

Summarized financial information related to Newcastle's unconsolidated
subsidiaries was as follows (in thousands).

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                  Austin Holdings         Fortress Investment Fund 
LLC (A)
                                                                  ------------------------------------------------
--------
                                                                  12/31/2001                                    
12/31/2001
                                                                  ----------                                    --
--------
<S>                                                              <C>                                      <C>
Assets                                                               $ 7,947                                      
$612,083
Liabilities                                                           (2,353)                                           
--
Minority interest                                                       (352)                                           
--
                                                                   ----------                                    -
---------
Equity                                                               $ 5,242                                      
$612,083
                                                                   ==========                                    
==========
Equity held by Newcastle (B)                                         $ 4,977                                      $ 
68,231
                                                                   ==========                                    
==========
</TABLE>

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                Period from                             Period from
                                              January 1, 2002                         January 1, 2002
                                                  through        Nine months ended        through         Nine 
months ended
                                              July 12, 2002          9/30/01            July 12, 2002         
9/30/01
                                              -------------      ------------------   ---------------     --------
---------
<S>                                           <C>                <C>                   <C>                <C>
Revenues                                           $ 585             $  (506)              $ 9,740               $ 
139,927
Expenses                                            (477)             (1,234)               (4,470)                 
(7,705)
Minority interest                                    (45)                 (3)                   --                      
--
                                                  -------           ---------             ---------             --
---------
Net income (loss)                                  $  63             $(1,743)              $ 5,270               $ 
132,222
                                                  =======           =========             =========             
===========
Newcastle's equity in net income (loss)            $  59             $(1,655)              $   303               $   
3,540
                                                  =======           =========             =========             
===========
</TABLE>

(A) Fortress Investment Fund LLC's summary financial information is presented on
a fair value basis, consistent with its internal basis of accounting, while
Newcastle's equity is presented on a GAAP basis. Newcastle's equity in net
income excludes its incentive income.

(B) Newcastle also had a $3.2 million receivable from Austin at December 31,
2001.
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3.       2002 ACTIVITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF OUR OPERATIONS

         Consistent with the treatment of Newcastle's formation as a reverse
         spin-off (Note 1), the transactions described below were completed by
         Newcastle's predecessor, Newcastle Holdings, but are described as being
         completed by Newcastle.

         In June 2002, Newcastle declared a common dividend of $0.60 per common
         share which was paid in July 2002. In March 2002, Newcastle declared a
         common dividend of $0.60 per common share which was paid in April 2002.

         In April 2002, Newcastle completed the CBO II Transaction whereby a
         consolidated subsidiary issued $444.0 million of investment grade
         senior securities and $56.0 million of non-investment grade
         subordinated securities (the "CBO II Securities") in a private
         placement. The senior securities were issued for net proceeds of $438.8
         million after issue costs. The subordinated securities have been
         retained by Newcastle. The CBO II Securities are primarily
         collateralized by a portfolio of CMBS, unsecured REIT debt,
         asset-backed securities, and a limited amount of other securities,
         which was acquired with the proceeds from the CBO II Securities and
         with the deposit Newcastle had made on such securities. At September
         30, 2002, the $439.0 million carrying amount of senior securities,
         which bore interest at a weighted average effective rate, including
         discount and cost amortization, of approximately 3.48%, had an expected
         weighted average life of approximately 7.61 years. One class of the
         senior securities bears a floating interest rate. Newcastle obtained an
         interest rate swap and cap in order to hedge its exposure to the
         changes in market interest rates with respect to this security, at an
         initial cost of $1.2 million.

         In April 2002, Newcastle repurchased the $17.5 million Class E Note
         (the "Class E Note") which was issued from its CBO I securitization.
         The repurchase of the Class E Note represents a repayment of debt and
         was recorded as a reduction of CBO Bonds Payable. The Class E Note is
         included in the CBO II Collateral which was purchased in connection
         with the CBO II Transaction. The Class E Note is eliminated in
         consolidation. In April 2002, Newcastle refinanced the Bell Canada
         Properties through a securitization transaction. The issued securities
         are secured by the Bell Canada Properties and lease payments
         thereunder. At September 30, 2002, the $37.1 million carrying amount of
         outstanding securities, which bore interest at a weighted average
         effective rate, including cost amortization, of approximately 6.72%,
         had an expected weighted average life of approximately 2.7 years.
         Newcastle has retained one class of the issued securities. The proceeds
         from the issued securities were used, in part, to repay the Bell Canada
         Mortgage.

         In May 2002, Newcastle sold one of its GSA Properties with a net basis
         of $33.0 million for a net purchase price of approximately $34.1
         million, at a gain of $1.1 million.

         In May 2002, it sold a commercial property located in Brussels, Belgium
         for gross proceeds of approximately $8.9 million, at a loss of
         approximately $1.1 million. Pursuant to Statement of Financial
         Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144 "Accounting for the Impairment or
         Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," Newcastle has retroactively recorded
         the operations of such properties in Income from Discontinued
         Operations for all periods presented.

         In June 2002, Newcastle redeemed the remaining $20.4 million of its
         outstanding redeemable preferred stock.

         Newcastle Holdings created $62.3 million face of mezzanine bonds issued
         by its subsidiaries which indirectly own the GSA Properties. The bonds
         are not entitled to any scheduled interest or amortization prior to
         their maturity date in May 2011. None of the bonds are secured by
         mortgages on the GSA Properties; the bonds are secured by equity
         interests in the direct or indirect owners of the GSA Properties. These
         bonds, which were included in the CBO Collateral and CBO II Collateral,
         were retained by Newcastle. These bonds were sold by Newcastle at a
         loss of $0.3 million in September 2002.
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4.       RECENT ACTIVITIES

         The following is a summary of Newcastle's real estate securities at
         September 30, 2002, all of which are classified as available for sale



         and are therefore marked to market through other comprehensive income
         pursuant to SFAS No. 115 "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
         and Equity Securities." Unrealized losses that are considered other
         than temporary are recognized currently in income. There were no such
         losses incurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2002.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                      Gross Unrealized
                                                      ----------------
                         Principal     Amortized
CBO I                     Balance      Cost Basis    Gains        Losses
- -----                     -------      ----------    -----        ------
<S>                     <C>            <C>          <C>         <C>
CMBS                    $  311,367     $268,799     $34,513     $(1,720)
Unsecured REIT debt        231,615      229,906      24,302          --
                           -------      -------      ------      ------
Subtotal - CBO I           542,982      498,705      58,815      (1,720)
                           -------      -------      ------      ------
CBO II
CMBS                       268,943      255,601      21,123        (245)
Unsecured REIT debt         93,710       93,907       9,226          --
Other                       78,030       74,772       3,253        (133)
                           -------      -------      ------      ------
Subtotal - CBO II          440,683      424,280      33,602        (378)
                           -------      -------      ------        ----
Non-CBO securities          19,326        7,184          --          --
                           -------      -------      ------      ------
Total/Average*          $1,002,991     $930,169     $92,417     $(2,098)
                        ==========     ========     =======     =======
</TABLE>

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                 Weighted Average
                                     ------------------------------------------
                                                                       Term to
                                       Moody's                         Maturity
                       Carrying Value  Rating     Coupon     Yield     (Years)
                       --------------  ------     ------     -----     -------
CBO I
<S>                     <C>            <C>        <C>        <C>        <C>
CMBS                    $  301,592       Ba1      6.64%      9.67%      7.06
Unsecured REIT debt        254,208      Baa2      7.26%      7.64%      5.61
                           -------      ----      -----     -----       ----
Subtotal - CBO I           555,800       Ba1      6.90%      8.89%      6.44
                           -------      ----      -----     -----       ----
CBO II
CMBS                       276,479      Baa3      6.29%      6.92%      7.14
Unsecured REIT debt        103,133      Baa3      7.64%      7.54%      6.50
Other                       77,892        A3      7.60%      8.35%     10.11
                           -------      ----      -----     -----       ----
Subtotal - CBO II          457,504      Baa3      6.81%      7.31%      7.53
                           -------      ----      -----     -----       ----
Non-CBO securities           7,184       N/A      7.40%     18.94%      7.60
                           -------      ----      -----     -----       ----
Total/Average*          $1,020,488      Baa3      6.87%      8.25%      6.94
                        ==========      ====      ====       ====       ====
</TABLE>

         *Carrying value excludes restricted cash of $75.4 million included in
         CBO Collateral pending its reinvestment in securities. Average rating
         excludes non-CBO securities. The total carrying value of fixed rate
         securities is $941.1 million, and of variable rate securities is $79.4
         million, at September 30, 2002.

         In July 2002, Newcastle entered into an agreement with a major
         investment bank whereby such bank will purchase up to $450 million of
         commercial mortgage backed securities, unsecured REIT debt, real estate
         loans and asset backed securities (the "CBO III Collateral"), subject
         to Newcastle's right to purchase such securities from them. This
         agreement is treated as a non-hedge derivative for accounting purposes
         and is therefore marked-to-market through current income; no material
         mark has been booked through September 30, 2002. The CBO III Collateral
         is expected to be included in a securitization transaction in which
         Newcastle would acquire the equity interest (the "CBO III
         Transaction"). As of September 30, 2002, $123.7 million of the $450
         million had been accumulated. If the CBO III Transaction is not
         consummated as a result of Newcastle's failure to acquire the equity
         interest or otherwise as a result of Newcastle's gross negligence or
         willful misconduct, Newcastle would be required to either purchase the
         CBO III Collateral or pay the difference between the original purchase
         price of the CBO III Collateral and the price at which the CBO III
         Collateral is sold to a third-party (a "Collateral Loss"). If the CBO



         III Transaction fails to close for any other reason, Newcastle would be
         required to either purchase the CBO III Collateral or pay the lesser of
         $15 million and the Collateral Loss or, if Newcastle had paid a deposit
         on the CBO III Collateral in exchange for a portion of the interest
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         payments on such securities, the lesser of the Collateral Loss and any
         such deposit. Although Newcastle currently anticipates completing the
         CBO III Transaction during the first quarter of 2003, there is no
         assurance that the CBO III Transaction will be consummated. As of
         September 30, 2002, Newcastle estimates that the fair value of the
         securities purchased by such bank is in excess of the purchase price
         paid by such bank. In November 2002, Newcastle made deposits
         aggregating $24.9 million under such agreement (the "CBO III Deposit").

         In August 2002, Newcastle entered into a contract to sell a commercial
         property located in Canada for gross proceeds of approximately $1.4
         million, at a loss of approximately $1.5 million including the write
         off of accumulated other comprehensive income related to foreign
         currency translation. The sale is contracted to occur in April 2003.
         Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, Newcastle has reclassified the net carrying
         value of this property to Real Estate Held for Sale and has
         retroactively recorded the operations of such property in Income from
         Discontinued Operations for all periods presented.

         In September 2002, Newcastle declared a common dividend of $0.40 per
         common share, for the third quarter of 2002, which was paid to
         Newcastle Holdings in October 2002. In October 2002, Newcastle declared
         a common dividend of $0.06 per common share, for the period from
         October 1 to October 15, 2002, which was paid to Newcastle Holdings in
         October 2002.

         In October 2002, Newcastle sold 7 million shares of its common stock in
         a public offering at a price to the public of $13.00 per share, for net
         proceeds of approximately $80 million after deducting the underwriters'
         discount and other offering expenses. A portion of the proceeds of this
         offering were used to purchase a portfolio of mortgage loans, as
         described below, and to make additional investments, including the CBO
         III Deposit. Subsequent to this offering, Newcastle has 23,488,517
         common shares outstanding.

         In November 2002, Newcastle utilized $13.5 million of its offering
         proceeds to purchase a $260.2 million portfolio of mortgage loans
         subject to $246.7 million of financing. The mortgage loans bore
         interest at a net weighted average rate of approximately 3.44% on the
         date of purchase, and the financing bore interest at a weighted average
         rate of approximately LIBOR + 0.37% on such date.

         In November 2002, Newcastle refinanced its Belgian portfolio for
         proceeds of EUR 60 million or approximately $60.6 million. The
         refinancing bears interest at a rate of Euribor + 1.45% and matures in
         November 2006. The proceeds of the refinancing were primarily used to
         repay the existing financing on such portfolio. Newcastle has hedged
         its exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates with
         respect to this refinancing by obtaining an interest rate swap.

         At September 30, 2002 Due From (To) Affiliates is comprised of $1.8
         million due to Newcastle Holdings representing Newcastle's pro rata
         share of certain general and administrative expenses, management fees
         and incentive return.
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5. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

   The following table summarizes the notional amounts and fair (carrying)
   values of Newcastle's derivative financial instruments as of September 30,
   2002 (amounts in thousands).

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                                                        Longest



                                                           Notional Amount         Fair Value           Maturity
                                                           ---------------         ----------           -------

<S>                                                        <C>                     <C>                  <C>
      Interest rate caps treated as hedges, net (A)              $198,764              $5,720           October 2015

      Interest rate swaps, treated as hedges, net (B)            $451,736            ($51,685)            April 2011

      Non-hedge derivative obligations (B)                             (C)              ($511)             July 2038
</TABLE>

      (A) Included in Deferred Costs, Net.
      (B) Included in Derivative Liabilities.
      (C) Represents two essentially offsetting interest rate caps and two
      essentially offsetting interest rate swaps, each with notional amounts of
      $32.5 million, an interest rate cap with a notional amount of $17.5
      million, and an interest rate cap with a notional amount of approximately
      $58.7 million. Also includes the CBO III agreement which has a notional
      amount of $123.7 million at September 30, 2002.

6. SUMMARY PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

   The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income are presented as if
   the distribution to Newcastle Holdings and the commencement of Newcastle's
   operations had been consummated on January 1, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
   The historical results of operations of the assets and liabilities treated as
   being distributed to Newcastle Holdings for the period prior to the
   commencement of Newcastle's operations have been presented as discontinued
   operations for those operations that constitute a component of an entity. Of
   the assets treated as being distributed to Newcastle Holdings, the GSA
   portfolio and the mortgage loans qualify as a component of an entity. The
   remaining operations (the "Eliminated Operations") related to the other
   assets and the liabilities treated as being distributed to Newcastle Holdings
   which are not a component of an entity have been eliminated.

   The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income are presented for
   comparative purposes only, and are not necessarily indicative of what
   Newcastle's actual consolidated results of operations would have been for the
   periods presented, nor do they purport to represent the results of any future
   periods. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary to present
   fairly the unaudited pro forma financial information have been made.
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                   CONSOLIDATED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF INCOME
                  For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2002

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                                Distributed to
                                                                                   Newcastle
                                                                                   Holdings
                                                                                  ----------
                                                                                  Eliminated
                                                            Historical (A)        Operations           Pro Forma
                                                           --------------         ----------           ---------
REVENUES
<S>                                                        <C>                  <C>         <C>        <C>
Interest and dividend income                                 $ 51,253              $   (226)  (B)       $51,027
Rental and escalation income                                   15,196                    --              15,196
Gain (loss) on settlement of
investments                                                     7,605                    29   (B)         7,634
Management fee from affiliate                                   4,470                (4,470)  (B)            --

Incentive income from affiliate                                (1,218)                1,218   (B)            --

Other income                                                       17                    (3)  (B)            14
                                                             --------              --------             -------
                                                               77,323                (3,452)             73,871
                                                             --------              --------             -------

EXPENSES

Interest expense                                               34,992                (2,336)  (B)        32,656
Property operating expense                                      6,554                    --               6,554
Loan servicing expense                                            327                    --                 327
General and administrative expense                              2,248                  (100)  (B)         2,148
Management fees to affiliates                                   8,085                (5,345)  (C)         2,740



Incentive return to affiliates                                  1,441                  (827)  (C)           614
Depreciation and amortization                                   2,520                  (430)  (B)         2,090
                                                             --------              --------             -------

                                                               56,167                (9,038)             47,129
                                                             --------              --------             -------

INCOME BEFORE EQUITY IN EARNINGS
 OF UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES                                21,156                 5,586              26,742
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated
 subsidiaries                                                     362                  (362)  (B)            --
                                                             --------              --------             -------
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS                            $ 21,518              $  5,224             $26,742
                                                             ========              ========             =======
Income from continuing operations per common
  share, basic and diluted                                     $ 1.30                                   $  1.58
                                                               ======                                   =======
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
basic and diluted                                              16,489                                    16,969 (D)
                                                               ======                                   =======
</TABLE>
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      (A)   Historical amounts were derived from Newcastle's unaudited
            historical consolidated financial statements as of and for the nine
            months ended September 30, 2002.

      (B)   Adjustments represent historical results of operations related to
            other investments treated as being distributed to Newcastle
            Holdings, which have been eliminated, as they will have no
            continuing impact on Newcastle's operations, as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                      RELATED INVESTMENT
                                                    ----------------------------------------------------
                                                                 FORTRESS
                                                     AUSTIN     INVESTMENT
CAPTION                                             HOLDINGS       FUND           ICH (i)      CORPORATE               
TOTAL
- -------                                             --------       ----           -------      ---------               
-----

<S>                                                 <C>         <C>               <C>          <C>        <C>         
<C>
Interest and dividend income                           $--       $   (35)          $--         $  (191)               
$  (226)
Gain on settlement of investments                       --            --            29              --                     
29
Management fee from affiliate                           --            --            --          (4,470)   (ii)         
(4,470)
Incentive income from affiliate                         --         1,218            --             --                   
1,218
Other income                                            --            --            --              (3)                    
(3)
Interest expense                                        --            --            --          (2,336)   (iii)        
(2,336)
General and administrative expense                      --            --            --            (100)   (iv)           
(100)
Depreciation and amortization                           --          (329)           --            (101)   (v)            
(430)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries      (59)         (303)           --              --                   
(362)
</TABLE>

            (i)   Relates to assets acquired in the ICH transaction which were
                  sold prior to the commencement of Newcastle's operations.

            (ii)  Represents the management fee received by the Fund I Managing
                  Member related to Fund I which is paid directly to the Manager
                  and will have no continuing impact on Newcastle's operations.

            (iii) Represents interest on Newcastle Holdings' line of credit.

            (iv)  Represents data processing expenses, state and local taxes,



                  and professional fees related directly to entities and assets
                  treated as being distributed to Newcastle Holdings.

            (v)   Represents depreciation of furniture, fixtures and equipment
                  treated as being distributed to Newcastle Holdings.

(C)   Management fees related to the Fund I Managing Member's agreement with
      Fund I ($4.5 million) have been eliminated as they will have no continuing
      impact on Newcastle's operations. Management fees related to Newcastle
      Holdings' management agreement with the Manager have been allocated pro
      rata between continuing operations and operations related to assets
      distributed to Newcastle Holdings, based on pro forma equity; incentive
      return has been allocated based on the investments which generated such
      return. Newcastle notes that it will not be responsible for management
      fees or incentive return related to the investments or equity distributed
      to Newcastle Holdings. The actual management fee charged to Newcastle is
      based upon actual equity, as defined. Accordingly, management fees have
      been allocated between the operations treated as being distributed to
      Newcastle Holdings and Newcastle's continuing operations based upon the
      same methodology.

(D)   Includes 0.5 million shares deemed to be issued for pro forma statement of
      income purposes only, which would generate incremental proceeds sufficient
      to offset Newcastle Holdings' dividends in excess of earnings for the
      period from January 1, 2002 through July 12, 2002 of $6.7 million.
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

                   CONSOLIDATED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF INCOME
                  For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2001

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                                    Distributed to
                                                                                      Newcastle
                                                                                       Holdings
                                                                                      ----------
                                                                                      Eliminated
                                                              Historical (A)          Operations             Pro 
Forma
                                                              --------------          ----------             -----
----
<S>                                                           <C>                   <C>         <C>         <C>
REVENUES

Interest and dividend income                                    $36,848             $ (1,017)   (B)          $ 
35,831
Rental and escalation income                                     15,503                 --                     
15,503
Gain (loss) on settlement of investments                          7,451               (1,061)   (B)             
6,390
Management fee from affiliate                                     6,705               (6,705)   (B)                -
-
Incentive income from affiliate                                  28,846              (28,846)   (B)                -
-
Other income                                                         42                  (24)   (B)                
18
                                                                -------             --------                 -----
---
                                                                 95,395              (37,653)                  
57,742
                                                                -------             --------                 -----
---

EXPENSES

Interest expense                                                 27,060               (2,234)   (B)            
24,826
Property operating expense                                        6,670                 --                      
6,670
Loan servicing expense                                              181                 --                        
181
General and administrative expense                                1,080                 (221)   (B)               
859
Management fees to affiliates                                    10,996               (8,641)   (C)             
2,355
Incentive return to affiliates                                   16,075              (16,075)   (C)                -



-
Depreciation and amortization                                     2,655                 (737)   (B)             
1,918
                                                                -------             --------                 -----
---
                                                                 64,717              (27,908)                  
36,809
                                                                -------             --------                 -----
---

INCOME BEFORE EQUITY IN EARNINGS
  OF UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES                                 30,678               (9,745)                  
20,933
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated subsidiaries        1,885               (1,885)   (B)                --
                                                                -------             --------                 -----
---
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS                               $32,563             $(11,630)                $ 
20,933
                                                                =======             ========                 
========
Income from continuing operations per common
  share, basic and diluted                                      $  1.97                                      $   
1.23
                                                                =======                                      
========
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
  basic and diluted                                              16,494                                        
16,974 (D)
                                                                =======                                      
========
</TABLE>
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NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002

      (A)   Historical amounts were derived from Newcastle's unaudited
            historical consolidated financial statements as of and for the nine
            months ended September 30, 2001.

      (B)   Adjustments represent historical results of operations related to
            other investments treated as being distributed to Newcastle
            Holdings, which have been eliminated, as they will have no
            continuing impact on Newcastle's operations, as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

                                                                    RELATED INVESTMENT
                                                     -------------------------------------------------
                                                                  FORTRESS
                                                      AUSTIN     INVESTMENT
CAPTION                                              HOLDINGS      FUND        ICH (i)      CORPORATE             
TOTAL
- -------                                              --------      ----        -------      ---------             
-----
<S>                                                  <C>         <C>          <C>          <C>        <C>      <C>
Interest and dividend income                         $   --      $   (517)    $   --       $   (500)  (ii)     $ 
(1,017)
Gain on settlement of investments                        --          --         (2,012)         951   (iii)      
(1,061)
Management fee from affiliate                            --          --           --         (6,705)  (iv)       
(6,705)
Incentive income from affiliate                          --       (28,846)        --           --               
(28,846)
Other income                                             --          --           --            (24)                
(24)
Interest expense                                         --          --           --         (2,234)  (v)        
(2,234)
General and administrative expense                       --          --           --           (221)  (vi)         
(221)
Depreciation and amortization                            --          (395)        --           (342)  (vii)        
(737)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries       1,655      (3,540)        --           --                
(1,885)
</TABLE>

      (i)   Relates to assets acquired in the ICH transaction which were sold



            prior to the commencement of Newcastle's operations.

      (ii)  Represents interest on corporate cash balances and dividends on
            equity investments sold prior to the commencement of Newcastle's
            operations.

      (iii) Represents a loss on the sale of equity investments sold prior to
            the commencement of Newcastle's operations.

      (iv)  Represents the management fee received by the Fund I Managing Member
            related to Fund I which is paid directly to the Manager and will
            have no continuing impact on Newcastle's operations.

      (v)   Represents interest on Newcastle Holdings' line of credit.

      (vi)  Represents data processing expenses, state and local taxes, and
            professional fees related directly to entities and assets treated as
            being distributed to Newcastle Holdings.

      (vii) Represents depreciation of furniture, fixtures and equipment treated
            as being distributed to Newcastle Holdings.

(C)   Management fees related to the Fund I Managing Member's agreement with
      Fund I ($6.7 million) have been eliminated as they will have no continuing
      impact on Newcastle's operations. Management fees related to Newcastle
      Holdings' management agreement with the Manager have been allocated pro
      rata between continuing operations and operations related to assets
      distributed to Newcastle Holdings, based on pro forma equity; incentive
      return has been allocated based on the investments which generated such
      return. Newcastle notes that it will not be responsible for management
      fees or incentive return related to the investments or equity distributed
      to Newcastle Holdings. The actual management fee charged to Newcastle is
      based upon actual equity, as defined. Accordingly, management fees have
      been allocated between the operations treated as being distributed to
      Newcastle Holdings and Newcastle's continuing operations based upon the
      same methodology.

(D)   Includes 0.5 million shares deemed to be issued for pro forma statement of
      income purposes only, which would generate incremental proceeds sufficient
      to offset Newcastle Holdings' dividends in excess of earnings for the
      period from January 1, 2002 through July 12, 2002 of $6.7 million.
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       ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF PRO FORMA FINANCIAL
                       CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following should be read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated
financial statements and notes, and in particular with the unaudited pro forma
consolidated statements of income included in Note 6 to our consolidated
financial statements.

GENERAL

We were formed in June 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Newcastle Investment
Holdings Corp. (referred to as Newcastle Holdings) for the purpose of separating
the real estate securities and credit leased real estate businesses from
Newcastle Holdings' other investments. In July 2002, Newcastle Holdings
contributed to us certain assets and liabilities in exchange for 16,488,517
shares of our common stock (as adjusted for an October stock dividend).

Although we were formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of Newcastle Holdings, for
accounting purposes this transaction is presented as a reverse spin-off. Under a
reverse spin-off, Newcastle Investment Corp. is treated as the continuing entity
and the assets that were retained by Newcastle Holdings and not contributed to
us are accounted for as if they were distributed at their historical book basis
through a spin-off to Newcastle Holdings. Our operations commenced on July 12,
2002. The following is a discussion and analysis of our operations on a stand
alone basis, without regard to the operations treated as if they were
distributed to Newcastle Holdings (i.e. without regard to the assets retained by
Newcastle Holdings). Certain activities described herein occurred prior to our
formation and were consummated by Newcastle Holdings.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income are presented as if
the distribution to Newcastle Holdings and the commencement of our operations
had been consummated on January 1, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The historical
results of operations of the assets and liabilities distributed to Newcastle
Holdings for the period prior to the commencement of our operations have been
presented as discontinued operations for those operations that constitute a
component of an entity. Of the assets treated as being distributed to Newcastle
Holdings, a portfolio of properties located in the U.S. and primarily leased to
the General Services Administration, which we refer to as the GSA portfolio, and
the mortgage loans each qualify as a component of an entity. The remaining
operations related to the other assets and the liabilities treated as being
distributed to Newcastle Holdings which are not a component of an entity have



been eliminated.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income are presented for
comparative purposes only, and are not necessarily indicative of what our actual
consolidated results of operations would have been for the periods presented,
nor do they purport to represent the results of any future periods. In the
opinion of management, all adjustments necessary to present fairly the unaudited
pro forma financial information have been made.

In October 2002, we sold 7 million shares of our common stock (referred to
herein as our common shares) in a public offering at a price to the public of
$13.00 per share, for net proceeds of approximately $80 million after deducting
the underwriters' discount and other offering expenses. A portion of the
proceeds of this offering were used to purchase a portfolio of mortgage loans
and to make additional investments. Subsequent to this offering, we have
23,488,517 common shares outstanding.

We are organized and conduct our operations to qualify as a REIT for federal
income tax purposes. As such, we will generally not be subject to federal income
tax on that portion of our income that is distributed to shareholders if we
distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our shareholders by the
due date of our federal income tax return and comply with various other
requirements.

We conduct our business through two primary segments: (i) real estate
securities, including our first two CBO securitization transactions, which we
refer to as CBO I and CBO II, and (ii) revenue-producing real estate, primarily
credit leased real estate, including a portfolio of properties located in
Canada, which we refer to as our Bell Canada portfolio, and a portfolio of
properties located in Belgium, which we refer to as our LIV portfolio. Revenues
attributable to each segment are disclosed below on a pro forma basis
(unaudited) (in thousands).
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                    Real Estate
                                                    Securities    Real Estate   Unallocated     Total
                                                    ----------    -----------   -----------     -----
<S>                                                 <C>           <C>           <C>            <C>
For the nine months ended September 30, 2002          $58,728       $15,138         $5         $73,871
</TABLE>

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States ("GAAP"). The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that could affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

We have classified our real estate securities as available for sale. As such,
they are carried at market value with net unrealized gains or losses reported as
a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Market value is based
primarily upon multiple broker quotations, which provide valuation estimates
based upon reasonable market order indications or a good faith estimate thereof.
These quotations are subject to significant variability based on market
conditions, such as interest rates and spreads. Changes in market conditions, as
well as changes in the assumptions or methodology used to determine market
value, could result in a significant increase or decrease in our book equity.

Similarly, our derivative instruments, held for hedging purposes, are carried at
market value pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS")
No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," as
amended. Market value is based on counterparty quotations. To the extent they
qualify as hedges under SFAS No. 133, net unrealized gains or losses are
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income; otherwise,
they are reported as a component of current income. Market values of such
derivatives are subject to significant variability based on many of the same
factors as the securities discussed above. The results of such variability could
be a significant increase or decrease in our book equity and/or earnings.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

COMPARISON OF THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 TO THE NINE MONTHS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 ON A PRO FORMA BASIS

Interest and dividend income increased by $15.2 million or 42.4%, from $35.8
million to $51.0 million. This increase is primarily the result of interest



earned on a deposit made on the collateral for our CBO II transaction prior to
its consummation, which we refer to as the CBO II deposit, of $2.5 million and
interest earned on the CBO II collateral of $14.9 million.

Rental and escalation income decreased by $0.3 million or 2.0%, from $15.5
million to $15.2 million. This decrease is primarily the result of foreign
currency fluctuations related to our Bell Canada and LIV portfolios. Escalation
income represents contractual increases in rental income to offset increases in
expenses or general price increases over a base amount.

Gain on settlement of investments increased by $1.2 million, from $6.4 million
to $7.6 million, primarily as a result of an increase in the volume of sales of
certain CBO collateral securities. Sales of CBO securities are based on a number
of factors including credit, asset type and industry and can be expected to
increase or decrease from time to time. Periodic fluctuations in the volume of
sales of securities is dependent upon, among other things, management's
assessment of credit risk, asset concentration, portfolio balance and other
factors. The increased volume of sales of securities during this period reflects
management's determination that the portfolio required more adjustment than in
prior periods.

Interest expense increased by $7.9 million or 31.5%, from $24.8 million to $32.7
million. This increase is primarily the result of interest on the CBO II
securitization ($11.8 million), partially offset by lower interest rates being
paid on the variable rate CBO I securities classes.

Property operating expense decreased by $0.1 million or 1.7%, from $6.7 million
to $6.6 million, primarily as the result of foreign currency fluctuations
related to our Bell Canada and LIV portfolios.
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Loan servicing expense increased by $0.1 million, from $0.2 million to $0.3
million, primarily as a result of the acquisition of the CBO II collateral.

General and administrative expense increased by $1.2 million, from $0.9 million
to $2.1 million, primarily as a result of our increased size.

Management fee expense increased by $0.3 million, from $2.4 million to $2.7
million, based on our increased equity.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $0.2 million or 9.0%, from $1.9
million to $2.1 million, primarily as the result of depreciation on the capital
expenditures we made with respect to our real estate assets.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity is a measurement of our ability to meet potential cash requirements,
including ongoing commitments to repay borrowings, fund and maintain
investments, and other general business needs. Additionally, to maintain our
status as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, we must distribute annually at
least 90% of our taxable income. Our primary sources of funds for liquidity, in
addition to our initial public offering, consist of net cash provided by
operating activities, borrowings under loans and the issuance of debt
securities. Our loans and debt securities are generally secured directly by our
investment assets. As of September 30, 2002, our CBO I and CBO II collateral as
well as our Bell Canada portfolio were securitized, while our LIV portfolio and
one our marketable real estate securities served as collateral for loans.

Our ability to execute our business strategy, particularly the growth of our
investment portfolio, depends to a significant degree on our ability to obtain
additional capital. Our CBO strategy is dependent upon our ability to place the
match funded debt we create in the market at spreads that provide a positive
arbitrage. If spreads for CBO liabilities widen or if demand for such
liabilities ceases to exist, then our ability to execute future CBO transactions
will be severely restricted.

We expect to meet our short-term liquidity requirements generally through our
cash flow provided by operations, as well as investment specific borrowings. Our
real estate investments are financed long-term and primarily leased to credit
tenants with long-term leases and are therefore expected to generate generally
stable current cash flows. Our real estate securities are also financed
long-term and their credit status is continuously monitored; therefore, these
investments are also expected to generate a generally stable current return,
subject to interest rate fluctuations. See "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk -- Interest Rate Exposure" below. We consider our
ability to generate cash to be adequate and expect it to continue to be adequate
to meet operating requirements both in the short- and long-terms.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity requirements, specifically the
repayment of our debt and our investment funding needs, through additional
borrowings, the issuance of debt and/or equity securities and the liquidation or
refinancing of our assets at maturity. We believe that the value of these assets
is, and will continue to be, sufficient to repay our debt at maturity under



either scenario.

We expect that our cash flow provided by operations, our financing from Bear
Stearns Mortgage Capital Corporation relating to our purchase of a mortgage loan
portfolio (as described below) and our financing from Bear, Stearns
International Limited in connection with our purchase of securities for our
third CBO transaction (as described below) and our subsequent CBO issuance will
satisfy our liquidity needs for our business plan over the next twelve months.

With respect to our real estate assets, we expect to incur approximately $1.1
million of tenant improvements in connection with the inception of leases and
capital expenditures during the fifteen months ending December 31, 2003.
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Our long-term debt existing at September 30, 2002 (gross of $14.5 million of
discounts) is expected to mature as follows:

<TABLE>
<S>                                                           <C>
         Period from October 1, 2002 through
            December 31, 2002                                   $3.2 million
         2003                                                    3.3 million
         2004                                                    3.3 million
         2005                                                    3.3 million
         2006                                                    3.3 million
         2007                                                    3.3 million
         Thereafter                                            951.7 million
                                                               -------------
         Total                                                $971.4 million
</TABLE>

In July 1999, we completed our first CBO securitization, CBO I, whereby the CBO
I collateral was contributed to a consolidated subsidiary which issued $437.5
million face amount of investment grade senior securities and $62.5 million face
amount of non-investment grade subordinated securities in a private placement.
At September 30, 2002, the subordinated securities were retained by us, except
for the Class E Note as described below, and the $428.8 million carrying amount
of senior securities (all of which are still outstanding), which bore interest
at a weighted average effective rate, including discount and cost amortization,
of approximately 4.42%, had an expected weighted average life of approximately
5.51 years. Two classes of the senior securities bear floating interest rates.
We have obtained an interest rate swap and cap in order to hedge our exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates with respect to these securities,
at an initial cost of approximately $14.3 million. In addition, in connection
with the sale of two classes of securities, we entered into two interest rate
swaps and three interest rate cap agreements that do not qualify for hedge
accounting.

In March 1999, we obtained the Bell Canada mortgage secured by the Bell Canada
properties. In April 2002, we refinanced the Bell Canada properties through a
securitization transaction. At September 30, 2002, the $37.1 million carrying
amount of outstanding securities, which bore interest at a weighted average
effective rate, including discount and cost amortization, of approximately
6.72%, had an expected weighted average life of approximately 2.7 years. We have
retained one class of the issued securities.

In November 1999, we obtained the LIV mortgage, which had an outstanding
carrying amount of $50.6 million and bore interest at 4.89% as of September 30,
2002, and is due in November 2016. We hedged our exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates with respect to the LIV mortgage by obtaining an
interest rate cap.

We utilize repurchase agreements for short-term financings of investments. As of
September 30, 2002 we had a $1.5 million repurchase agreement outstanding,
bearing interest at approximately 3.17% with a short-term maturity.

In April 2002, we completed our second CBO securitization, CBO II, whereby the
CBO II collateral was contributed to a consolidated subsidiary which issued
$444.0 million face amount of investment grade senior securities and $56.0
million face amount of non-investment grade subordinated securities, in a
private placement. The subordinated securities have been retained by us. At
September 30, 2002, the $439.0 million carrying amount of senior securities,
which bore interest at a weighted average effective rate, including discount and
cost amortization, of approximately 3.48%, had an expected weighted average life
of approximately 7.61 years. One class of the senior securities bears a floating
interest rate. We obtained an interest rate swap and cap in order to hedge our
exposure to the changes in market interest rates with respect to this security,
at an initial cost of $1.2 million.

In November 2001, we sold the retained subordinated $17.5 million Class E Note
from CBO I to a third party for approximately $18.5 million. The Class E Note
bore interest at a fixed rate of 8.0% and had a stated maturity of June 2038.
The sale of the Class E Note represented an issuance of debt and was recorded as



additional CBO bonds payable. In April 2002, a wholly owned subsidiary of ours
repurchased the Class E Note. The repurchase of the Class E Note represents a
repayment of debt and was recorded as a reduction of CBO bonds payable. The
Class E Note is included in the CBO II collateral. The Class E Note is
eliminated in consolidation.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into in July 2002, Bear, Stearns International
Limited (BSIL) will purchase up to $450 million of commercial mortgage backed
securities, REIT debt, real estate loans and asset backed securities (the CBO
III collateral), subject to our right to purchase such securities from BSIL.
This agreement is treated as a non-hedge derivative for accounting purposes and
is therefore marked-to-market through current income; no material mark
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has been booked through September 30, 2002. The CBO III collateral is expected
to be included in a securitization transaction in which we would acquire the
equity interest (the CBO III transaction). Pursuant to the agreement, Bear,
Stearns & Co. Inc. also has been engaged to structure and serve as lead manager
for the CBO III transaction for which it will receive customary fees. As of
September 30, 2002, approximately $123.7 million of the $450 million has been
accumulated. If the CBO III transaction is not consummated as a result of our
failure to acquire the equity interest or otherwise as a result of our gross
negligence or willful misconduct, we would be required to either purchase the
CBO III collateral from BSIL or pay BSIL the difference between the price it
paid for the CBO III collateral and the price at which it sold the CBO III
collateral to a third party (a collateral loss). If the CBO III transaction
fails to close for any other reason, other than as a result of BSIL's gross
negligence or willful misconduct, we would be required to either purchase the
CBO III collateral from BSIL or pay BSIL the lesser of $15 million and the
collateral loss or, if we have paid a deposit on the CBO III collateral in
exchange for a portion of the interest payments on the securities, the lesser of
the collateral loss and any such deposit. Although we currently anticipate
completing the CBO III transaction during the first quarter of 2003, there is no
assurance that the CBO III transaction will be consummated. As of September 30,
2002, we estimate that the fair value of the securities purchased by BSIL is in
excess of the purchase price paid by BSIL. In November 2002, we made deposits
aggregating $24.9 million under such agreement, known as the CBO III deposit.

In October 2002, we sold 7 million shares of our common stock in a public
offering at a price to the public of $13.00 per share, for net proceeds of
approximately $80 million after deducting the underwriters' discount and other
offering expenses. A portion of the proceeds of this offering were used to
purchase a portfolio of mortgage loans, as described below, and to make other
investments, including the CBO III deposit. Subsequent to this offering, we have
23,488,517 common shares outstanding.

In November 2002, we utilized $13.5 million of our offering proceeds to purchase
a $260.2 million portfolio of mortgage loans subject to $246.7 million of
financing. The mortgage loans bore interest at a net weighted average rate of
approximately 3.44% on the date of purchase, and the financing bore interest at
a weighted average rate of approximately LIBOR + 0.37% on such date.

In November 2002, we refinanced the LIV portfolio for proceeds of EUR 60 million
or approximately $60.6 million. The refinancing bears interest at a rate of
Euribor + 1.45% and matures in November 2006. The proceeds of the refinancing
were primarily used to repay the existing financing on such portfolio. We have
hedged our exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates with respect
to this refinancing by obtaining an interest rate swap.

We declared a distribution of $0.40 per common share to our stockholders of
record at the close of business on September 27, 2002, Newcastle Holdings and
Fortress Principal Investment Holdings LLC, for the quarter ending September 30,
2002. In addition, in October 2002 we declared a distribution of $0.06 per
common share to our stockholders of record at the close of business on October
15, 2002, Newcastle Holdings and Fortress Principal Investment Holdings LLC, for
the period commencing on October 1, 2002 and ending October 15, 2002. Both
dividends were paid in October 2002.

CREDIT AND INTEREST RATE RISK

We are subject to credit and interest rate risk with respect to our investments
in real estate securities.

The collateralized mortgage-backed securities (CMBS) we invest in are generally
junior in right of payment of interest and principal to one or more senior
classes, but benefit from the support of one or more subordinate classes of
securities or other form of credit support within a securitization transaction.
The REIT securities we invest in reflect comparable credit risk. We believe,
based on our intensive due diligence process, that these securities offer
attractive risk-adjusted returns with long-term principal protection under a
variety of default and loss scenarios. While the expected yield on these
securities is sensitive to the performance of the underlying assets, the more
subordinated securities or other features of the securitization transaction, in



the case of mortgage backed securities, and the issuer's underlying equity and
subordinated debt, in the case of REIT securities, are designed to bear the
first risk of default and loss. We further minimize credit risk by actively
monitoring our investment portfolio and the underlying credit quality of our
holdings and, where appropriate, repositioning our investments to upgrade the
credit quality and yield on our investments.

Our portfolio is diversified by asset type, industry, location and issuer. We
expect that diversification will minimize the risk of capital loss.
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At September 30, 2002, our CBO collateral, which consists primarily of real
estate securities, has an overall weighted average credit rating of
approximately Baa3, and approximately 72% of these securities have an investment
grade rating (Baa3 or higher).

Returns on these investments are sensitive to interest rate volatility. We
minimize exposure to interest rate fluctuation through the use of match-funded
financing structures and hedges. In particular, we finance our real estate
securities investments through the issuance of debt securities in the form of
CBOs to take advantage of the structural flexibility offered by CBO transactions
to buy and sell certain investment positions to manage risk and, subject to
certain limitations, to optimize returns. We also utilize interest rate swaps
and caps to minimize this risk. As of September 30, 2002, a 100 basis point
change in short term interest rates would affect our earnings by no more than
$2.4 million per annum. See "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk - Interest Rate Exposure" below.

INFLATION

Substantially all of our office leases provide for separate escalations of real
estate taxes and operating expenses over a base amount, and/or increases in the
base rent based on changes in the Consumer Price Index ("CPI"). We believe that
inflationary increases in expenses will generally be offset by the expense
reimbursements and contractual rent increases described above.

We believe that our risk of increases in the market interest rates on our
floating rate debt as a result of inflation is largely offset by our use of
match funding and hedging instruments as described above. See "Item 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk -- Interest Rate
Exposure" below.

PRO FORMA FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

We believe Funds from Operations (FFO) is one appropriate measure of the
performance of real estate companies because it provides investors with an
understanding of our ability to incur and service debt and make capital
expenditures. Funds from Operations (FFO), for our purposes, represents net
income available for common shareholders (computed in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"), excluding
extraordinary items, plus real estate depreciation and amortization, and after
adjustments for unconsolidated subsidiaries, if any. We consider gains and
losses on resolution of our investments to be a normal part of our recurring
operations and therefore do not exclude such gains and losses when arriving at
FFO. Adjustments for unconsolidated subsidiaries, if any, are calculated to
reflect FFO on the same basis. FFO does not represent cash generated from
operating activities in accordance with GAAP and therefore should not be
considered an alternative to net income as an indicator of our operating
performance or as an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity and is
not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.
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Funds from Operations (FFO), on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the
transactions related to our formation, is calculated as follows (unaudited) (in
thousands):

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                             For the Nine
                                                            Months Ended
                                                            September 30,
                                                                 2002
                                                                 ----
<S>                                                         <C>
Income from continuing operations                             $ 26,742
Real estate depreciation and amortization                        1,970
                                                              --------
Funds from Operations (FFO) from continuing operations        $ 28,712
                                                              ========



</TABLE>

Pro forma funds from operations was derived from the Company's segments as
follows (unaudited) (in thousands):

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                           Average Book
                                                           Equity for the       FFO from      Return on
                                            Book Equity    Nine Months          continuing    Equity
                                             9/30/02(1)    Ended 9/30/02(1)     operations    (ROE)(2)
                                             ----------    ----------           ----------    ---------
<S>                                         <C>            <C>                  <C>           <C>
Real estate securities                      $ 157,913       $143,605             $29,494        27.4%
Revenue-producing real estate                  49,777         52,953               4,093        10.3%
Unallocated                                    (1,481)           527              (4,875)        N/A
                                            ---------       --------             -------        ----
Total                                         206,209       $197,085             $28,712        19.4%
                                                            ========             =======        ====
Accumulated depreciation                       (8,614)
Accumulated other comprehensive income         28,312
                                            ---------
Net                                         $ 225,907
                                            =========
</TABLE>

(1)   Gross of accumulated depreciation and accumulated other comprehensive
      income.

(2)   FFO divided by average book equity, annualized.
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                      MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
           OF HISTORICAL FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included herein.

GENERAL

We were formed in June 2002 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Newcastle Investment
Holdings Corp. (referred to as Newcastle Holdings) for the purpose of separating
the real estate securities and credit leased real estate businesses from
Newcastle Holdings' other investments. In July 2002, Newcastle Holdings
contributed to us certain assets and liabilities in exchange for shares of our
common stock.

Although we were formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of Newcastle Holdings, for
accounting purposes this transaction is presented as a reverse spin-off. Under a
reverse spin-off, Newcastle Investment Corp. is treated as the continuing entity
and the assets that were retained by Newcastle Holdings and not contributed to
us are accounted for as if they were distributed at their historical book basis
through a spin-off to Newcastle Holdings. Our operations commenced on July 12,
2002.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Pro Forma Financial Condition and
Results of Operations on the preceding pages pertains to current and historical
information regarding our operations on a stand-alone basis. The analysis in
this section discusses such information by treating us as the successor to
Newcastle Holdings and therefore includes historical information, through the
date of the commencement of our operations, regarding operations of Newcastle
Holdings which were distributed to them and therefore are unrelated to our
ongoing operations. Transactions completed by Newcastle Holdings related to
investments retained by Newcastle Holdings (not contributed to us) are referred
to as being completed by our predecessor.

Newcastle Holdings was incorporated on May 11, 1998 and was initially
capitalized through the sale of 50 shares of common stock for $1,000. In June
1998, Newcastle Holdings completed a private offering, including an
over-allotment option, for the sale of 20,912,401 shares of common stock for
proceeds of approximately $384.5 million, net of expenses. In addition, in July
1998, certain employees of Fortress Investment Group LLC purchased an aggregate
of 4,288 shares of the common stock of Newcastle Holdings resulting in
additional proceeds of approximately $0.1 million. In 2000 and 2001, Newcastle
Holdings repurchased an aggregate of 4,428,222 shares of its common stock for
$32.4 million of cash and $46.3 million of newly issued shares of its Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series A Preferred"). At the date
of the commencements of our operations, Newcastle Holdings had 16,488,517 shares
of its common stock outstanding. The Series A Preferred was fully redeemed by
June 14, 2002.

Our predecessor conducted its business through four primary segments: (1) real
estate securities, (2) revenue-producing real estate, primarily credit leased
real estate, (3) its investment in Fortress Investment Fund LLC ("Fund I") and
(4) real estate loans. Revenues attributable to each segment are disclosed



below. Newcastle Holdings' investments in real estate securities and a portion
of its investments in revenue-producing real estate were contributed to us. The
real estate (GSA portfolio) and real estate loans operations distributed to
Newcastle Holdings have been treated as discontinued operations, because they
constituted a component of an entity, while the other operations distributed to
Newcastle Holdings, including the investment in Fund I, have not been treated as
such, because they did not constitute a component of an entity as defined in
SFAS No. 144 "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                             Fortress
                                                 Real Estate                Investment
                                                 Securities    Real Estate      Fund       Unallocated     Totals
                                                 ----------    -----------      ----       -----------     ------
                                                                        (unaudited and in thousands)
<S>                                              <C>           <C>          <C>            <C>             <C>
For the nine months ended September 30, 2002:

     Revenues                                      $58,728      $15,138        $ 3,287        $   170      $77,323

For the nine months ended September 30, 2001:
     Revenues                                      $42,081      $15,661        $36,068        $ 1,585      $95,395
</TABLE>

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States ("GAAP"). The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that could affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

The investment in Fund I was retained by Newcastle Holdings. The managing member
of Fund I is Fortress Fund MM LLC (the "Fund I Managing Member"), which is owned
jointly, through subsidiaries, by Newcastle Holdings, approximately 94%, and the
Manager, approximately 6%. The Fund I Managing Member is entitled to an
incentive return (the "Fund Incentive Return") generally equal to 20% of Fund
I's returns, as defined, subject to: (1) a 10% preferred return payable to the
Investors and (2) a clawback provision which requires amounts previously
distributed as Fund Incentive Return to be returned to Fund I if, upon
liquidation of Fund I, the amounts ultimately distributed to each Investor do
not meet a 10% preferred return to the Investors. Fund I is managed by the
Manager pursuant to the Fund I Managing Member's operating agreement and a
management agreement between the Manager and the Fund I Managing Member. In
accordance with those documents, (1) the Manager is entitled to 100% of the
management fee payable by Fund I, (2) the Manager is entitled to 50% of the Fund
Incentive Return payable by Fund I, (3) Newcastle Holdings is entitled to 50% of
the Fund Incentive Return payable by Fund I and (4) Newcastle Holdings is
entitled to receive 100% of the investment income or loss attributable to the
capital invested in Fund I by the Fund I Managing Member. The Manager of Fund I
also manages Newcastle and Newcastle Holdings. We consolidated the financial
results of the Fund I Managing Member through our predecessor until the date of
the commencement of our operations because our predecessor owned substantially
all of the voting interest in the Fund I Managing Member. As a result, the
financial statements reflect all of the Fund Incentive Return payable to the
Fund I Managing Member, including the 50% portion payable to the Manager which
is treated as Incentive Return to Affiliates, through the date of the
commencement of our operations.

The Fund Incentive Return is payable on an asset-by-asset basis, as realized.
Accordingly, a Fund Incentive Return may be paid to the Fund I Managing Member
in connection with a particular Fund I investment if and when such investment
generates proceeds to Fund I in excess of the capital called with respect to
such investment, plus a 10% preferred return thereon. If, upon liquidation of
Fund I, the aggregate amount paid to the Fund I Managing Member as Fund
Incentive Return exceeds the amount actually due to the Fund I Managing Member
(that is, amounts that should instead have been paid to Investors) after taking
into account the aggregate return to Investors, the excess is required to be
returned by the Fund I Managing Member (that is "clawed back") to Fund I.

Our predecessor received a credit against management fees otherwise payable
under the Management Agreement with the Manager for management fees and any Fund
Incentive Return paid to the Manager by Fund I in connection with our
predecessor's investment in Fund I. Our predecessor had adopted Method 2 of
Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-96 which specifies that companies with
management arrangements that contain a performance based incentive return that
is not finalized until the end of a period of time specified in the contract may
record such return as revenue in the amount that would be due under the formula
at any point in time as if the incentive return arrangement was terminated at
that date.



Our predecessor recorded as incentive income the amount that would be due based
on the fair value of the assets in Fund I exceeding the required return at a
specific point in time as if the management arrangement was terminated on that
date. Based on this methodology, our net income in each reporting period through
the date of the commencement of our operations reflected changes in the fair
value of the assets in Fund I. The fair value of the assets in Fund I is
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determined by the Fund I Managing Member pursuant to guidelines established by
Fund I's board of directors. Due to the inherent uncertainty of valuations of
investments without a public market, the estimates of value may differ from the
values that are ultimately realized by Fund I, and the differences could be
material. Such estimates of fair value can fluctuate from quarter to quarter,
which resulted in material fluctuations in the amount of Fund Incentive Return
recorded.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

COMPARISON OF THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 TO THE NINE MONTHS ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Interest and dividend income increased by $14.5 million or 39.1%, from $36.8
million to $51.3 million. This increase is primarily the result of interest
earned on the CBO II deposit and the CBO II collateral.

Rental and escalation income decreased by $0.3 million or 2.0%, from $15.5
million to $15.2 million. This decrease is primarily the result of foreign
currency fluctuations related to our Bell Canada and LIV portfolios.

Gain on settlement of investments increased by $0.1 million, from $7.5 million
to $7.6 million, primarily as a result of a slight increase in the volume of
sales of certain CBO collateral securities. Sales of CBO securities are based on
a number of factors including credit, asset type and industry and can be
expected to increase or decrease from time to time. Periodic fluctuations in the
volume of sales of securities is dependent upon, among other things,
management's assessment of credit risk, asset concentration, portfolio balance
and other factors. The increased volume of sales of securities during this
period reflects management's determination that the portfolio required slightly
more adjustment than in prior periods.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries decreased by $1.5 million,
from $1.9 million to $0.4 million, as a result of the elimination of income from
our predecessor's investments in Fund I and Austin Holdings Corporation
subsequent to their distribution to Newcastle Holdings.

Incentive Income from our predecessor's investment in Fund I of $1.2 million of
loss was recorded during the period. We recorded as Fund Incentive Return the
amount that would be due based on the fair value of the assets in Fund I
exceeding the required return as if the management arrangement was terminated,
through the date of this investment's distribution to Newcastle Holdings. During
the period, the amount previously recognized as Fund Incentive Return in 2001
was reduced due to losses incurred in Fund I. The calculation of incentive
income is more fully discussed above.

Management fee income from Fund I, all of which is payable to the Manager and is
therefore included in management fee expense, had no net effect on our reported
operations.

Interest expense increased by $7.9 million or 29.3%, from $27.1 million to $35.0
million. This increase is primarily the result of interest on the CBO II
securitization ($11.8 million), partially offset by lower interest rates being
paid on the variable rate CBO securities classes.

Property operating expense decreased by $0.1 million or 1.7%, from $6.7 million
to $6.6 million, primarily as the result of foreign currency fluctuations
related to our Bell Canada and LIV portfolios.

Loan servicing and REO expense increased by $0.1 million from $0.2 million to
$0.3 million, primarily as a result of the acquisition of the CBO II collateral.

General and administrative expense increased by $1.1 million, from $1.1 million
to $2.2 million, primarily as a result of increased insurance costs and
increased state and local taxes.

Management fee expense decreased by $2.9 million, from $11.0 million to $8.1
million, based on the reduction in our equity resulting from the distribution of
assets to Newcastle Holdings. Management fee expense includes management fees
related to Fund I ($4.5 million), which are directly offset by management fee
income.

Preferred incentive return decreased by $14.7 million, from $16.1 million to
$1.4 million, primarily as a result of decreased earnings on our predecessor's
investment in Fund I, prior to this investment's distribution to Newcastle
Holdings.
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Depreciation and amortization decreased by $0.2 million or 5.1%, from $2.7
million to $2.5 million, primarily as the result of the elimination of
amortization of certain costs related to our predecessor's investment in Fund I,
prior to this investment's distribution to Newcastle Holdings.

Preferred dividends and related accretion decreased by $0.7 million, from $1.9
million to $1.2 million, as a result of the redemption of such stock in June
2002.

COMPARISON OF THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2002 TO THE THREE MONTHS
ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Interest and dividend income increased by $8.5 million or 72.0%, from $11.7
million to $20.2 million. This increase is primarily the result of interest
earned on the CBO II collateral.

Rental and escalation income increased by $0.3 million or 6.1%, from $4.9
million to $5.2 million. This increase is primarily the result of foreign
currency fluctuations related to our Bell Canada and LIV portfolios.

Gain on settlement of investments increased by $2.6 million, primarily as a
result of an increase in the volume of sales of certain CBO collateral
securities. Sales of CBO securities are based on a number of factors including
credit, asset type and industry and can be expected to increase or decrease from
time to time. Periodic fluctuations in the volume of sales of securities is
dependent upon, among other things, management's assessment of credit risk,
asset concentration, portfolio balance and other factors. The increased volume
of sales of securities during this period reflects management's determination
that the portfolio required more adjustment than in prior periods.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries decreased by $0.8 million, as
a result of the elimination of income from our predecessor's investments in Fund
I and Austin Holdings Corporation subsequent to their distribution to Newcastle
Holdings.

Incentive Income from our predecessor's investment in Fund I and management fee
income from Fund I were similarly eliminated.

Interest expense increased by $5.0 million or 57.8%, from $8.5 million to $13.5
million. This increase is primarily the result of interest on the CBO II
securitization ($6.8 million), partially offset by lower interest rates being
paid on the variable rate CBO securities classes.

Property operating expense increased by $0.3 million or 13.9%, from $1.9 million
to $2.2 million, primarily as the result of foreign currency fluctuations
related to our Bell Canada and LIV portfolios.

Loan servicing expense increased by $0.1 million primarily as the result of the
acquisition of the CBO II collateral.

General and administrative expense increased by $0.2 million, from $0.5 million
to $0.7 million, primarily as a result of increased insurance costs and
increased state and local taxes.

Management fee expense decreased by $2.9 million, from $3.8 million to $0.9
million, based on the reduction in our equity resulting from the distribution of
assets to Newcastle Holdings. Management fee expense in the prior period
includes management fees related to Fund I ($2.2 million), which are directly
offset by management fee income.

Preferred incentive return decreased by $15.5 million, from $16.1 million to
$0.6 million, primarily as a result of decreased earnings on our predecessor's
investment in Fund I, prior to this investment's distribution to Newcastle
Holdings.

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $0.2 million or 23.3%, from $0.9
million to $0.7 million, primarily as the result of the sale of two small
properties.

Preferred dividends and related accretion decreased by $0.6 million as a result
of the redemption of such stock in June 2002.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Pro Forma Financial Conditions and
Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources for a discussion of our
current liquidity and capital resources.
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The following is a discussion of our predecessor's historical liquidity and
capital resources, primarily related to operations distributed to them.

Our primary sources of funds for liquidity, subsequent to our predecessor's



private equity offering in 1998, have consisted of net cash provided by
operating activities, borrowings under loans, the issuance of debt securities
and the settlement of investments.

Our predecessor had certain investments in, and commitments to, two
unconsolidated subsidiaries as described below. Both of these investments, and
the related commitments, were distributed to Newcastle Holdings.

Newcastle Holdings committed to contribute approximately $100 million to
Fortress Investment Fund LLC, along with other major institutional investors
who, together with Newcastle Holdings and its affiliates, committed
approximately $872.8 million over the three years ending April 28, 2003.

In 1998, Newcastle Holdings and Fortress Principal Investment Group LLC
("FPIG"), an affiliate of our manager, formed Austin Holdings Corporation
("Austin"). FPIG contributed cash and Newcastle Holdings contributed its
interest in entities that owned certain assets, primarily nonperforming loans
and foreclosed real estate intended for sale, which it originally acquired as
part of a loan pool acquisition. The assets Newcastle Holdings contributed, and
any income generated from them, are not well suited to be held by a REIT because
of the following reasons. If the assets were treated as inventory held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, any gain from the sale of these assets would
be subject to a 100% excise tax in the hands of a REIT. By holding these assets
indirectly through Austin, a corporate entity, Newcastle Holdings instead
received dividend income from the corporation, which is not subject to the 100%
excise tax, and is treated as qualifying income for purposes of the REIT 95%
income test. Newcastle Holdings holds non-voting preferred stock of Austin.
Newcastle Holdings' preferred stock in Austin represents a 95% economic
ownership interest in Austin and has a liquidation preference over the common
stockholders. Newcastle Holdings' interest in Austin is accounted for under the
equity method. Newcastle Holdings acquired stock that is non-voting in order to
comply with the rule that REITs generally may not hold more than 10% of the
voting stock of any corporation. FPIG is the holder of all of the common stock,
which represents 100% of the vote and 5% of the economic ownership interest in
Austin. Austin also owns 100% of the common stock of Ascend Residential
Holdings, Inc. ("Ascend"). Ascend's primary business is the acquisition,
rehabilitation and sale of single-family residential properties.

In August 1998, Newcastle Holdings closed on the $234.2 million GSA mortgage. In
March 1999, it closed on the $18.6 million GSA San Diego mortgage. In May 1999,
it repaid these two mortgages with proceeds from the $399.1 million GSA
securitization. The GSA securitization, and related assets, were retained by
Newcastle Holdings.

In November 1999, Newcastle Holdings securitized a U.S. commercial mortgage loan
by issuing $55.6 million of bonds. The bonds were also secured by a $15.0
million letter of credit. These obligations were repaid in December 2001.

In November 1999, Newcastle Holdings obtained the $24.8 million GSA Kansas City
mortgage, which was repaid in May 2002 upon sale of the related asset.

In July 2000, Newcastle Holdings entered into a $40 million revolving credit
agreement, which bore interest at LIBOR +4.25% and was due in July 2003.
Newcastle Holdings hedged its exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates with respect to the credit agreement by obtaining an interest rate swap.
This credit agreement was retained by Newcastle Holdings.

Net cash flow provided by operating activities decreased from $20.9 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2001 to $15.3 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2002. This change resulted from the acquisition and
settlement of Newcastle's investments as described above, including the
distribution of investments to Newcastle Holdings.

Investing activities provided (used) ($425.5 million) and $77.7 million during
the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Investing
activities consisted primarily of the acquisition and improvement of properties
and the investments made in certain real estate securities, net of proceeds from
the settlement of debt and equity investments as well as the sale of properties.

Financing activities provided (used) $386.0 million and ($97.0 million) during
the nine months ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The borrowings
and debt issuances described above served as the primary sources of cash flow
from financing activities. Offsetting uses included the payment of related
deferred financing costs (includ-
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ing the purchase of hedging instruments), the payment of dividends, the
redemption of preferred stock and the repayment of debt as described above.

See the consolidated statements of cash flows included in our consolidated
financial statements included herein for a reconciliation of our cash position
(including our predecessor's cash position prior to the commencement of our
operations) for the periods described herein.

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS



We believe Funds from Operations (FFO) is one appropriate measure of the
performance of real estate companies because it provides investors with an
understanding of our ability to incur and service debt and make capital
expenditures. Funds from Operations (FFO), for our purposes, represents net
income available for common shareholders (computed in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP)), excluding
extraordinary items, plus real estate depreciation and amortization, and after
adjustments for unconsolidated subsidiaries. We consider gains and losses on
resolution of our investments to be a normal part of our recurring operations
and therefore do not exclude such gains and losses when arriving at Funds from
Operations (FFO). In addition, we excluded accrued incentive income from our
predecessor's investment in Fortress Investment Fund LLC (Fund I) and included
incentive income distributed or distributable from Fund I in accordance with the
operating agreement of Fund I since this reflects cash distributed or
distributable from Fund I, while accrued incentive income is based upon the fair
value of Fund I's net assets, which is subject to fluctuation. Adjustments for
unconsolidated subsidiaries are calculated to reflect Funds from Operations
(FFO) on the same basis. Funds from Operations (FFO) does not represent cash
generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and therefore should
not be considered an alternative to net income as an indicator of operating
performance or as an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity and is
not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.

Funds from Operations is calculated as follows (unaudited) (in thousands):

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                                           For the Nine Months Ended
                                                                                 September 30,
                                                                             2002            2001
                                                                             ----            ----
<S>                                                                        <C>            <C>
Income available for common shareholders                                   $ 20,601       $ 36,531
Real estate depreciation and amortization                                     7,290          9,592
Accumulated depreciation on real estate sold                                 (2,704)            --
Real estate depreciation and amortization-unconsolidated subsidiaries         1,614            982
Incentive income accrued from Fortress Investment Fund(A)                       609        (14,423)
Equity in incentive return accrued by Fortress Investment Fund                  (70)         1,652
Distributable incentive income from Fortress Investment Fund                     --          2,639
                                                                           --------       --------
Funds from Operations (FFO)                                                $ 27,340       $ 36,973
                                                                           ========       ========
(A) Represents our predecessor's 50% interest
    in incentive income as follows:
Total incentive income                                                     $ (1,218)      $ 28,846
Manager portion                                                                 609        (14,423)
                                                                           --------       --------
Our predecessor's incentive income                                         $   (609)      $ 14,423
                                                                           ========       ========
</TABLE>

                              CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

You should read this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto contained elsewhere
in this report, including the unaudited proforma consolidated statements of
income included in Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements.. The
information contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is not a complete
description of our business or the risks associated with an investment in our
common stock. We urge you to carefully review and consider the various
disclosures made by us in this report and in our other filings with the SEC,
including the Risk Factors contained in our Registration Statement on Form S-11
(File No. 333-90578) declared effective by the SEC on October 9, 2002 (the "IPO
Registration Statement") that discuss our business in greater detail.
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This report contains certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking
statements relate to, among other things, the operating performance of our
investments and financing needs. Forward-looking statements are generally
identifiable by use of forward-looking terminology such as "may," "will,"
"should," "potential," "intend," "expect," "endeavor," "seek," "anticipate,"
"estimate," "overestimate," "underestimate," "believe," "could," "project,"
"predict," "continue" or other similar words or expressions. Forward-looking
statements are based on certain assumptions, discuss future expectations,
describe future plans and strategies, contain projections of results of
operations or of financial condition or state other forward-looking information.
Our ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or
strategies is inherently uncertain. Although we believe that the expectations
reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable
assumptions, our actual results and performance could differ materially from
those set forth in the forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our
actual results in future periods to differ materially from forecasted results.



Factors which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future
prospects include, but are not limited to, changes in economic conditions
generally and the real estate and bond markets specifically,
legislative/regulatory changes (including changes to laws governing the taxation
of real estate investment trusts), availability of capital, interest rates and
interest rate spreads, generally accepted accounting principles and policies and
rules applicable to REITs. When considering forward-looking statements, you
should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary statements in our IPO
Registration Statement. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any
of these forward-looking statements, which reflect our management's views as of
the date of this report. The factors noted above and in our registration
statement could cause our actual results to differ significantly from those
contained in any forward-looking statement. For a discussion of our critical
accounting policies see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Pro Forma
Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Critical Accounting Policies."

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of
activity, performance or achievements. We are under no duty to update any of the
forward-looking statements after the date of this report to conform these
statements to actual results.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from changes in interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The primary
market risks that we are exposed to are interest rate risk and foreign currency
exchange rate risk. Interest rate risk and foreign currency exchange rate risk
are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax
policies, domestic and international economic and political considerations and
other factors beyond our control. All of our market risk sensitive assets,
liabilities and related derivative positions are for non-trading purposes only.

Interest Rate Exposure

Our primary interest rate exposures relate to our loans, mortgage backed
securities and variable-rate debt, as well as our interest rate swaps and caps.
Changes in the general level of interest rates can effect our net interest
income, which is the difference between the interest income earned on
interest-earning assets and the interest expense incurred in connection with our
interest-bearing liabilities. Changes in the level of interest rates also can
effect, among other things, our ability to originate and acquire loans and
securities, the value of our loans and mortgage backed securities, and our
ability to realize gains from the settlement of such assets. We utilize interest
rate swaps, caps and match-funded financings in order to limit the effects of
interest rates on our operations. As of September 30, 2002, a 100 basis point
change in short term interest rates would affect our earnings by no more than
$2.4 million per annum.

Our financing strategy focuses on the use of match-funded financing structures.
This means that we seek to match the maturities of our financial obligations
with the maturities of our investments to minimize the risk that we have to
refinance our liabilities prior to the maturities of our assets, and to reduce
the impact of changing interest rates on earnings. In addition, we generally
match-fund interest rates with like-kind debt (i.e., fixed-rate assets are
financed with fixed-rate debt, and floating-rate assets are financed with
floating-rate debt), directly or through the use of hedges such as interest rate
swaps, caps, or other financial instruments, or through a combination of these
strategies. This allows us to reduce the impact of changing interest rates on
our earnings. In this regard, we utilize securitization structures, particularly
collateralized bond obligations, otherwise known as CBOs, as well as other
match-funded financing structures.

Currency Rate Exposure

Our primary foreign currency exchange rate exposures relate to our real estate
leases and assets. Our principal direct currency exposures are to the Euro and
the Canadian Dollar. Changes in the currency rates can adversely impact the
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fair values and earnings streams of our international holdings. We have
attempted to mitigate this impact in part by utilizing local
currency-denominated financing on our foreign investments to partially hedge, in
effect, these assets.

We have material investments in a portfolio of Belgian properties, the LIV
portfolio, and a portfolio of Canadian properties, the Bell Canada portfolio.
These properties are financed utilizing debt instruments denominated in their
respective local currencies (the Euro and the Canadian Dollar). The net equity
invested in these portfolios, approximately $18.2 million and $18.9 million,
respectively, at September 30, 2002, is exposed to foreign currency exchange
risk.

Fair Values



For certain of our financial instruments, fair values are not readily available
since there are no active trading markets as characterized by current exchanges
between willing parties. Accordingly, fair values can only be derived or
estimated for these investments using various valuation techniques, such as
computing the present value of estimated future cash flows using discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved. However, the determination of estimated
future cash flows is inherently subjective and imprecise. We note that minor
changes in assumptions or estimation methodologies can have a material effect on
these derived or estimated fair values, and that the fair values reflected below
are indicative of the interest rate and currency rate environments as of
September 30, 2002 and do not take into consideration the effects of subsequent
interest rate or currency rate fluctuations.

We note that the values of our investments in real estate securities, primarily
the CBO collateral, and in derivative instruments, primarily interest rate
hedges on our debt, are sensitive to changes in market interest rates, interest
rate spreads, credit spreads and other market factors. The value of these
investments can vary, and has varied, materially from period to period.
Historically, the values of our real estate securities have tended to vary
inversely with those of our derivative instruments.
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We held the following interest rate risk sensitive instruments at September 30,
2002 (unaudited) (dollars in thousands):

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                PRINCIPAL      WEIGHTED
                                                BALANCE OR      AVERAGE
                                    CARRYING     NOTIONAL      EFFECTIVE      MATURITY
                                     AMOUNT       AMOUNT     INTEREST RATE      DATE            OTHER TERMS            
FAIR VALUE
                                     ------       ------     -------------      ----            -----------            
----------
<S>                                <C>          <C>          <C>              <C>          <C>                        
<C>
                                                                                               Various (mixed
                                                                                             floating and fixed
Assets:                                                                                    rates, amortizing and
   CBO collateral, net (A)....     $1,088,742   $1,059,103         8.16%       Various         interest only)         
$1,088,742
   Marketable securities,
      available for sale (B)..          7,184       19,326        18.94%         (B)                (B)                    
7,184
   Interest rate caps, treated
      as hedges, net (C)......          5,720      198,764          N/A          (C)                (C)                    
5,720
                                                                                            Amortizes principal
                                                                                            based on collateral
Liabilities:                                                                                payments, subject to
   CBO bonds payable (D)......        867,770      881,500         3.92%         (D)            reinvestment             
887,862
                                                                                            Amortizes principal
                                                                                               with a balloon
                                                                                                 payment at
   Other bonds payable (E)             37,078       37,812         6.72%       Apr-12             maturity                
36,373
                                                                                            Amortizes principal
                                                                                               with a balloon
                                                                                                 payment at
   Notes payable(E)...........         50,618       50,618         4.63%       Nov-16             maturity                
50,618
   Repurchase agree-
      ment (E)................          1,457        1,457         3.17%     Short-term        Interest only               
1,457
   Interest rate swaps,
      treated as hedges,
      net (F).................         51,685      451,736          N/A          (F)                (F)                   
51,685
   Non-hedge derivative
      obligations (G).........            511          (G)          N/A          (G)                (G)                      
511
</TABLE>

- ---------------

(A)   The fair value of these securities is estimated by obtaining broker
      quotations.

(B)   These two securities with carrying amounts of $3.9 million and $3.2
      million, respectively, mature in November 2007 and August 2030,
      respectively, and represent subordinate and residual interests in
      securitizations. The fair values of these securities, for which quoted
      market prices are not readily available, are estimated by means of a
      price/yield analysis based on our expected disposition strategies for such



      assets.

(C)   These two agreements have notional balances of $180.8 million and $18.0
      million, respectively, mature in March 2009 and October 2015,
      respectively, and cap 1-month LIBOR at 6.50% and 3-month LIBOR at 8.00%,
      respectively. The fair value of these agreements is estimated by obtaining
      counterparty quotations.

(D)   For those bonds bearing floating rates at spreads over market indices,
      representing approximately $710.3 million of the carrying amount of the
      CBO bonds payable, we believe that for similar financial instruments with
      comparable credit risks, the effective rates approximate market rates.
      Accordingly, the carrying amount outstanding on these bonds is believed to
      approximate fair value. For those bonds bearing fixed interest rates,
      values were obtained by discounting expected future payments by a rate
      calculated by imputing a spread over a market index on the date of
      borrowing. The weighted average stated maturity of the CBO bonds payable
      is September 2035.

(E)   We believe that for similar financial instruments with comparable credit
      risks, the stated interest rates (all of which are floating rates at
      spreads over market indices) approximate market rates, with the exception
      of the Bell Canada securitization which bears interest at a fixed rate.
      The Bell Canada securitization was valued by discounting expected future
      payments by a rate calculated by imputing a spread over a market index on
      the date of borrowing.

(F)   These two agreements have notional balances of $161.7 million and $290.0
      million, respectively, mature in July 2005 and April 2011, respectively,
      and swap 1-month LIBOR for 6.1755% and 3-month LIBOR for 5.93%,
      respectively. The fair value of these agreements is estimated by obtaining
      counterparty quotations.
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(G)   These are two essentially offsetting interest rate caps and two
      essentially offsetting interest rate swaps, each with notional amounts of
      $32.5 million, an interest rate cap with a notional balance of $17.5
      million, and an interest rate cap with a notional balance of approximately
      $58.7 million. It also includes the CBO III agreement which has a notional
      amount of $123.7 million at September 30, 2002. The maturity date of the
      purchased swap is July 2009; the maturity date of the sold swap is July
      2014, the maturity date of the $32.5 million caps is July 2038, the
      maturity date of the $17.5 million cap is July 2009, and the maturity date
      of the $58.7 million cap is August 2004. They have been valued by
      reference to counterparty quotations.

We held the following currency rate risk sensitive balances at September 30,
2002 (unaudited):

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
                                                            CURRENT       EFFECT OF A 5%   EFFCT OF A 5%
                                                            EXCHANGE         NEGATIVE        NEGATIVE
                                 CARRYING       LOCAL       RATE TO         CHANGE IN       CHANGE IN
                                  AMOUNT       CURRENCY        USD          EURO RATE        CAD RATE
                                  ------       --------        ---          ---------        --------
                                                (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT EXCHANGE RATES)
<S>                              <C>           <C>          <C>           <C>              <C>
Assets:
   LIV portfolio ........        $ 64,229         Euro       1.01358        $ (3,211)             N/A
   Bell Canada portfolio           47,158         CAD        1.58680             N/A         $ (2,358)
   LIV other, net .......           4,558         Euro       1.01358            (228)             N/A
   Bell Canada other, net           8,822         CAD        1.58680             N/A             (441)
Liabilities:
   LIV mortgage .........          50,618         Euro       1.01358           2,531              N/A
   Bell Canada bonds ....          37,078         CAD        1.58680             N/A            1,854
                                                                            --------         --------
   Total ................                                                   $   (908)        $   (945)
                                                                            ========         ========
</TABLE>

- ---------------

USD refers to U.S. dollars; CAD refers to Canadian dollars
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

            (a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company's
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as such term
is defined in Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based on such



evaluation, such officers have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the
Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective in alerting them on a
timely basis to material information relating to the Company (including its
consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in the Company's reports
filed or submitted under the Exchange Act.

            (b) Changes in Internal Controls. Since the Evaluation Date, there
have not been any significant changes in the Company's internal controls or in
other factors that could significantly affect such controls.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings -- The Company is not party to any material legal
proceedings.

Item 2. Change in Securities and Use of Proceeds

            On June 6, 2002, the Company issued 1 share of its common stock to
Newcastle Investment Holdings Corp. for $1.00. On July 12, 2002, the Company
issued to Newcastle Investment Holdings 999 shares of common stock in exchange
for a contribution of certain assets with a book value, as of March 31, 2002, of
approximately $190 million.

            Prior to the Company's initial public offering, the Company effected
a stock dividend pursuant to which 1,000 shares of its common stock were
converted into 16,488,517 shares of its common stock.

            Pursuant to a registration statement declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission on October 9, 2002 (File no. 333-90578), the
Company issued and sold 7 million shares of its common stock, par value $0.01
per share, in a public offering underwritten by Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., Lehman
Brothers, Banc of America Securities LLC and Friedman, Billings Ramsey & Co.,
Inc. The aggregate offering price for these shares was $91 million. The
aggregate underwriting discounts and commissions were approximately $6 million.
The Company also incurred a total of approximately $5 million of other expenses
in connection with the offering. None of these expenses were direct or indirect
payments to any directors, officers or partners of the Company or their
associates or to persons owning 10 percent or more of any class of the Company's
securities. Of the approximately $80 million of net proceeds to the Company
(after deducting the underwriters' discount and commission and other offering
expenses) approximately $13 million was used to pay a portion of the purchase
price for a portfolio of mortgage loans from an affiliate of Bear Stearns & Co.
Inc., approximately $25 million was used to make deposits on a portfolio of real
estate securities from an affiliate of Bear Sterns & Co. Inc., and the balance,
pending its use, is currently invested in interest bearing accounts.

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities -- None

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders -- None

Item 5. Other Information -- Not Applicable

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

            (a)   Exhibits filed with this Form 10-Q:

                  3.1   Articles of Amendment and Restatement (incorporated by
                        reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on
                        Form S-11 (File No. 333-90578), Exhibit 3.1).

                  3.2   By-laws (incorporated by reference to the Registrant's
                        Registration Statement on Form S-11, (File No.
                        333-90578), Exhibit 3.2).

                  4.1   Rights Agreement between the Registrant and American
                        Stock Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent, dated
                        October 16, 2002.

                  10.1  Management and Advisory Agreement by and among the
                        Registrant and Fortress Investment Group LLC, dated June
                        6, 2002.
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                  99.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18
                        U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
                        of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

                  99.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18
                        U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
                        of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

            (b)   Reports on Form 8-K filed by the registrant during its fiscal
                  quarter ended September 30, 2002:

                  None



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized:

NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP.

November 22, 2002

By: /s/ Wesley R. Edens
    ----------------------
Wesley R. Edens
Chairman of the Board

November 22, 2002

By: /s/ Michael I. Wirth
    ----------------------
Michael I. Wirth
Chief Financial Officer
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                    CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

            REGARDING PERIODIC REPORT CONTAINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I, Wesley R. Edens, certify that:

1.    I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Newcastle Investment
      Corp.;

2.    Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue
      statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
      make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
      statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
      this quarterly report;

3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
      information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all
      material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
      flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
      quarterly report;

4.    The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for
      establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
      defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and
      we have:

      a)    Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
            material information relating to the registrant, including its
            consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
            those entities, particularly during the period in which this
            quarterly report is being prepared;

      b)    Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls
            and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date
            of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

      c)    Presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the
            effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
            evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5.    The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on
      our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit
      committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
      equivalent function):

      a)    All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
            controls which could adversely affect the registrant's ability to
            record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
            identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in
            internal controls; and

      b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
            other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
            internal controls; and

6.    The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
      quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
      controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
      controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
      any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and



      material weaknesses.

      November 22, 2002                /s/ Wesley R. Edens
      -------------------------        ----------------------------------
      (Date)                           Wesley R. Edens, Chief Executive Officer
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                    CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

            REGARDING PERIODIC REPORT CONTAINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I, Michael I. Wirth, certify that:

1.    I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Newcastle Investment
      Corp.;

2.    Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue
      statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
      make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
      statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
      this quarterly report;

3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
      information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all
      material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
      flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
      quarterly report;

4.    The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for
      establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
      defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and
      we have:

      a)    Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that
            material information relating to the registrant, including its
            consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
            those entities, particularly during the period in which this
            quarterly report is being prepared;

      b)    Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls
            and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date
            of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"); and

      c)    Presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the
            effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
            evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5.    The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on
      our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit
      committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
      equivalent function):

      a)    All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
            controls which could adversely affect the registrant's ability to
            record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
            identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in
            internal controls; and

      b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or
            other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
            internal controls; and

6.    The registrant's other certifying officers and I have indicated in this
      quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal
      controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
      controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
      any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
      material weaknesses.

      November 22, 2002               /s/ Michael I. Wirth
      --------------------------      -----------------------------------------
      (Date)                          Michael I. Wirth, Chief Financial Officer
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                                RIGHTS AGREEMENT

         RIGHTS AGREEMENT, dated as of October 16, 2002 (the "Agreement"),
between Newcastle Investment Corp., a Maryland corporation (the "Company"), and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, a New York corporation (the "Rights
Agent").

                               W I T N E S S E T H

         WHEREAS, on June 6, 2002 (the "Rights Dividend Declaration Date"),
the Board of Directors of the Company authorized and declared a dividend
distribution of one Right (as hereinafter defined) for each share of common
stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Company (the "Common Stock") outstanding
at the close of business on October 16, 2002 (the "Record Date"), and has
authorized the issuance of one Right (as such number may hereinafter be adjusted
pursuant to the provisions of Section 11(p) hereof) for each share of Common
Stock of the Company issued between the Record Date (whether originally issued
or delivered from the Company's treasury) and the Distribution Date (as
hereinafter defined) each Right initially representing the right to purchase one
one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the
Company (the "Preferred Stock") having the rights, powers and preferences set
forth in the form of Articles Supplementary of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock attached hereto as Exhibit A, upon the terms and subject to the
conditions hereinafter set forth (the "Rights");

         NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual
agreements herein set forth, the parties hereby agree as follows:

         Section 1. Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the
following terms have the meanings indicated:

         (a) "Acquiring Person" shall mean any Person who or which, together
with all Affiliates and Associates of such Person, shall be, at any time after

the Record Date, the Beneficial Owner of 15% or more of the shares of Common
Stock then outstanding, but shall not include (i) the Company, (ii) any
Subsidiary of the Company, (iii) any employee benefit plan of the Company, or of
any Subsidiary of the Company, or any Person or entity organized, appointed or
established by the Company for or pursuant to the terms of any such plan, or
(iv) any Person who becomes the Beneficial Owner of fifteen percent (15%) or
more of the shares of Common Stock then outstanding as a result of a reduction
in the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding due to the repurchase of
shares of Common Stock by the Company unless and until such Person, after
becoming aware that such Person has become the Beneficial Owner of fifteen
percent (15%) or more of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock, acquires
beneficial ownership of additional shares of Common Stock representing one
percent (1%) or more of the shares of Common Stock then outstanding, (v) any
such Person who has reported or is required to report such ownership (but less
than 20%) on Schedule 13G under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended and in effect on the date of the Agreement (the "Exchange Act") (or any
comparable or successor report) or on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or
any comparable or successor report) which Schedule 13D does not state any



intention to or reserve the right to control or influence the management or
policies of the Company or engage in any of the actions specified in Item 4 of
such schedule (other than the disposition of the Common Stock) and, within 10
Business Days of being requested by the Company to advise it regarding the same,
certifies to the Company that such Person acquired shares of Common Stock in
excess of 14.9% inadvertently or without knowledge of the terms of the Rights
and who, together with all Affiliates and Associates, thereafter does not
acquire additional shares of Common Stock while the Beneficial Owner of 15% or
more of the shares of Common Stock then outstanding; provided, however, that if
the Person requested to so certify fails to do so within 10 Business Days, then
such Person shall become an Acquiring Person immediately after such
10-Business-Day period, or (vi) any of the Exempt Persons.

               (b)      "Act" shall mean the Securities Act of
1933.
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               (c) "Affiliate" and "Associate" shall have the respective
meanings ascribed to such terms in Rule 12b-2 of the General Rules and
Regulations under the Exchange Act.

               (d) A Person shall be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of, and shall
be deemed to "beneficially own," any securities:

                        (i) which such Person or any of such Person's Affiliates
      or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to acquire (whether
      such right is exercisable immediately or only after the passage of time)
      pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not
      in writing) or upon the exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights,
      rights, warrants or options, or otherwise; provided, however, that a
      Person shall not be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of, or to "beneficially
      own," (A) securities tendered pursuant to a tender or exchange offer made
      by such Person or any of such Person's Affiliates or Associates until such
      tendered securities are accepted for purchase or exchange, (B) securities
      issuable upon exercise of Rights at any time prior to the occurrence of a
      Triggering Event (as hereinafter defined), or (C) securities issuable upon
      exercise of Rights from and after the occurrence of a Triggering Event
      which Rights were acquired by such Person or any of such Person's
      Affiliates or Associates prior to the Distribution Date (as hereinafter
      defined) or pursuant to Section 3(a) or Section 22 hereof (the "Original
      Rights") or pursuant to Section 11(i) hereof in connection with an
      adjustment made with respect to any Original Rights;

                        (ii) which such Person or any of such Person's
      Affiliates or Associates, directly or indirectly, has the right to vote or
      dispose of or has "beneficial ownership" of (as deter mined pursuant to
      Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act),
      including pursuant to any agree-
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     ment, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing; provided,
     however, that a Person shall not be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of, or to
     "beneficially own," any security under this subparagraph (ii) as a result
     of an agreement, arrangement or understanding to vote such security if such
     agreement, arrangement or understanding: (A) arises solely from a revocable
     proxy given in response to a public proxy or consent solicitation made
     pursuant to, and in accordance with, the applicable provisions of the
     General Rules and Regulations under the Exchange Act, and (B) is not
     reportable by such Person on Schedule 13D under the Exchange Act (or any
     comparable or successor report); or

                        (iii) which are beneficially owned, directly or
     indirectly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate or Associate thereof)
     with which such Person (or any of such Person's Affiliates or Associates)
     has any agreement, arrangement or understanding (whether or not in
     writing), for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant to
     a revocable proxy as described in the proviso to subparagraph (ii) of this
     paragraph (d)) or disposing of any voting securities of the Company;
     provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph (d) shall cause a Person
     engaged in business as an underwriter of securities to be the "Beneficial
     Owner" of, or to "beneficially own," any securities acquired through such
     Person's participation in good faith in a firm commitment underwriting
     until the expiration of forty days after the date of such acquisition, and
     then only if such securities continue to be owned by such Person at such
     expiration of forty days and provided further, however, that any
     stockholder of the Company, with affiliate(s), associate(s) or other
     person(s) who may be deemed representatives of it serving as director(s) of
     the Company, shall not be deemed to beneficially own securities held by
     other Persons as a result of (i) persons affiliated or otherwise associated
     with such stock holder serving as directors or taking any action in
     connection
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     therewith, (ii) discussing the status of its shares with the Company or
     other stockholders of the Company similarly situated or (iii) voting or
     acting in a manner similar to other stockholders similarly situated, absent
     a specific finding by the Board of Directors of an express agreement among
     such stockholders to act in concert with one another as stockholders so as
     to cause, in the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors, each such
     stockholder to be the Beneficial Owner of the shares held by the other
     stockholder(s).

               (e) "Business Day" shall mean any day other than a Saturday,
Sunday or a day on which banking institutions in the State of New York are
authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.

               (f) "Close of business" on any given date shall mean 5:00 P.M.,
New York City time, on such date; provided, however, that if such date is not a
Business Day, it shall mean 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on the next
succeeding Business Day.

               (g) "Common Stock" shall mean the common stock, par value $.01
per share, of the Company, except that "Common Stock" when used with reference
to any Person other than the Company shall mean the capital stock of such Person
with the greatest voting power, or the equity securities or other equity
interest having power to control or direct the management, of such Person.

               (h) "Common Stock Equivalents" shall have the meaning set forth
in Section 11(a)(iii) hereof.

               (i) "Current Market Price" shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 11(d)(i) hereof.

               (j) "Current Value" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
11(a)(iii) hereof.

               (k) "Distribution Date" shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 3(a) hereof.
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               (l) "Equivalent Preferred Stock" shall have the meaning set forth
in Section 11(b) hereof.

               (m) "Exchange Act" shall mean the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934.

               (n) "Exchange Ratio" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
24 hereof.

               (o) "Exempt Persons", shall mean Newcastle Investment Holdings
Corp., Fortress Investment Group LLC, Fortress Principal Investment Holdings LLC
and Fortress Principal Investment Group LLC, each a Delaware limited liability
company, or any of the holders of the equity interests of such entities,
including but not limited to Wesley R. Edens, Robert I. Kauffman, Randal A.
Nardone and Erik P. Nygaard (including any person who shall receive interests
from any of them pursuant to the laws of descent and distribution).

               (p) "Expiration Date" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
7(a) hereof.

               (q) "Final Expiration Date" shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 7(a) hereof.

               (r) "Person" shall mean any individual, firm, corporation,
partnership or other entity.

               (s) "Preferred Stock" shall mean shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Company, and, to
the extent that there are not a sufficient number of shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock authorized to permit the full exercise of the
Rights, any other series of preferred stock of the Company designated for such
purpose containing terms substantially similar to the terms of the Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

               (t) "Principal Party" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
13(b) hereof.

               (u) "Purchase Price" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
4(a)(ii) hereof.
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               (v) "Qualified Offer" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
11(a)(ii) hereof.

               (w) "Record Date" shall have the meaning set forth in the WHEREAS



clause at the beginning of this Agreement.

               (x) "Rights" shall have the meaning set forth in the WHEREAS
clause at the beginning of this Agreement.

               (y) "Rights Agent" shall have the meaning set forth in the
parties clause at the beginning of this Agreement.

               (z) "Rights Certificate" shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 3(a) hereof.

               (aa) "Rights Dividend Declaration Date" shall have the meaning
set forth in the WHEREAS clause at the beginning of this Agreement.

               (bb) "Section 11(a)(ii) Event" shall mean any event described in
Section 11(a)(ii) hereof.

               (cc) "Section 13 Event" shall mean any event described in clauses
(x), (y) or (z) of Section 13(a) hereof.

               ((dd)) "Spread" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
11(a)(iii) hereof.

               ((ee)) "Stock Acquisition Date" shall mean the first date of
public announcement (which, for purposes of this definition, shall include,
without limitation, a report filed or amended pursuant to Section 13(d) under
the Exchange Act) by the Company or an Acquiring Person that an Acquiring Person
has become such other than pursuant to a Qualified Offer.

               ((ff)) "Subsidiary" shall mean, with reference to any Person, any
corporation of which an amount of voting securities sufficient to elect at least
a majority of the directors of such corporation is beneficially owned, directly
or indirectly, by such Person, or otherwise controlled by such Person.
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               ((gg)) "Substitution Period" shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 11(a)(iii) hereof.

               (hh) "Summary of Rights" shall have the meaning set forth in
Section 3(b) hereof.

               (ii) "Trading Day" shall have the meaning set forth in Section
11(d)(i) hereof.

               (jj) "Triggering Event" shall mean any Section 11(a)(ii) Event or
any Section 13 Event.

            Section 2. Appointment of Rights Agent. The Company hereby appoints
the Rights Agent to act as agent for the Company and the holders of the Rights
(who, in accordance with Section 3 hereof, shall prior to the Distribution Date
also be the holders of the Common Stock) in accordance with the terms and
conditions hereof, and the Rights Agent hereby accepts such appointment. The
Company may from time to time appoint such co-rights agents as it may deem
necessary or desirable.

            Section 3. Issuance of Rights Certificates.

               (a) Until the earlier of (i) the close of business on the tenth
Business Day after the Stock Acquisition Date, or (ii) the close of business on
the tenth Business Day (or such later date as the Board shall determine) after
the date that a tender or exchange offer by any Person is first published or
sent or given within the meaning of Rule 14d-2(a) of the General Rules and
Regulations under the Exchange Act, if upon consummation thereof, such Person
would become an Acquiring Person, in either instance other than pursuant to a
Qualified Offer (the earlier of (i) and (ii) being herein referred to as the
"Distribution Date"), (x) the Rights will be evidenced (subject to the
provisions of paragraph (b) of this Section 3) by the certificates for the
Common Stock registered in the names of the holders of the Common Stock (which
certificates for Common Stock shall be deemed also to be certificates for
Rights) and not by separate certificates, and (y) the Rights will be
transferable only in connection with the transfer of the underlying shares of
Common Stock (including a transfer to the Company). As soon as practicable after
the Dis-
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tribution Date, the Rights Agent will send by first-class, insured,
postage-prepaid mail, to each record holder of the Common Stock as of the close
of business on the Distribution Date, at the address of such holder shown on the
records of the Company, one or more right certificates, in substantially the
form of Exhibit B hereto (the "Rights Certificates"), evidencing one Right for
each share of Common Stock so held, subject to adjustment as provided herein. In
the event that an adjustment in the number of Rights per share of Common Stock
has been made pursuant to Section 11(p) hereof, at the time of distribution of



the Rights Certificates, the Company shall make the necessary and appropriate
rounding adjustments (in accordance with Section 14(a) hereof) so that Rights
Certificates representing only whole numbers of Rights are distributed and cash
is paid in lieu of any fractional Rights. As of and after the Distribution Date,
the Rights will be evidenced solely by such Rights Certificates.

               (b) The Company will make available, as promptly as practicable
following the Record Date, a copy of a Summary of Rights, in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit C (the "Summary of Rights") to any holder Rights
who may so request from time to time prior to the Expiration Date. With respect
to certificates for the Common Stock outstanding as of the Record Date, or
issued subsequent to the Record Date, unless and until the Distribution Date
shall occur, the Rights will be evidenced by such certificates for the Common
Stock and the registered holders of the Common Stock shall also be the
registered holders of the associated Rights. Until the earlier of the
Distribution Date or the Expiration Date (as such term is defined in Section
7(a) hereof), the transfer of any certificates representing shares of Common
Stock in respect of which Rights have been issued shall also constitute the
transfer of the Rights associated with such shares of Common Stock.

               (c) Rights shall be issued in respect of all shares of Common
Stock which are issued (whether originally issued or from the Company's
treasury) after the Record Date but prior to the earlier of the Distribution
Date or the Expiration Date. Certificates representing such shares of Common
Stock shall also be deemed to be certificates for Rights, and shall bear the
follow-
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ing legend if such certificates are issued after the Record Date but prior to
the earlier of the Distribution Date or the Expiration Date:

            This certificate also evidences and entitles the holder hereof to
     certain Rights as set forth in the Rights Agreement between Newcastle
     Investment Corp. (the "Company") and the Rights Agent thereunder (the
     "Rights Agreement"), the terms of which are hereby incorporated herein by
     reference and a copy of which is on file at the principal offices of the
     Company. Under certain circumstances, as set forth in the Rights Agreement,
     such Rights will be evidenced by separate certificates and will no longer
     be evidenced by this certificate. The Company or the Rights Agent will mail
     to the holder of this certificate a copy of the Rights Agreement, as in
     effect on the date of mailing, without charge, promptly after receipt of a
     written request therefor. Under certain circumstances set forth in the
     Rights Agreement, Rights issued to, or held by, any Person who is, was or
     becomes an Acquiring Person or any Affiliate or Associate thereof (as such
     terms are defined in the Rights Agreement), whether currently held by or on
     behalf of such Person or by any subsequent holder, may become null and
     void.

With respect to such certificates containing the foregoing legend, until the
earlier of (i) the Distribution Date or (ii) the Expiration Date, the Rights
associated with the Common Stock represented by such certificates shall be
evidenced by such certificates alone and registered holders of Common Stock
shall also be the registered holders of the associated Rights, and the transfer
of any of such certificates shall also constitute the transfer of the Rights
associated with the Common Stock represented by such certificates.

            Section 4.  Form of Rights Certificates.

               (a) The Rights Certificates (and the forms of election to
purchase and of assignment to be printed on the reverse thereof) shall each be
substan-

                                       10
tially in the form set forth in Exhibit B hereto and may have such marks of
identification or designation and such legends, summaries or endorsements
printed thereon as the Company may deem appropriate and as are not inconsistent
with the provisions of this Agreement, or as may be required to comply with any
applicable law or with any rule or regulation made pursuant thereto or with any
rule or regulation of any stock exchange on which the Rights may from time to
time be listed, or to conform to usage. Subject to the provisions of Section 11
and Section 22 hereof, the Rights Certificates, whenever distributed, shall be
dated as of the Record Date and on their face shall entitle the holders thereof
to purchase such number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock as
shall be set forth therein at the price set forth therein (such exercise price
per one one-hundredth of a share, the "Purchase Price"), but the amount and type
of securities purchasable upon the exercise of each Right and the Purchase Price
thereof shall be subject to adjustment as provided herein.

               (b) Any Rights Certificate issued pursuant to Section 3(a),
Section 11(i) or Section 22 hereof that represents Rights beneficially owned by:
(i) an Acquiring Person or any Associate or Affiliate of an Acquiring Person,
(ii) a transferee of an Acquiring Person (or of any such Associate or Affiliate)
who becomes a transferee after the Acquiring Person becomes such, or (iii) a



transferee of an Acquiring Person (or of any such Associate or Affiliate) who
becomes a transferee prior to or concurrently with the Acquiring Person becoming
such and receives such Rights pursuant to either (A) a transfer (whether or not
for consideration) from the Acquiring Person to holders of equity interests in
such Acquiring Person or to any Person with whom such Acquiring Person has any
continuing agreement, arrangement or understanding regarding the transferred
Rights or (B) a transfer which the Board of Directors of the Company has
determined is part of a plan, arrangement or understanding which has as a
primary purpose or effect avoidance of Section 7(e) hereof, and any Rights
Certificate issued pursuant to Section 6 or Section 11 hereof upon transfer,
exchange, replacement or adjustment of any other Rights Certificate referred to
in this sentence, shall contain (to the extent feasible) the following legend:
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     The Rights represented by this Rights Certificate are or were beneficially
     owned by a Person who was or became an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or
     Associate of an Acquiring Person (as such terms are defined in the Rights
     Agreement). Accordingly, this Rights Certificate and the Rights represented
     hereby may become null and void in the circumstances specified in Section
     7(e) of the Rights Agreement.

            Section 5.  Countersignature and Registration.

               (a) The Rights Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the
Company by its Chairman of the Board, its President or any Vice President,
either manually or by facsimile signature, and shall have affixed thereto the
Company's seal or a facsimile thereof which shall be attested by the Secretary
or an Assistant Secretary of the Company, either manually or by facsimile
signature. The Rights Certificates shall be countersigned by the Rights Agent,
either manually or by facsimile signature and shall not be valid for any purpose
unless so countersigned. In case any officer of the Company who shall have
signed any of the Rights Certificates shall cease to be such officer of the
Company before countersignature by the Rights Agent and issuance and delivery by
the Company, such Rights Certificates, nevertheless, may be countersigned by
the Rights Agent and issued and delivered by the Company with the same force and
effect as though the person who signed such Rights Certificates had not ceased
to be such officer of the Company; and any Rights Certificates may be signed on
behalf of the Company by any person who, at the actual date of the execution of
such Rights Certificate, shall be a proper officer of the Company to sign such
Rights Certificate, although at the date of the execution of this Rights
Agreement any such person was not such an officer.

               (b) Following the Distribution Date, the Rights Agent will keep,
or cause to be kept, at its principal office or offices designated as the
appropriate place for surrender of Rights Certificates upon exercise or
transfer, books for registration and transfer of the Rights Certificates issued
hereunder. Such books shall show the names and addresses of the respective
holders of
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the Rights Certificates, the number of Rights evidenced on its face by each of
the Rights Certificates and the date of each of the Rights Certificates.

            Section 6. Transfer, Split-Up, Combination and Exchange of Rights
Certificates; Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Rights Certificates.

               (a) Subject to the provisions of Section 4(b), Section 7(e) and
Section 14 hereof, at any time after the close of business on the Distribution
Date, and at or prior to the close of business on the Expiration Date, any
Rights Certificate or Certificates (other than Rights Certificates representing
Rights that may have been exchanged pursuant to Section 24 hereof) may be
transferred, split up, combined or exchanged for another Rights Certificate or
Certificates, entitling the registered holder to purchase a like number of one
one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock (or, following a Triggering Event,
Common Stock, other securities, cash or other assets, as the case may be) as the
Rights Certificate or Certificates surrendered then entitles such holder (or
former holder in the case of a transfer) to purchase. Any registered holder
desiring to transfer, split up, combine or exchange any Rights Certificate or
Certificates shall make such request in writing delivered to the Rights Agent,
and shall surrender the Rights Certificate or Certificates to be transferred,
split up, combined or exchanged at the principal office or offices of the Rights
Agent designated for such purpose. Neither the Rights Agent nor the Company
shall be obligated to take any action whatsoever with respect to the transfer of
any such surrendered Rights Certificate until the registered holder shall have
completed and signed the certificate contained in the form of assignment on the
reverse side of such Rights Certificate and shall have provided such additional
evidence of the identity of the Beneficial Owner (or former Beneficial Owner) or
Affiliates or Associates thereof as the Company shall reasonably request.
Thereupon the Rights Agent shall, subject to Section 4(b), Section 7(e), Section
14 hereof and Section 24 hereof, countersign and deliver to the Person entitled
thereto a Rights Certificate or Rights Certificates, as the case may be, as so
requested. The Company may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax
or governmental charge that may be imposed in connection
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with any transfer, split up, combination or exchange of Rights Certificates.

               (b) Upon receipt by the Company and the Rights Agent of evidence
reasonably satisfactory to them of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of
a Rights Certificate, and, in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity
or security reasonably satisfactory to them, and reimbursement to the Company
and the Rights Agent of all reasonable expenses incidental thereto, and upon
surrender to the Rights Agent and cancellation of the Rights Certificate if
mutilated, the Company will execute and deliver a new Rights Certificate of like
tenor to the Rights Agent for countersignature and delivery to the registered
owner in lieu of the Rights Certificate so lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated.

            Section 7. Exercise of Rights; Purchase Price; Expiration Date of
Rights.

               (a) Subject to Section 7(e) hereof, at any time after the
Distribution Date the registered holder of any Rights Certificate may exercise
the Rights evidenced thereby (except as otherwise provided herein including,
without limitation, the restrictions on exercisability set forth in Section
9(c), Section 11(a)(iii) and Section 23(a) hereof) in whole or in part upon
surrender of the Rights Certificate, with the form of election to purchase and
the certificate on the reverse side thereof duly executed, to the Rights Agent
at the principal office or offices of the Rights Agent designated for such
purpose, together with payment of the aggregate Purchase Price with respect to
the total number of one one-hundredths of a share (or other securities, cash or
other assets, as the case may be) as to which such surrendered Rights are then
exercisable, at or prior to the earlier of (i) 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on
October 16, 2012, or such later date as may be established by the Board of
Directors prior to the expiration of the Rights (such date, as it may be
extended by the Board, the ("Final Expiration Date"), or (ii) the time at which
the Rights are redeemed or exchanged as provided in Section 23 and Section 24
hereof (the earlier of (i) and (ii) being herein referred to as the "Expiration
Date").
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               (b) The Purchase Price for each one one-hundredth of a share of
Preferred Stock pursuant to the exercise of a Right shall initially be $70, and
shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in Section 11 and
Section 13(a) hereof and shall be payable in accordance with paragraph (c)
below.

               (c) Upon receipt of a Rights Certificate representing exercisable
Rights, with the form of election to purchase and the certificate duly executed,
accompanied by payment, with respect to each Right so exercised, of the Purchase
Price per one one-hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock (or other shares,
securities, cash or other assets, as the case may be) to be purchased as set
forth below and an amount equal to any applicable transfer tax, the Rights Agent
shall, subject to Section 20(k) hereof, thereupon promptly (i) (A) requisition
from any transfer agent of the shares of Preferred Stock (or make available, if
the Rights Agent is the transfer agent for such shares) certificates for the
total number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock to be purchased
and the Company hereby irrevocably authorizes its transfer agent to comply with
all such requests, or (B) if the Company shall have elected to deposit the total
number of shares of Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise of the Rights
hereunder with a depositary agent, requisition from the depositary agent
depositary receipts representing such number of one one-hundredths of a share of
Preferred Stock as are to be purchased (in which case certificates for the
shares of Preferred Stock represented by such receipts shall be deposited by the
transfer agent with the depositary agent) and the Company will direct the
depositary agent to comply with such request, (ii) requisition from the Company
the amount of cash, if any, to be paid in lieu of fractional shares in
accordance with Section 14 hereof, (iii) after receipt of such certificates or
depositary receipts, cause the same to be delivered to or, upon the order of the
registered holder of such Rights Certificate, registered in such name or names
as may be designated by such holder, and (iv) after receipt thereof, deliver
such cash, if any, to or upon the order of the registered holder of such Rights
Certificate. The payment of the Purchase Price (as such amount may be reduced
pursuant to Section 11(a)(iii) hereof) shall be made in cash or by certified
bank check or bank draft payable to the order of the Company. In the event
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that the Company is obligated to issue other securities (including Common Stock)
of the Company, pay cash and/or distribute other property pursuant to Section
11(a) hereof, the Company will make all arrangements necessary so that such
other securities, cash and/or other property are available for distribution by
the Rights Agent, if and when appropriate. The Company reserves the right to
require prior to the occurrence of a Triggering Event that, upon any exercise of
Rights, a number of Rights be exercised so that only whole shares of Preferred
Stock would be issued.

               ((d)) In case the registered holder of any Rights Certificate



shall exercise less than all the Rights evidenced thereby, a new Rights
Certificate evidencing Rights equivalent to the Rights remaining unexercised
shall be issued by the Rights Agent and delivered to, or upon the order of, the
registered holder of such Rights Certificate, registered in such name or names
as may be designated by such holder, subject to the provisions of Section 14
hereof.

               ((e)) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, from and after the first occurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii) Event, any
Rights beneficially owned by (i) an Acquiring Person or an Associate or
Affiliate of an Acquiring Person, (ii) a transferee of an Acquiring Person (or
of any such Associate or Affiliate) who becomes a transferee after the Acquiring
Person becomes such, or (iii) a transferee of an Acquiring Person (or of any
such Associate or Affiliate) who becomes a transferee prior to or concurrently
with the Acquiring Person becoming such and receives such Rights pursuant to
either (A) a transfer (whether or not for consideration) from the Acquiring
Person to holders of equity interests in such Acquiring Person or to any Person
with whom the Acquiring Person has any continuing agreement, arrangement or
understanding regarding the transferred Rights or (B) a transfer which the Board
of Directors of the Company have determined is part of a plan, arrangement or
understanding which has as a primary purpose or effect the avoidance of this
Section 7(e), shall become null and void without any further action and no
holder of such Rights shall have any rights whatsoever with respect to such
Rights, whether under any provision of this Agreement or otherwise. The Company
shall use
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all reasonable efforts to insure that the provisions of this Section 7(e) and
Section 4(b) hereof are complied with, but shall have no liability to any holder
of Rights Certificates or any other Person as a result of its failure to make
any determinations with respect to an Acquiring Person or its Affiliates,
Associates or transferees hereunder.

               (f) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
neither the Rights Agent nor the Company shall be obligated to undertake any
action with respect to a registered holder upon the occurrence of any purported
exercise as set forth in this Section 7 unless such registered holder shall have
(i) completed and signed the certificate contained in the form of election to
purchase set forth on the reverse side of the Rights Certificate surrendered for
such exercise, and (ii) provided such additional evidence of the identity of the
Beneficial Owner (or former Beneficial Owner) or Affiliates or Associates
thereof as the Company shall reasonably request.

            Section 8. Cancellation and Destruction of Rights Certificates. All
Rights Certificates surrendered for the purpose of exercise, transfer, split-up,
combination or exchange shall, if surrendered to the Company or any of its
agents, be delivered to the Rights Agent for cancellation or in cancelled form,
or, if surrendered to the Rights Agent, shall be cancelled by it, and no Rights
Certificates shall be issued in lieu thereof except as expressly permitted by
any of the provisions of this Agreement. The Company shall deliver to the Rights
Agent for cancellation and retirement, and the Rights Agent shall so cancel and
retire, any other Rights Certificate purchased or acquired by the Company
otherwise than upon the exercise thereof. The Rights Agent shall deliver all
cancelled Rights Certificates to the Company, or shall, at the written request
of the Company, destroy such cancelled Rights Certificates, and in such case
shall deliver a certificate of destruction thereof to the Company.

            Section 9. Reservation and Availability of Capital Stock.

                                       17
               (a) The Company covenants and agrees that it will cause to be
reserved and kept available out of its authorized and unissued shares of
Preferred Stock (and, following the occurrence of a Triggering Event, out of
its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock and/or other securities or
out of its authorized and issued shares held in its treasury), the number of
shares of Preferred Stock (and, following the occurrence of a Triggering Event,
Common Stock and/or other securities) that, as provided in this Agreement
including Section 11(a)(iii) hereof, will be sufficient to permit the exercise
in full of all outstanding Rights.

               (b) So long as the shares of Preferred Stock (and, following the
occurrence of a Triggering Event, Common Stock and/or other securities) issuable
and deliverable upon the exercise of the Rights may be listed on any national
securities exchange, the Company shall use its best efforts to cause, from and
after such time as the Rights become exercisable, all shares reserved for such
issuance to be listed on such exchange upon official notice of issuance upon
such exercise.

               (c) The Company shall use its best efforts to (i) file, as soon
as practicable following the earliest date after the first occurrence of a
Section 11(a)(ii) Event on which the consideration to be delivered by the
Company upon exercise of the Rights has been determined in accordance with
Section 11(a)(iii) hereof, a registration statement under the Act, with respect
to the securities purchasable upon exercise of the Rights on an appropriate



form, (ii) cause such registration statement to become effective as soon as
practicable after such filing, and (iii) cause such registration statement to
remain effective (with a prospectus at all times meeting the requirements of the
Act) until the earlier of (A) the date as of which the Rights are no longer
exercisable for such securities, and (B) the date of the expiration of the
Rights. The Company will also take such action as may be appropriate under, or
to ensure compliance with, the securities or "blue sky" laws of the various
states in connection with the exercisability of the Rights. The Company may
temporarily suspend, for a period of time not to exceed ninety (90) days after
the date set forth in clause (i) of the first sentence of this Section 9(c), the
exercisability of the Rights in
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order to prepare and file such registration statement and permit it to become
effective. Upon any such suspension, the Company shall issue a public
announcement stating that the exercisability of the Rights has been temporarily
suspended, as well as a public announcement at such time as the suspension has
been rescinded. In addition, if the Company shall determine that a registration
statement is required following the Distribution Date, the Company may
temporarily suspend the exercisability of the Rights until such time as a
registration statement has been declared effective. Notwithstanding any
provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Rights shall not be exercisable
in any jurisdiction if the requisite qualification in such jurisdiction shall
not have been obtained, the exercise thereof shall not be permitted under
applicable law, or a registration statement shall not have been declared
effective.

               (d) The Company covenants and agrees that it will take all such
action as may be necessary to ensure that all one one-hundredths of a share of
Preferred Stock (and, following the occurrence of a Triggering Event, Common
Stock and/or other securities) delivered upon exercise of Rights shall, at the
time of delivery of the certificates for such shares (subject to payment of the
Purchase Price), be duly and validly authorized and issued and fully paid and
nonassessable.

               (e) The Company further covenants and agrees that it will pay
when due and payable any and all federal and state transfer taxes and charges
which may be payable in respect of the issuance or delivery of the Rights
Certificates and of any certificates for a number of one one-hundredths of a
share of Preferred Stock (or Common Stock and/or other securities, as the case
may be) upon the exercise of Rights. The Company shall not, however, be required
to pay any transfer tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer or
delivery of Rights Certificates to a Person other than, or the issuance or
delivery of a number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock (or
Common Stock
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and/or other securities, as the case may be) in respect of a name other than
that of the registered holder of the Rights Certificates evidencing Rights
surrendered for exercise or to issue or deliver any certificates for a number of
one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock (or Common Stock and/or other
securities, as the case may be) in a name other than that of the registered
holder upon the exercise of any Rights until such tax shall have been paid (any
such tax being payable by the holder of such Rights Certificate at the time of
surrender) or until it has been established to the Company's satisfaction that
no such tax is due.

               Section 10. Preferred Stock Record Date. Each person in whose
name any certificate for a number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred
Stock (or Common Stock and/or other securities, as the case may be) is issued
upon the exercise of Rights shall for all purposes be deemed to have become the
holder of record of such fractional shares of Preferred Stock (or Common Stock
and/or other securities, as the case may be) represented thereby on, and such
certificate shall be dated, the date upon which the Rights Certificate
evidencing such Rights was duly surrendered and payment of the Purchase Price
(and all applicable transfer taxes) was made; provided, however, that if the
date of such surrender and payment is a date upon which the Preferred Stock (or
Common Stock and/or other securities, as the case may be) transfer books of the
Company are closed, such Person shall be deemed to have become the record holder
of such shares (fractional or otherwise) on, and such certificate shall be
dated, the next succeeding Business Day on which the Preferred Stock (or Common
Stock and/or other securities, as the case may be) transfer books of the Company
are open. Prior to the exercise of the Rights evidenced thereby, the holder of a
Rights Certificate shall not be entitled to any rights of a stockholder of the
Company with respect to shares for which the Rights shall be exercisable,
including, without limitation, the right to vote, to receive dividends or other
distributions or to exercise any preemptive rights, and shall not be entitled to
receive any notice of any proceedings of the Company, except as provided herein.

            Section 11. Adjustment of Purchase Price, Number and Kind of Shares
or Number of Rights. The Purchase Price, the number and kind of shares covered
by each Right and the number of Rights outstanding are subject to adjustment
from time to time as provided in this Section 11.
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               (a)(i) In the event the Company shall at any time after the date
      of this Agreement (A) declare a dividend on the Preferred Stock payable in
      shares of Preferred Stock, (B) subdivide the outstanding Preferred Stock,
      (C) combine the outstanding Preferred Stock into a smaller number of
      shares, or (D) issue any shares of its capital stock in a reclassification
      of the Preferred Stock (including any such reclassification in connection
      with a consolidation or merger in which the Company is the continuing or
      surviving corporation), except as otherwise provided in this Section 11(a)
      and Section 7(e) hereof, the Purchase Price in effect at the time of the
      record date for such dividend or of the effective date of such
      subdivision, combination or reclassification, and the number and kind of
      shares of Preferred Stock or capital stock, as the case may be, issuable
      on such date, shall be proportionately adjusted so that the holder of any
      Right exercised after such time shall be entitled to receive, upon payment
      of the Purchase Price then in effect, the aggregate number and kind of
      shares of Preferred Stock or capital stock, as the case may be, which, if
      such Right had been exercised immediately prior to such date and at a time
      when the Preferred Stock transfer books of the Company were open, such
      holder would have owned upon such exercise and been entitled to receive by
      virtue of such dividend, subdivision, combination or reclassification. If
      an event occurs which would require an adjustment under both this Section
      11(a)(i) and Section 11(a)(ii) hereof, the adjustment provided for in this
      Section 11(a)(i) shall be in addition to, and shall be made prior to, any
      adjustment required pursuant to Section 11(a)(ii) hereof.

                        (ii) In the event: any Person shall, at any time after
      the Record Date, become an Acquiring Person, unless the event causing the
      Person to become an Acquiring Person is a transaction set forth in Section
      13(a) hereof, or is an acquisition of shares of Com-
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      mon Stock pursuant to a tender offer or an exchange offer for all
      outstanding shares of Common Stock at a price and on terms determined by
      at least a majority of the members of the Board of Directors who are not
      officers of the Company and who are not representatives, nominees,
      Affiliates or Associates of an Acquiring Person after receiving advice
      from one or more investment banking firms, to be (a) at a price which is
      fair and not inadequate (taking into account all factors which such
      members of the Board deem relevant, including, without limitation, prices
      which could reasonably be achieved if the Company or its assets were sold
      on an orderly basis designed to realize maximum value) and (b) otherwise
      in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders (a "Qualified
      Offer"),

then, promptly following the occurrence of such event, proper provision shall be
made so that each holder of a Right (except as provided below and in Section
7(e) hereof) shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise thereof
at the then current Purchase Price in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, in lieu of a number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred
Stock, such number of shares of Common Stock of the Company as shall equal the
result obtained by (x) multiplying the then current Purchase Price by the then
number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right was
exercisable immediately prior to the first occurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii)
Event, and (y) dividing that product (which, following such first occurrence,
shall thereafter be referred to as the "Purchase Price" for each Right and for
all purposes of this Agreement) by 50% of the Current Market Price (determined
pursuant to Section 11(d) hereof) per share of Common Stock on the date of such
first occurrence (such number of shares, the "Adjustment Shares").

                        (iii) In the event that the number of shares of Common
      Stock which are authorized by the Company's Restated Articles of
      Incorporation, but which are not outstanding or reserved for issuance for
      purposes other than upon exercise of the Rights, are not
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      sufficient to permit the exercise in full of the Rights in accordance with
      the foregoing subparagraph (ii) of this Section 11(a), the Company shall
      (A) determine the value of the Adjustment Shares issuable upon the
      exercise of a Right (the "Current Value"), and (B) with respect to each
      Right (subject to Section 7(e) hereof), make adequate provision to
      substitute for the Adjustment Shares, upon the exercise of a Right and
      payment of the applicable Purchase Price, (1) cash, (2) a reduction in the
      Purchase Price, (3) Common Stock or other equity securities of the Company
      (including, without limitation, shares, or units of shares, of preferred
      stock, such as the Preferred Stock, which the Board has deemed to have
      essentially the same value or economic rights as shares of Common Stock
      (such shares of preferred stock being referred to as "Common Stock
      Equivalents")), (4) debt securities of the Company, (5) other assets, or
      (6) any combination of the foregoing, having an aggregate value equal to
      the Current Value (less the amount of any reduction in the Purchase
      Price), where such aggregate value has been determined by the Board based
      upon the advice of a nationally recognized investment banking firm
      selected by the Board; provided, however, that if the Company shall not
      have made adequate provision to deliver value pursuant to clause (B) above



      within thirty (30) days following the later of (x) the first occurrence
      of a Section 11(a)(ii) Event and (y) the date on which the Company's right
      of redemption pursuant to Section 23(a) expires (the later of (x) and (y)
      being referred to herein as the "Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date"), then
      the Company shall be obligated to deliver, upon the surrender for exercise
      of a Right and without requiring payment of the Purchase Price, shares of
      Common Stock (to the extent available) and then, if necessary, cash, which
      shares and/or cash have an aggregate value equal to the Spread. For
      purposes of the preceding sentence, the term "Spread" shall mean the
      excess of (i) the Current Value over (ii) the Purchase Price. If

                                       23
      the Board determines in good faith that it is likely that sufficient
      additional shares of Common Stock could be authorized for issuance upon
      exercise in full of the Rights, the thirty (30) day period set forth above
      may be extended to the extent necessary, but not more than ninety (90)
      days after the Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date, in order that the Company
      may seek shareholder approval for the authorization of such additional
      shares (such thirty (30) day period, as it may be extended, is herein
      called the "Substitution Period"). To the extent that action is to be
      taken pursuant to the first and/or third sentences of this Section
      11(a)(iii), the Company (1) shall provide, subject to Section 7(e) hereof,
      that such action shall apply uniformly to all outstanding Rights, and (2)
      may suspend the exercisability of the Rights until the expiration of the
      Substitution Period in order to seek such shareholder approval for such
      authorization of additional shares and/or to decide the appropriate form
      of distribution to be made pursuant to such first sentence and to
      determine the value thereof. In the event of any such suspension, the
      Company shall issue a public announcement stating that the exercisability
      of the Rights has been temporarily suspended, as well as a public
      announcement at such time as the suspension is no longer in effect. For
      purposes of this Section 11(a)(iii), the value of each Adjustment Share
      shall be the current market price per share of the Common Stock on the
      Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date and the per share or per unit value of any
      Common Stock Equivalent shall be deemed to equal the current market price
      per share of the Common Stock on such date.

               (b) In case the Company shall fix a record date for the issuance
of rights, options or warrants to all holders of Preferred Stock entitling them
to subscribe for or purchase (for a period expiring within forty-five (45)
calendar days after such record date) Preferred Stock (or shares having the same
rights, privileges and preferences as the shares of Preferred Stock
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("Equivalent Preferred Stock")) or securities convertible into Preferred Stock
or Equivalent Preferred Stock at a price per share of Preferred Stock or per
share of Equivalent Preferred Stock (or having a conversion price per share, if
a security convertible into Preferred Stock or Equivalent Preferred Stock) less
than the Current Market Price (as determined pursuant to Section 11(d) hereof)
per share of Preferred Stock on such record date, the Purchase Price to be in
effect after such record date shall be determined by multiplying the Purchase
Price in effect immediately prior to such record date by a fraction, the
numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Preferred Stock outstanding
on such record date, plus the number of shares of Preferred Stock which the
aggregate offering price of the total number of shares of Preferred Stock and/or
Equivalent Preferred Stock so to be offered (and/or the aggregate initial
conversion price of the convertible securities so to be offered) would purchase
at such Current Market Price, and the denominator of which shall be the number
of shares of Preferred Stock outstanding on such record date, plus the number of
additional shares of Preferred Stock and/or Equivalent Preferred Stock to be
offered for subscription or purchase (or into which the convertible securities
so to be offered are initially convertible). In case such subscription price may
be paid by delivery of consideration, part or all of which may be in a form
other than cash, the value of such consideration shall be as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors of the Company, whose determination shall be
described in a statement filed with the Rights Agent and shall be binding on the
Rights Agent and the holders of the Rights. Shares of Preferred Stock owned by
or held for the account of the Company shall not be deemed outstanding for the
purpose of any such computation. Such adjustment shall be made successively
whenever such a record date is fixed, and in the event that such rights or
warrants are not so issued, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted to be the
Purchase Price which would then be in effect if such record date had not been
fixed.

               (c) In case the Company shall fix a record date for a
distribution to all holders of Preferred Stock (including any such distribution
made in connection with a consolidation or merger in which the Company is the
continuing corporation), cash (other than
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a regular quarterly cash dividend out of the earnings or retained earnings of
the Company), assets (other than a dividend payable in Preferred Stock, but
including any dividend payable in stock other than Preferred Stock) or evidences
of indebtedness, or of subscription rights or warrants (excluding those
referred to in Section 11(b) hereof), the Purchase Price to be in effect after



such record date shall be deter mined by multiplying the Purchase Price in
effect immediately prior to such record date by a fraction, the numerator of
which shall be the Current Market Price (as determined pursuant to Section 11(d)
hereof) per share of Preferred Stock on such record date, less the fair market
value (as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Company,
whose determination shall be described in a statement filed with the Rights
Agent) of the portion of the cash, assets or evidences of indebtedness so to be
distributed or of such subscription rights or warrants applicable to a share of
Preferred Stock, and the denominator of which shall be such Current Market Price
(as determined pursuant to Section 11(d) hereof) per share of Preferred Stock.
Such adjustments shall be made successively whenever such a record date is
fixed, and in the event that such distribution is not so made, the Purchase
Price shall be adjusted to be the Purchase Price which would have been in effect
if such record date had not been fixed.

               (d)(i) For the purpose of any computation hereunder, other than
computations made pursuant to Section 11(a)(iii) hereof, the Current Market
Price per share of Common Stock on any date shall be deemed to be the average of
the daily closing prices per share of such Common Stock for the thirty (30)
consecutive Trading Days immediately prior to such date, and for purposes of
computations made pursuant to Section 11(a)(iii) hereof, the Current Market
Price per share of Common Stock on any date shall be deemed to be the average of
the daily closing prices per share of such Common Stock for the ten (10)
consecutive Trading Days immediately following such date; provided, however,
that in the event that the Current Market Price per share of the Common Stock is
determined during a period following the announcement by the issuer of such
Common Stock of (A) a dividend or distribution on such Common Stock payable in
shares of such Common Stock or securities convertible into shares
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of such Common Stock (other than the Rights), or (B) any subdivision,
combination or reclassification of such Common Stock, and the ex-dividend date
for such dividend or distribution, or the record date for such subdivision,
combination or reclassification shall not have occurred prior to the
commencement of the requisite thirty (30) Trading Day or ten (10) Trading Day
period, as set forth above, then, and in each such case, the Current Market
Price shall be properly adjusted to take into account ex-dividend trading. The
closing price for each day shall be the last sale price, regular way, or, in
case no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and
asked prices, regular way, in either case as reported in the principal
consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed or
admitted to trading on the New York Stock Exchange or, if the shares of Common
Stock are not listed or admitted to trading on the New York Stock Exchange, as
reported in the principal consolidated transaction reporting system with respect
to securities listed on the principal national securities exchange on which the
shares of Common Stock are listed or admitted to trading or, if the shares of
Common Stock are not listed or admitted to trading on any national securities
exchange, the last quoted price or, if not so quoted, the average of the high
bid and low asked prices in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the
National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System ("NASDAQ")
or such other system then in use, or, if on any such date the shares of Common
Stock are not quoted by any such organization, the average of the closing bid
and asked prices as furnished by a professional market maker making a market in
the Common Stock selected by the Board. If on any such date no market maker is
making a market in the Common Stock, the fair value of such shares on such date
as determined in good faith by the Board shall be used. The term "Trading Day"
shall mean a day on which the principal national securities exchange on which
the shares of Common Stock are listed or admitted to trading is open for the
transaction of business or, if the shares of Common Stock are not listed or
admitted to trading on any national securities exchange, a Business Day. If the
Common Stock is not publicly held or not so listed or traded, Current Market
Price per share shall mean the fair value per share as determined in good faith
by the Board, whose determination shall be described in a statement filed
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with the Rights Agent and shall be conclusive for all purposes.

                        (ii) For the purpose of any computation hereunder, the
      Current Market Price per share of Preferred Stock shall be determined in
      the same manner as set forth above for the Common Stock in clause (i) of
      this Section 11(d) (other than the last sentence thereof). If the Current
      Market Price per share of Preferred Stock cannot be determined in the
      manner provided above or if the Preferred Stock is not publicly held or
      listed or traded in a manner described in clause (i) of this Section
      11(d), the Current Market Price per share of Preferred Stock shall be
      conclusively deemed to be an amount equal to 100 (as such number may be
      appropriately adjusted for such events as stock splits, stock dividends
      and recapitalizations with respect to the Common Stock occurring after the
      date of this Agreement) multiplied by the Current Market Price per share
      of the Common Stock. If neither the Common Stock nor the Preferred Stock
      is publicly held or so listed or traded, Current Market Price per share of
      the Preferred Stock shall mean the fair value per share as determined in
      good faith by the Board, whose determination shall be described in a
      statement filed with the Rights Agent and shall be conclusive for all
      purposes. For all purposes of this Agreement, the Current Market Price of



      a Unit shall be equal to the Current Market Price of one share of
      Preferred Stock divided by 100.

               (e) Anything herein to the contrary not withstanding, no
adjustment in the Purchase Price shall be required unless such adjustment would
require an increase or decrease of at least one percent (1%) in the Purchase
Price; provided, however, that any adjustments which by reason of this Section
11(e) are not required to be made shall be carried forward and taken into
account in any subsequent adjustment. All calculations under this Section 11
shall be made to the nearest cent or to the nearest ten-thousandth of a share of
Common Stock or other share or one-millionth of a share of Preferred
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Stock, as the case may be. Notwithstanding the first sentence of this Section
11(e), any adjustment required by this Section 11 shall be made no later than
the earlier of (i) three (3) years from the date of the transaction which
mandates such adjustment, or (ii) the Expiration Date.

               (f) If as a result of an adjustment made pursuant to Section
11(a)(ii) or Section 13(a) hereof, the holder of any Right thereafter exercised
shall become entitled to receive any shares of capital stock other than
Preferred Stock, thereafter the number of such other shares so receivable upon
exercise of any Right and the Purchase Price thereof shall be subject to
adjustment from time to time in a manner and on terms as nearly equivalent as
practicable to the provisions with respect to the Preferred Stock contained in
Sections 11(a), (b), (c), (e), (g), (h), (i), (j), (k) and (m), and the
provisions of Sections 7, 9, 10, 13 and 14 hereof with respect to the Preferred
Stock shall apply on like terms to any such other shares.

               (g) All Rights originally issued by the Company subsequent to any
adjustment made to the Purchase Price hereunder shall evidence the right to
purchase, at the adjusted Purchase Price, the number of one one-hundredths of a
share of Preferred Stock purchasable from time to time hereunder upon exercise
of the Rights, all subject to further adjustment as provided herein.

               (h) Unless the Company shall have exercised its election as
provided in Section 11(i), upon each adjustment of the Purchase Price as a
result of the calculations made in Sections 11(b) and (c), each Right
outstanding immediately prior to the making of such adjustment shall thereafter
evidence the right to purchase, at the adjusted Purchase Price, that number of
one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock (calculated to the nearest
one-millionth) obtained by (i) multiplying (x) the number of one one-hundredths
of a share covered by a Right immediately prior to this adjustment, by (y) the
Purchase Price in effect immediately prior to such adjustment of the Purchase
Price, and (ii) dividing the product so obtained by the Purchase Price in effect
immediately after such adjustment of the Purchase Price.
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               (i) The Company may elect on or after the date of any adjustment
of the Purchase Price to adjust the number of Rights, in lieu of any adjustment
in the number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock purchasable
upon the exercise of a Right. Each of the Rights out standing after the
adjustment in the number of Rights shall be exercisable for the number of one
one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right was exercisable
immediately prior to such adjustment. Each Right held of record prior to such
adjustment of the number of Rights shall become that number of Rights
(calculated to the nearest one-ten-thousandth) obtained by dividing the Purchase
Price in effect immediately prior to adjustment of the Purchase Price by the
Purchase Price in effect immediately after adjustment of the Purchase Price. The
Company shall make a public announcement of its election to adjust the number of
Rights, indicating the record date for the adjustment, and, if known at the
time, the amount of the adjustment to be made. This record date may be the date
on which the Purchase Price is adjusted or any day thereafter, but, if the
Rights Certificates have been issued, shall be at least ten (10) days later than
the date of the public announcement. If Rights Certificates have been issued,
upon each adjustment of the number of Rights pursuant to this Section 11(i), the
Company shall, as promptly as practicable, cause to be distributed to holders of
record of Rights Certificates on such record date Rights Certificates
evidencing, subject to Section 14 hereof, the additional Rights to which such
holders shall be entitled as a result of such adjustment, or, at the option of
the Company, shall cause to be distributed to such holders of record in
substitution and replacement for the Rights Certificates held by such holders
prior to the date of adjustment, and upon surrender thereof, if required by the
Company, new Rights Certificates evidencing all the Rights to which such holders
shall be entitled after such adjustment. Rights Certificates so to be
distributed shall be issued, executed and countersigned in the manner provided
for herein (and may bear, at the option of the Company, the adjusted Purchase
Price) and shall be registered in the names of the holders of record of Rights
Certificates on the record date specified in the public announcement.
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               (j) Irrespective of any adjustment or change in the Purchase
Price or the number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock



issuable upon the exercise of the Rights, the Rights Certificates theretofore
and thereafter issued may continue to express the Purchase Price per one
one-hundredth of a share and the number of one one-hundredth of a share which
were expressed in the initial Rights Certificates issued hereunder.

               (k) Before taking any action that would cause an adjustment
reducing the Purchase Price below the then stated value, if any, of the number
of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock issuable upon exercise of
the Rights, the Company shall take any corporate action which may, in the
opinion of its counsel, be necessary in order that the Company may validly and
legally issue fully paid and nonassessable such number of one one-hundredths of
a share of Preferred Stock at such adjusted Purchase Price.

               (l) In any case in which this Section 11 shall require that an
adjustment in the Purchase Price be made effective as of a record date for a
specified event, the Company may elect to defer until the occurrence of such
event the issuance to the holder of any Right exercised after such record date
the number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock and other capital
stock or securities of the Company, if any, issuable upon such exercise over and
above the number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock and other
capital stock or securities of the Company, if any, issuable upon such exercise
on the basis of the Purchase Price in effect prior to such adjustment; provided,
however, that the Company shall deliver to such holder a due bill or other
appropriate instrument evidencing such holder's right to receive such additional
shares (fractional or otherwise) or securities upon the occurrence of the event
requiring such adjustment.

               (m) Anything in this Section 11 to the contrary notwithstanding,
the Company shall be entitled to make such reductions in the Purchase Price, in
addition to those adjustments expressly required by this Section 11, as and to
the extent that in their good faith judgment the Board of Directors of the
Company shall
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determine to be advisable in order that any (i) consolidation or subdivision of
the Preferred Stock, (ii) issuance wholly for cash of any shares of Preferred
Stock at less than the Current Market Price, (iii) issuance wholly for cash of
shares of Preferred Stock or securities which by their terms are convertible
into or exchangeable for shares of Preferred Stock, (iv) stock dividends or (v)
issuance of rights, options or warrants referred to in this Section 11,
hereafter made by the Company to holders of its Preferred Stock shall not be
taxable to such stockholders.

               (n) The Company covenants and agrees that it shall not, at any
time after the Distribution Date, (i) consolidate with any other Person (other
than a Subsidiary of the Company in a transaction which complies with Section
11(o) hereof), (ii) merge with or into any other Person (other than a Subsidiary
of the Company in a transaction which complies with Section 11(o) hereof), or
(iii) sell or transfer (or permit any Subsidiary to sell or transfer), in one
transaction, or a series of related transactions, assets, cash flow or earning
power aggregating more than 50% of the assets or earning power of the Company
and its Subsidiaries (taken as a whole) to any other Person or Persons (other
than the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries in one or more transactions
each of which complies with Section 11(o) hereof), if (x) at the time of or
immediately after such consolidation, merger or sale there are any rights,
warrants or other instruments or securities outstanding or agreements in effect
which would substantially diminish or otherwise eliminate the benefits intended
to be afforded by the Rights or (y) prior to, simultaneously with or immediately
after such consolidation, merger or sale, the shareholders of the Person who
constitutes, or would constitute, the "Principal Party" for purposes of Section
13(a) hereof shall have received a distribution of Rights previously owned by
such Person or any of its Affiliates and Associates.

               (o) The Company covenants and agrees that, after the Distribution
Date, it will not, except as permitted by Section 23 or Section 26 hereof, take
(or permit any Subsidiary to take) any action if at the time such action is
taken it is reasonably foreseeable that such action will diminish substantially
or otherwise
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eliminate the benefits intended to be afforded by the Rights.

               (p) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding,
in the event that the Company shall at any time after the Rights Dividend
Declaration Date and prior to the Distribution Date (i) declare a dividend on
the outstanding shares of Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock, (ii)
subdivide the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (iii) combine the
outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, the number
of Rights associated with each share of Common Stock then outstanding, or issued
or delivered thereafter but prior to the Distribution Date, shall be
proportionately adjusted so that the number of Rights thereafter associated with
each share of Common Stock following any such event shall equal the result
obtained by multiplying the number of Rights associated with each share of
Common Stock immediately prior to such event by a fraction the numerator which
shall be the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately



prior to the occurrence of the event and the denominator of which shall be the
total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately following the
occurrence of such event.

            Section 12. Certificate of Adjusted Purchase Price or Number of
Shares. Whenever an adjustment is made as provided in Section 11 and Section 13
hereof, the Company shall (a) promptly prepare a certificate setting forth such
adjustment and a brief statement of the facts accounting for such adjustment,
(b) promptly file with the Rights Agent, and with each transfer agent for the
Preferred Stock and the Common Stock, a copy of such certificate and (c) if a
Distribution Date has occurred, mail a brief summary thereof to each holder of a
Rights Certificate (or, if prior to the Distribution Date, to each holder of a
Certificate representing shares of Common Stock) in accordance with Section 27
hereof. The
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Rights Agent shall be fully protected in relying on any such certificate and on
any adjustment therein contained.

            Section 13. Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Transfer of Assets Cash
Flow or Earning Power.

            (a) In the event that, following the Stock Acquisition Date,
directly or indirectly, (x) the Company shall consolidate with, or merge with
and into, any other Person (other than a Subsidiary of the Company in a
transaction which complies with Section 11(o) hereof), and the Company shall not
be the continuing or surviving corporation of such consolidation or merger, (y)
any Person (other than a Subsidiary of the Company in a transaction which
complies with Section 11(o) hereof) shall consolidate with, or merge with or
into, the Company, and the Company shall be the continuing or surviving
corporation of such consolidation or merger and, in connection with such
consolidation or merger, all or part of the outstanding shares of Common Stock
shall be changed into or exchanged for stock or other securities of any other
Person or cash or any other property, or (z) the Company shall sell or otherwise
transfer (or one or more of its Subsidiaries shall sell or otherwise transfer),
in one transaction or a series of related transactions, assets, cash flow or
earning power aggregating more than 50% of the assets, cash flow or earning
power of the Company and its Subsidiaries (taken as a whole) to any Person or
Persons (other than the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company in one or more
transactions each of which complies with Section 11(o) hereof), then, and in
each such case (except as may be contemplated by Section 13(d) hereof), proper
provision shall be made so that: (i) each holder of a Right, except as provided
in Section 7(e) hereof, shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon the
exercise thereof at the then current Purchase Price in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement, such number of validly authorized and issued, fully paid,
non-assessable and freely tradeable shares of Common Stock of the Principal
Party (as such term is hereinafter defined), not subject to any liens,
encumbrances, rights of first refusal or other adverse claims, as shall be equal
to the result obtained by (1) multiplying the then current Purchase Price by the
number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right is
exercisable immediately prior to the first
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occurrence of a Section 13 Event (or, if a Section 11(a)(ii) Event has occurred
prior to the first occurrence of a Section 13 Event, multiplying the number of
such one one-hundredths of a share for which a Right was exercisable immediately
prior to the first occurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii) Event by the Purchase Price
in effect immediately prior to such first occurrence), and dividing that product
(which, following the first occurrence of a Section 13 Event, shall be referred
to as the "Purchase Price" for each Right and for all purposes of this
Agreement) by (2) 50% of the Current Market Price (determined pursuant to
Section 11(d)(i) hereof) per share of the Common Stock of such Principal Party
on the date of consummation of such Section 13 Event; (ii) such Principal Party
shall thereafter be liable for, and shall assume, by virtue of such Section 13
Event, all the obligations and duties of the Company pursuant to this Agreement;
(iii) the term "Company" shall thereafter be deemed to refer to such Principal
Party, it being specifically intended that the provisions of Section 11 hereof
shall apply only to such Principal Party following the first occurrence of a
Section 13 Event; (iv) such Principal Party shall take such steps (including,
but not limited to, the reservation of a sufficient number of shares of its
Common Stock) in connection with the consummation of any such transaction as may
be necessary to assure that the provisions hereof shall thereafter be
applicable, as nearly as reasonably may be, in relation to its shares of Common
Stock thereafter deliverable upon the exercise of the Rights; and (v) the
provisions of Section 11(a)(ii) hereof shall be of no effect following the first
occurrence of any Section 13 Event.

               (b)      "Principal Party" shall mean:

                        (i) in the case of any transaction described in clause
      (x) or (y) of the first sentence of Section 13(a), the Person that is the
      issuer of any securities into which shares of Common Stock of the Company
      are converted in such merger or consolidation, and if no securities are so
      issued, the Person that is the other party to such merger or
      consolidation; and
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                        (ii) in the case of any trans action described in clause
      (z) of the first sentence of Section 13(a), the Person that is the party
      receiving the greatest portion of the assets, cash flow or earning power
      transferred pursuant to such transaction or transactions;

provided, however, that in any such case, (1) if the Common Stock of such Person
is not at such time and has not been continuously over the preceding twelve (12)
month period registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, and such Person is
a direct or indirect Subsidiary of another Person the Common Stock of which is
and has been so registered, "Principal Party" shall refer to such other Person;
and (2) in case such Person is a Subsidiary, directly or indirectly, of more
than one Person, the Common Stocks of two or more of which are and have been so
registered, "Principal Party" shall refer to whichever of such Persons is the
issuer of the Common Stock having the greatest aggregate market value.

               (c) The Company shall not consummate any such consolidation,
merger, sale or transfer unless the Principal Party shall have a sufficient
number of authorized shares of its Common Stock which have not been issued or
reserved for issuance to permit the exercise in full of the Rights in accordance
with this Section 13 and unless prior thereto the Company and such Principal
Party shall have executed and delivered to the Rights Agent a supplemental
agreement providing for the terms set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this
Section 13 and further providing that, as soon as practicable after the date of
any consolidation, merger or sale of assets mentioned in paragraph (a) of this
Section 13, the Principal Party will

                        (i) prepare and file a registration statement under the
      Act, with respect to the Rights and the securities purchasable upon
      exercise of the Rights on an appropriate form, and will use its best
      efforts to cause such registration statement to (A) become effective as
      soon as practicable after such filing and (B) remain effective (with a
      prospectus at all times meeting the requirements of the Act) until the
      Expiration Date; and
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                        (ii) take such all such other action as may be necessary
      to enable the Principal Party to issue the securities purchasable upon
      exercise of the Rights, including but not limited to the registration or
      qualification of such securities under all requisite securities laws of
      jurisdictions of the various states and the listing of such securities on
      such exchanges and trading markets as may be necessary or appropriate; and

                        (iii) will deliver to holders of the Rights historical
      financial statements for the Principal Party and each of its Affiliates
      which comply in all respects with the requirements for registration on
      Form 10 under the Ex change Act.

The provisions of this Section 13 shall similarly apply to successive mergers or
consolidations or sales or other transfers. In the event that a Section 13 Event
shall occur at any time after the occurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii) Event, the
Rights which have not theretofore been exercised shall thereafter become
exercisable in the manner described in Section 13(a).

               (d) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
Section 13 shall not be applicable to a transaction described in subparagraphs
(x) and (y) of Section 13(a) if (i) such transaction is consummated with a
Person or Persons who acquired shares of Common Stock pursuant to a tender offer
or exchange offer for all outstanding shares of Common Stock which is a
Qualified Offer as such term is defined in Section 11(a)(ii)(B) hereof (or a
wholly owned subsidiary of any such Person or Persons), (ii) the price per share
of Common Stock offered in such transaction is not less than the price per share
of Common Stock paid to all holders of shares of Common Stock whose shares were
purchased pursuant to such tender offer or exchange offer and (iii) the form of
consideration being offered to the remaining holders of shares of Common Stock
pursuant to such transaction is the same as the form of consideration paid
pursuant to such tender offer or exchange offer. Upon
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consummation of any such transaction contemplated by this Section 13(d), all
Rights hereunder shall expire.

            Section 14. Fractional Rights and Fractional Shares.

               (a) The Company shall not be required to issue fractions of
Rights, except prior to the Distribution Date as provided in Section 11(p)
hereof, or to distribute Rights Certificates which evidence fractional Rights.
In lieu of such fractional Rights, the Company shall pay to the registered
holders of the Rights Certificates with regard to which such fractional Rights
would otherwise be issuable, an amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the
current market value of a whole Right. For purposes of this Section 14(a), the
current market value of a whole Right shall be the closing price of the Rights



for the Trading Day immediately prior to the date on which such fractional
Rights would have been otherwise issuable. The closing price of the Rights for
any day shall be the last sale price, regular way, or, in case no such sale
takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and asked prices,
regular way, in either case as reported in the principal consolidated
transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed or admitted to
trading on the New York Stock Exchange or, if the Rights are not listed or
admitted to trading on the New York Stock Exchange, as reported in the principal
consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed on
the principal national securities exchange on which the Rights are listed or
admitted to trading, or if the Rights are not listed or admitted to trading on
any national securities exchange, the last quoted price or, if not so quoted,
the average of the high bid and low asked prices in the over-the-counter market,
as reported by NASDAQ or such other system then in use or, if on any such date
the Rights are not quoted by any such organization, the average of the closing
bid and asked prices as furnished by a professional market maker making a market
in the Rights, selected by the Board of Directors of the Company. If on any such
date no such market maker is making a market in the Rights, the fair value of
the Rights on such date as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of
the Company shall be used.
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               (b) The Company shall not be required to issue fractions of
shares of Preferred Stock (other than fractions which are integral multiples of
one one-hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock) upon exercise of the Rights or
to distribute certificates which evidence fractional shares of Preferred Stock
(other than fractions which are integral multiples of one one-hundredth of a
share of Preferred Stock). In lieu of fractional shares of Preferred Stock that
are not integral multiples of one one-hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock,
the Company may pay to the registered holders of Rights Certificates at the time
such Rights are exercised as herein provided an amount in cash equal to the same
fraction of the current market value of one one-hundredth of a share of
Preferred Stock. For purposes of this Section 14(b), the current market value of
one one-hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock shall be one one-hundredth of
the closing price of a share of Preferred Stock (as determined pursuant to
Section 11(d)(ii) hereof) for the Trading Day immediately prior to the date of
such exercise.

               (c) Following the occurrence of a Triggering Event, the Company
shall not be required to issue fractions of shares of Common Stock upon exercise
of the Rights or to distribute certificates which evidence fractional shares of
Common Stock. In lieu of fractional shares of Common Stock, the Company may pay
to the registered holders of Rights Certificates at the time such Rights are
exercised as herein provided an amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the
current market value of one (1) share of Common Stock. For purposes of this
Section 14(c), the current market value of one share of Common Stock shall be
the closing price of one share of Common Stock (as determined pursuant to
Section 11(d)(i) hereof) for the Trading Day immediately prior to the date of
such exercise.

               (d) The holder of a Right by the acceptance of the Rights
expressly waives his right to receive any fractional Rights or any fractional
shares upon exercise of a Right, except as permitted by this Section 14.

            Section 15. Rights of Action. All rights of action in respect of
this Agreement are vested in the
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respective registered holders of the Rights Certificates (and, prior to the
Distribution Date, the registered holders of the Common Stock); and any
registered holder of any Rights Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date,
of the Common Stock), without the consent of the Rights Agent or of the holder
of any other Rights Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date, of the
Common Stock), may, in his own behalf and for his own benefit, enforce, and may
institute and maintain any suit, action or proceeding against the Company to
enforce, or otherwise act in respect of, his right to exercise the Rights
evidenced by such Rights Certificate in the manner provided in such Rights
Certificate and in this Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing or any
remedies available to the holders of Rights, it is specifically acknowledged
that the holders of Rights would not have an adequate remedy at law for any
breach of this Agreement and shall be entitled to specific performance of the
obligations hereunder and injunctive relief against actual or threatened
violations of the obligations hereunder of any Person subject to this Agreement.

            Section 16. Agreement of Rights Holders. Every holder of a Right by
accepting the same consents and agrees with the Company and the Rights Agent and
with every other holder of a Right that:

               (a) prior to the Distribution Date, the Rights will be
transferable only in connection with the transfer of Common Stock;

               (b) after the Distribution Date, the Rights Certificates are
transferable only on the registry books of the Rights Agent if surrendered at
the principal office or offices of the Rights Agent designated for such



purposes, duly endorsed or accompanied by a proper instrument of transfer and
with the appropriate forms and certificates fully executed;

               (c) subject to Section 6(a) and Section 7(f) hereof, the Company
and the Rights Agent may deem and treat the person in whose name a Rights
Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date, the associated Common Stock
certificate) is registered as the absolute owner thereof and of the Rights
evidenced thereby (notwithstanding any notations of ownership or writing on the
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Rights Certificates or the associated Common Stock certificate made by anyone
other than the Company or the Rights Agent) for all purposes whatsoever, and
neither the Company nor the Rights Agent, subject to the last sentence of
Section 7(e) hereof, shall be required to be affected by any notice to the
contrary; and

               (d) notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary,
neither the Company nor the Rights Agent shall have any liability to any holder
of a Right or other Person as a result of its inability to perform any of its
obligations under this Agreement by reason of any preliminary or permanent
injunction or other order, decree or ruling issued by a court of competent
jurisdiction or by a governmental, regulatory or administrative agency or
commission, or any statute, rule, regulation or executive order promulgated or
enacted by any governmental authority, prohibiting or otherwise restraining
performance of such obligation; provided, however, the Company must use its best
efforts to have any such order, decree or ruling lifted or otherwise overturned
as soon as possible.

               Section 17. Rights Certificate Holder Not Deemed a Stockholder.
No holder, as such, of any Rights Certificate shall be entitled to vote,
receive dividends or be deemed for any purpose the holder of the number of one
one-hundredths of a share of Preferred Stock or any other securities of the
Company which may at any time be issuable on the exercise of the Rights
represented thereby, nor shall anything contained herein or in any Rights
Certificate be construed to confer upon the holder of any Rights Certificate, as
such, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote for
the election of directors or upon any matter submitted to stockholders at any
meeting thereof, or to give or withhold consent to any corporate action, or to
receive notice of meetings or other actions affecting stockholders (except as
provided in Section 25 hereof), or to receive dividends or subscription rights,
or otherwise, until the Right or Rights evidenced by such Rights Certificate
shall have been exercised in accordance with the provisions hereof.

            Section 18.  Concerning the Rights Agent.
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               (a) The Company agrees to pay to the Rights Agent reasonable
compensation for all services rendered by it hereunder and, from time to time,
on demand of the Rights Agent, its reasonable expenses and counsel fees and
disbursements and other disbursements incurred in the administration and
execution of this Agreement and the exercise and performance of its duties
hereunder. The Company also agrees to indemnify the Rights Agent for, and to
hold it harmless against, any loss, liability, or expense, incurred without
negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct on the part of the Rights Agent, for
anything done or omitted by the Rights Agent in connection with the acceptance
and administration of this Agreement, including the costs and expenses of
defending against any claim of liability in the premises.

               (b) The Rights Agent shall be protected and shall incur no
liability for or in respect of any action taken, suffered or omitted by it in
connection with its administration of this Agreement in reliance upon any Rights
Certificate or certificate for Common Stock or for other securities of the
Company, instrument of assignment or transfer, power of attorney, endorsement,
affidavit, letter, notice, direction, consent, certificate, statement, or other
paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to be signed, executed and,
where necessary, verified or acknowledged, by the proper Person or Persons.

            Section 19. Merger or Consolidation or Change of Name of Rights
Agent.

               (a) Any corporation into which the Rights Agent or any successor
Rights Agent may be merged or with which it may be consolidated, or any
corporation resulting from any merger or consolidation to which the Rights Agent
or any successor Rights Agent shall be a party, or any corporation succeeding to
the corporate trust or stock transfer powers or performance of the shareholder
services business of the Rights Agent or any successor Rights Agent, shall be
the successor to the Rights Agent under this Agreement without the execution or
filing of any paper or any further act on the part of any of the parties hereto;
but only if such corporation would be eligible for appointment as a successor
Rights Agent under the provisions of Section 21 hereof. In case at
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the time such successor Rights Agent shall succeed to the agency created by this



Agreement, any of the Rights Certificates shall have been countersigned but not
delivered, any such successor Rights Agent may adopt the countersignature of a
predecessor Rights Agent and deliver such Rights Certificates so countersigned;
and in case at that time any of the Rights Certificates shall not have been
countersigned, any successor Rights Agent may countersign such Rights
Certificates either in the name of the predecessor or in the name of the
successor Rights Agent; and in all such cases such Rights Certificates shall
have the full force provided in the Rights Certificates and in this Agreement.

               (b) In case at any time the name of the Rights Agent shall be
changed and at such time any of the Rights Certificates shall have been
countersigned but not delivered, the Rights Agent may adopt the countersignature
under its prior name and deliver Rights Certificates so countersigned; and in
case at that time any of the Rights Certificates shall not have been
countersigned, the Rights Agent may countersign such Rights Certificates either
in its prior name or in its changed name; and in all such cases such Rights
Certificates shall have the full force provided in the Rights Certificates and
in this Agreement.

            Section 20. Duties of Rights Agent. The Rights Agent undertakes the
duties and obligations imposed by this Agreement upon the following terms and
conditions, by all of which the Company and the holders of Rights Certificates,
by their acceptance thereof, shall be bound:

               (a) The Rights Agent may consult with legal counsel (who may be
legal counsel for the Company), and the opinion of such counsel shall be full
and complete authorization and protection to the Rights Agent as to any action
taken or omitted by it in good faith and in accordance with such opinion.

               (b) Whenever in the performance of its duties under this
Agreement the Rights Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable that any fact or
matter (including, without limitation, the identity of any Acquiring Person and
the determination of Current Market Price)
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be proved or established by the Company prior to taking or suffering any action
hereunder, such fact or matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be
herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and
established by a certificate signed by the Chairman of the Board, the President,
any Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Secretary or any
Assistant Secretary of the Company and delivered to the Rights Agent; and such
certificate shall be full authorization to the Rights Agent for any action taken
or suffered in good faith by it under the provisions of this Agreement in
reliance upon such certificate.

               (c) The Rights Agent shall be liable here under only for its own
negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct.

               (d) The Rights Agent shall not be liable for or by reason of any
of the statements of fact or recitals contained in this Agreement or in the
Rights Certificates or be required to verify the same (except as to its
countersignature on such Rights Certificates), but all such statements and
recitals are and shall be deemed to have been made by the Company only.

               (e) The Rights Agent shall not be under any responsibility in
respect of the validity of this Agreement or the execution and delivery hereof
(except the due execution hereof by the Rights Agent) or in respect of the
validity or execution of any Rights Certificate (except its countersignature
thereof); nor shall it be responsible for any breach by the Company of any
covenant or condition contained in this Agreement or in any Rights Certificate;
nor shall it be responsible for any adjustment required under the provisions of
Section 11, Section 13 or Section 24 hereof or responsible for the manner,
method or amount of any such adjustment or the ascertaining of the existence of
facts that would require any such adjustment (except with respect to the
exercise of Rights evidenced by Rights Certificates after actual notice of any
such adjustment); nor shall it by any act hereunder be deemed to make any
representation or warranty as to the authorization or reservation of any shares
of Common Stock or Preferred Stock to be issued pursuant to this Agreement or
any Rights Certificate or as to whether any shares of Common Stock or Preferred
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Stock will, when so issued, be validly authorized and issued, fully paid and
nonassessable.

               (f) The Company agrees that it will perform, execute, acknowledge
and deliver or cause to be performed, executed, acknowledged and delivered all
such further and other acts, instruments and assurances as may reasonably be
required by the Rights Agent for the carrying out or performing by the Rights
Agent of the provisions of this Agreement.

               (g) The Rights Agent is hereby authorized and directed to accept
instructions with respect to the performance of its duties hereunder from the
Chairman of the Board, the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, any
Assistant Secretary, the Treasurer or any Assistant Treasurer of the Company,



and to apply to such officers for advice or instructions in connection with its
duties, and it shall not be liable for any action taken or suffered to be taken
by it in good faith in accordance with instructions of any such officer.

               (h) The Rights Agent and any stockholder, director, officer or
employee of the Rights Agent may buy, sell or deal in any of the Rights or other
securities of the Company or become pecuniarily interested in any transaction in
which the Company may be interested, or contract with or lend money to the
Company or otherwise act as fully and freely as though it were not Rights Agent
under this Agreement. Nothing herein shall preclude the Rights Agent from acting
in any other capacity for the Company or for any other legal entity.

               (i) The Rights Agent may execute and exercise any of the rights
or powers hereby vested in it or per form any duty hereunder either itself or by
or through its attorneys or agents, and the Rights Agent shall not be answerable
or accountable for any act, default, neglect or misconduct of any such attorneys
or agents or for any loss to the Company resulting from any such act, default,
neglect or misconduct; provided, however, reasonable care was exercised in the
selection and continued employment thereof.

               (j) No provision of this Agreement shall require the Rights Agent
to expend or risk its own funds
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or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its
duties hereunder or in the exercise of its rights if there shall be reasonable
grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnification
against such risk or liability is not reasonably assured to it.

               (k) If, with respect to any Rights Certificate surrendered to
the Rights Agent for exercise or transfer, the certificate attached to the form
of assignment or form of election to purchase, as the case may be, has either
not been completed or indicates an affirmative response to clause 1 and/or 2
thereof, the Rights Agent shall not take any further action with respect to such
requested exercise or transfer without first consulting with the Company.

            Section 21. Change of Rights Agent. The Rights Agent or any
successor Rights Agent may resign and be discharged from its duties under this
Agreement upon thirty (30) days' notice in writing mailed to the Company, and to
each transfer agent of the Common Stock and Preferred Stock, by registered or
certified mail, and, if such resignation occurs after the Distribution Date, to
the registered holders of the Rights Certificates by first-class mail. The
Company may remove the Rights Agent or any successor Rights Agent upon thirty
(30) days' notice in writing, mailed to the Rights Agent or successor Rights
Agent, as the case may be, and to each transfer agent of the Common Stock and
Preferred Stock, by registered or certified mail, and, if such removal occurs
after the Distribution Date, to the holders of the Rights Certificates by
first-class mail. If the Rights Agent shall resign or be removed or shall other
wise become incapable of acting, the Company shall appoint a successor to the
Rights Agent. If the Company shall fail to make such appointment within a period
of thirty (30) days after giving notice of such removal or after it has been
notified in writing of such resignation or incapacity by the resigning or
incapacitated Rights Agent or by the holder of a Rights Certificate (who shall,
with such notice, submit his Rights Certificate for inspection by the Company),
then any registered holder of any Rights Certificate may apply to any court of
competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a new Rights Agent. Any successor
Rights Agent, whether appointed by the Company
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or by such a court, shall be (a) a legal business entity organized and doing
business under the laws of the United States or one of the United States, in
good standing, having a principal office in the State of New York, which is
authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust or stock transfer powers
or perform shareholder services and is subject to supervision or examination by
federal or state authority and which has at the time of its appointment as
Rights Agent a combined capital and surplus of at least $10,000,000 or (b) an
affiliate of a legal business entity described in clause (a) of this sentence.
After appointment, the successor Rights Agent shall be vested with the same
powers, rights, duties and responsibilities as if it had been originally named
as Rights Agent without further act or deed; but the predecessor Rights Agent
shall deliver and transfer to the successor Rights Agent any property at the
time held by it hereunder, and execute and deliver any further assurance,
conveyance, act or deed necessary for the purpose. Not later than the effective
date of any such appointment, the Company shall file notice thereof in writing
with the predecessor Rights Agent and each transfer agent of the Common Stock
and the Preferred Stock, and, if such appointment occurs after the Distribution
Date, mail a notice thereof in writing to the registered holders of the Rights
Certificates. Failure to give any notice provided for in this Section 21,
however, or any defect therein, shall not affect the legality or validity of the
resignation or removal of the Rights Agent or the appointment of the successor
Rights Agent, as the case may be.

            Section 22. Issuance of New Rights Certificates. Notwithstanding any
of the provisions of this Agreement or of the Rights to the contrary, the
Company may, at its option, issue new Rights Certificates evidencing Rights in



such form as may be approved by the Board of Directors to reflect any adjustment
or change in the Purchase Price and the number or kind or class of shares or
other securities or property purchasable under the Rights Certificates made in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. In addition, in connection
with the issuance or sale of shares of Common Stock following the Distribution
Date and prior to the redemption or expiration of the Rights, the Company (a)
shall, with respect to shares of Common Stock so issued or sold
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pursuant to the exercise of stock options or under any employee plan or
arrangement, granted or awarded as of the Distribution Date, or upon the
exercise, conversion or exchange of securities hereinafter issued by the
Company, and (b) may, in any other case, if deemed necessary or appropriate by
the Board of Directors of the Company, issue Rights Certificates representing
the appropriate number of Rights in connection with such issuance or sale;
provided, however, that (i) no such Rights Certificate shall be issued if, and
to the extent that, the Company shall be advised by counsel that such issuance
would create a significant risk of material adverse tax consequences to the
Company or the Person to whom such Rights Certificate would be issued, and (ii)
no such Rights Certificate shall be issued if, and to the extent that,
appropriate adjustment shall otherwise have been made in lieu of the issuance
thereof.

            Section 23.  Redemption and Termination.

               (a) The Board of Directors of the Company may, at its option, at
any time prior to the earlier of (i) the close of business on the tenth Business
Day following the Stock Acquisition Date (or, if the Stock Acquisition Date
shall have occurred prior to the Record Date, the close of business on the tenth
Business Day following the Record Date), or (ii) the Final Expiration Date,
redeem all but not less than all of the then outstanding Rights at a redemption
price of $.01 per Right, as such amount may be appropriately adjusted to reflect
any stock split, stock dividend or similar transaction occurring after the date
hereof (such redemption price being hereinafter referred to as the "Redemption
Price"). Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary,
the Rights shall not be exercisable after the first occurrence of a Section
11(a)(ii) Event until such time as the Company's right of redemption hereunder
has expired. The Company may, at its option, pay the Redemption Price in cash,
shares of Common Stock (based on the Current Market Price, as defined in Section
11(d)(i) hereof, of the Common Stock at the time of redemption) or any other
form of consideration deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

               (b) Immediately upon the action of the Board of Directors of the
Company ordering the redemption
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of the Rights, evidence of which shall have been filed with the Rights Agent and
without any further action and without any notice, the right to exercise the
Rights will terminate and the only right thereafter of the holders of Rights
shall be to receive the Redemption Price for each Right so held. Promptly after
the action of the Board of Directors ordering the redemption of the Rights, the
Company shall give notice of such redemption to the Rights Agent and the holders
of the then outstanding Rights by mailing such notice to all such holders at
each holder's last address as it appears upon the registry books of the Rights
Agent or, prior to the Distribution Date, on the registry books of the transfer
agent for the Common Stock. Any notice which is mailed in the manner herein
provided shall be deemed given, whether or not the holder receives the notice.
Each such notice of redemption will state the method by which the payment of the
Redemption Price will be made.

            Section 24.  Exchange.

               (a) The Board of Directors of the Company may, at its option, at
any time after any Person becomes an Acquiring Person, exchange all or part of
the then out standing and exercisable Rights (which shall not include Rights
that have become void pursuant to the provisions of Section 7(e) hereof) for
Common Stock at an exchange ratio of one share of Common Stock per Right,
appropriately adjusted to reflect any stock split, stock dividend or similar
transaction occurring after the date hereof (such exchange ratio being
hereinafter referred to as the "Ex change Ratio"). Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Board of Directors of the Company shall not be empowered to
effect such exchange at any time after any Person (other than the Company, any
Subsidiary of the Company, any employee benefit plan of the Company or any such
Subsidiary, or any entity holding Common Stock for or pursuant to the terms of
any such plan), together with all Affiliates and Associates of such Person,
becomes the Beneficial Owner of 50% or more of the Common Stock then
outstanding.

               (b) Immediately upon the action of the Board of Directors of the
Company ordering the exchange of any Rights pursuant to subsection (a) of this
Section 24 and without any further action and without any notice,
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the right to exercise such Rights shall terminate and the only right thereafter
of a holder of such Rights shall be to receive that number of shares of Common



Stock equal to the number of such Rights held by such holder multiplied by the
Exchange Ratio. The Company shall promptly give public notice of any such
exchange; provided, however, that the failure to give, or any defect in, such
notice shall not affect the validity of such exchange. The Company promptly
shall mail a notice of any such exchange to all of the holders of such Rights at
their last addresses as they appear upon the registry books of the Rights Agent.
Any notice which is mailed in the manner herein provided shall be deemed given,
whether or not the holder receives the notice. Each such notice of exchange will
state the method by which the exchange of the Common Stock for Rights will be
effected and, in the event of any partial exchange, the number of Rights which
will be exchanged. Any partial exchange shall be effected pro rata based on the
number of Rights (other than Rights which have become void pursuant to the
provisions of Section 7(e) hereof) held by each holder of Rights.

               (c) In any exchange pursuant to this Section 24, the Company, at
its option, may substitute Preferred Stock (or Equivalent Preferred Stock, as
such term is defined in paragraph (b) of Section 11 hereof) for Common Stock
exchangeable for Rights, at the initial rate of one one-hundredth of a share of
Preferred Stock (or Equivalent Preferred Stock) for each share of Common Stock,
as appropriately adjusted to reflect stock splits, stock dividends and other
similar transactions after the date hereof.

               (d) In the event that there shall not be sufficient shares of
Common Stock issued but not outstanding or authorized but unissued to permit any
exchange of Rights as contemplated in accordance with this Section 24, the
shares of Company shall take all such actions as may be necessary to authorize
additional shares of Common Stock for issuance upon exchange of the Rights.

               (e) The Company shall not be required to issue fractions of
shares of Common Stock or to distribute certificates which evidence fractional
shares of Common Stock. In lieu of such fractional shares of
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Common Stock, there shall be paid to the registered holders of the Rights
Certificates with regard to which such fractional shares of Common Stock would
otherwise be issuable, an amount in cash equal to the same fraction of the
current market value of a whole share of Common Stock. For the purposes of this
subsection (e), the current market value of a whole share of Common Stock shall
be the closing price of a share of Common Stock (as determined pursuant to the
second sentence of Section 11(d)(i) hereof) for the Trading Day immediately
prior to the date of exchange pursuant to this Section 24.

            Section 25.  Notice of Certain Events.

               (a) In case the Company shall propose, at any time after the
Distribution Date, (i) to pay any dividend payable in stock of any class to the
holders of Preferred Stock or to make any other distribution to the holders of
Preferred Stock (other than a regular quarterly cash dividend out of earnings or
retained earnings of the Company), or (ii) to offer to the holders of Preferred
Stock rights or warrants to subscribe for or to purchase any additional shares
of Preferred Stock or shares of stock of any class or any other securities,
rights or options, or (iii) to effect any reclassification of its Preferred
Stock (other than a reclassification involving only the subdivision of
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock), or (iv) to effect any consolidation or
merger into or with any other Person (other than a Subsidiary of the Company in
a transaction which complies with Section 11(o) hereof), or to effect any sale
or other transfer (or to permit one or more of its Subsidiaries to effect any
sale or other transfer), in one transaction or a series of related transactions,
of more than 50% of the assets, cash flow or earning power of the Company and
its Subsidiaries (taken as a whole) to any other Person or Persons (other than
the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries in one or more transactions each of
which complies with Section 11(o) hereof), or (v) to effect the liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Company, then, in each such case, the Company
shall give to each holder of a Rights Certificate, to the extent feasible and in
accordance with Section 26 hereof, a notice of such proposed action, which shall
specify the record date for the purposes of such stock dividend, distribution of
rights or warrants, or the date on which
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such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer, liquidation,
dissolution, or winding up is to take place and the date of participation
therein by the holders of the shares of Preferred Stock, if any such date is to
be fixed, and such notice shall be so given in the case of any action covered by
clause (i) or (ii) above at least twenty (20) days prior to the record date for
determining holders of the shares of Preferred Stock for purposes of such
action, and in the case of any such other action, at least twenty (20) days
prior to the date of the taking of such proposed action or the date of
participation therein by the holders of the shares of Preferred Stock whichever
shall be the earlier.

               (b) In case any of the events set forth in Section 11(a)(ii)
hereof shall occur, then, in any such case, (i) the Company shall as soon as
practicable there after give to each holder of a Rights Certificate, to the
extent feasible and in accordance with Section 26 hereof, a notice of the
occurrence of such event, which shall specify the event and the consequences of



the event to holders of Rights under Section 11(a)(ii) hereof, and (ii) all
references in the preceding paragraph to Preferred Stock shall be deemed
thereafter to refer to Common Stock and/or, if appropriate, other securities.

            Section 26. Notices. Notices or demands authorized by this
Agreement to be given or made by the Rights Agent or by the holder of any Rights
Certificate to or on the Company shall be sufficiently given or made if sent by
first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is filed in
writing by the Rights Agent with the Company) as follows:

            Newcastle Investment Corp.
            1251 Avenue of the Americas
            New York, New York 10020
            Attention:  Corporate Secretary

Subject to the provisions of Section 21, any notice or demand authorized by this
Agreement to be given or made by the Company or by the holder of any Rights
Certificate to or on the Rights Agent shall be sufficiently given or made if
sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is
filed in writing by the Rights Agent with the Company) as follows:
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            American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
            59 Maiden Lane
            New York, New York  10038
            Attention:  Corporate Trust Department

            Notices or demands authorized by this Agreement to be given or made
by the Company or the Rights Agent to the holder of any Rights Certificate (or,
if prior to the Distribution Date, to the holder of certificates representing
shares of Common Stock) shall be sufficiently given or made if sent by
first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such holder at the address of
such holder as shown on the registry books of the Company.

            Section 27. Supplements and Amendments. Prior to the Distribution
Date, the Company and the Rights Agent shall, if the Company so directs,
supplement or amend any provision of this Agreement without the approval of any
holders of certificates representing shares of Common Stock. From and after the
Distribution Date, the Company and the Rights Agent shall, if the Company so
directs, supplement or amend this Agreement without the approval of any holders
of Rights Certificates in order (i) to cure any ambiguity, (ii) to correct or
supplement any provision contained herein which may be defective or inconsistent
with any other provisions herein, (iii) to shorten or lengthen any time period
hereunder, or (iv) to change or supplement the provisions hereunder in any
manner which the Company may deem necessary or desirable and which shall not
adversely affect the interests of the holders of Rights Certificates (other than
an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person);
provided, this Agreement may not be supplemented or amended to lengthen any time
period hereunder, pursuant to clause (iii) of this sentence, (A) a time period
relating to when the Rights may be redeemed at such time as the Rights are not
then redeemable, or (B) any other time period unless such lengthening is for the
purpose of protecting, enhancing or clarifying the rights of, and/or the
benefits to, the holders of Rights. Upon the delivery of a certificate from an
appropriate officer of the Company which states that the proposed supplement or
amendment is in compliance with the terms of this Section 27, the Rights Agent
shall execute such supplement or amendment unless the Rights Agent shall have
determined in good faith that such supplement or amendment would
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increase its duties or obligations or limit its rights or benefits under this
Agreement. Prior to the Distribution Date, the interests of the holders of
Rights shall be deemed coincident with the interests of the holders of Common
Stock. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, this Agreement may not
be amended at a time when the Rights are not redeemable.

            Section 28. Successors. All the covenants and provisions of this
Agreement by or for the benefit of the Company or the Rights Agent shall bind
and inure to the benefit of their respective successors and assigns here under.

            Section 29. Determinations and Actions by the Board of Directors,
etc. For all purposes of this Agreement, any calculation of the number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding at any particular time, including for
purposes of determining the particular percentage of such outstanding shares of
Common Stock of which any Person is the Beneficial Owner, shall be made in
accordance with the last sentence of Rule 13d-3(d)(1)(i) of the General Rules
and Regulations under the Exchange Act. The Board of Directors of the Company
shall have the exclusive power and authority to administer this Agreement and to
exercise all rights and powers specifically granted to the Board or to the
Company, or as may be necessary or advisable in the administration of this
Agreement, including, without limitation, the right and power to (i) interpret
the provisions of this Agreement, and (ii) make all determinations deemed
necessary or advisable for the administration of this Agreement (including a
determination to redeem or not redeem the Rights or to amend the Agreement. All
such actions, calculations, interpretations and determinations (including, for



purposes of clause (y) below, all omissions with respect to the foregoing) which
are done or made by the Board in good faith, shall (x) be final, conclusive and
binding on the Company, the Rights Agent, the holders of the Rights and all
other parties, and (y) not subject the Board, or any of the directors on the
Board to any liability to the holders of the Rights.

            Section 30. Benefits of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be construed to give to any Person other than the Company, the Rights
Agent and the
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registered holders of the Rights Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution
Date, registered holders of the Common Stock) any legal or equitable right,
remedy or claim under this Agreement; but this Agreement shall be for the sole
and exclusive benefit of the Company, the Rights Agent and the registered
holders of the Rights Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution Date,
registered holders of the Common Stock).

            Section 31. Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or
restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction or
other authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the
terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions of this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated;
provided, however, that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, if any such term, provision, covenant or restriction is held by such
court or authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable and the Board of
Directors of the Company determines in its good faith judgment that severing the
invalid language from this Agreement would adversely affect the purpose or
effect of this Agreement, the right of redemption set forth in Section 23 hereof
shall be reinstated and shall not expire until the close of business on the
tenth Business Day following the date of such determination by the Board of
Directors. Without limiting the foregoing, if any provision requiring the
approval of certain members of the Board of Directors of the Company is held to
by any court of competent jurisdiction or other authority to be invalid, void or
unenforceable, such determination shall then be made by the Board of Directors
of the Company in accordance with applicable law and the Company's Restated
Articles of Incorporation and By-laws.

            Section 32. Governing Law. This Agreement, each Right and each
Rights Certificate issued hereunder shall be deemed to be a contract made under
the laws of the State of Maryland and for all purposes shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of such State applicable to contracts made
and to be performed entirely within such State, except that the rights and
obligations of the Rights Agent shall be governed by the laws of the State of
New York.
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            Section 33. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any
number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be
deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute
but one and the same instrument.

            Section 34. Descriptive Headings. Descriptive headings of the
several sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall
not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions
hereof.

            IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to
be duly executed, all as of the day and year first above written.

Attest:                                NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT
                                       CORP.

By /s/ Bari Beck                       By /s/ Randal A. Nardone
   ----------------------------           ---------------------------
   Name: Bari Beck                        Name: Randal A. Nardone
   Title: Executive Assistant             Title: Secretary

Attest:                                AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER
                                         & TRUST COMPANY

By /s/ Susan Silber                    By /s/ Herbert J. Lemmer
   ----------------------------           ---------------------------
   Name: Susan Silber                    Name: Herbert J. Lemmer
   Title: Assistant Secretary            Title: Vice President
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                                                                       Exhibit A



                                     FORM OF
                       ARTICLES SUPPLEMENTARY OF SERIES A
                      JUNIOR PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK

                                       of

                           NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP.

                             ARTICLES SUPPLEMENTARY

         Newcastle Investment Corp., a Maryland corporation (the
"Corporation"), hereby certifies to the State Department of Assessments and
Taxation of Maryland that:

         FIRST: Under a power contained in Article VI of the charter of the
Corporation (the "Charter"), the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the
"Board of Directors"), by [resolution duly adopted at a meeting duly called held
on] [unanimous written consent dated] __________, 2002, classified and
designated 1,000,000 shares (the "Shares") of Preferred Stock (as defined in the
Charter) as shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, with the
preferences, conversion and other rights, voting powers, restrictions,
limitations as to dividends and other distributions, qualifications and terms
and conditions of redemption as set forth below.

                  SERIES A JUNIOR PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK

         Section 1. Designation and Amount. The shares of such series shall be
designated as "Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock" and the number of
shares constituting such series shall be 1,000,000.

         Section 2. Dividends and Distributions.

         (A) Subject to the prior and superior rights of the holders of any
shares of any series of Preferred Stock ranking prior and superior to the shares
of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, the
holders of shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to receive, when, as and if authorized and declared by the
Board of Directors out of funds legally available for the purpose, quarterly
dividends payable in cash on the 1st day of March, June, September and December
in each year (each such date being referred to herein as a "Quarterly Dividend
Payment Date"), commencing on the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date after
the first issuance of a share or fraction of a share of Series A Junior Partici
pating Preferred Stock, in an amount per share (rounded to the nearest cent)
equal to the greater of (a) $1 or (b) subject to the provision for adjustment
hereinafter set forth, 100 times the aggregate per share amount of all cash
dividends, and 100 times the aggregate per share amount (payable in kind) of all
non-cash dividends or other distributions other than a dividend payable in
shares of Common Stock or a subdivision of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock (by reclassification or other wise), declared on the Common Stock, par
value $.01 per share, of the Corporation (the "Common Stock") since the
immediately preceding Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, or, with respect to the
first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, since the first issuance of any share or
fraction of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. In the
event the Corporation shall at any time after October 16, 2002 (the "Rights
Record Date") (i) authorize and declare any dividend on Common Stock payable in
shares of Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Common Stock, or (iii)
combine the outstanding Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in
each such case the amount to which holders of shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event
under clause (b) of the preceding sentence shall be adjusted by multiplying such
amount by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common
Stock outstanding immediately after such event and the denominator of which is
the number of shares of Common Stock that were outstanding immediately prior to
such event.

         (B) The Corporation shall authorize and de clare a dividend or
distribution on the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock as provided in
Paragraph (A) above immediately after it authorizes and declares a dividend or
distribution on the Common Stock (other than a dividend payable in shares of
Common Stock); provided that, in the event no dividend or distribution shall
have been authorized and declared on the Common Stock during
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the period between any Quarterly Dividend Payment Date and the next subsequent
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, a dividend of $1 per share on the Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall nevertheless be payable on such
subsequent Quarterly Dividend Payment Date.

         (C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative on outstanding
shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock from the Quarterly
Dividend Payment Date next preceding the date of issue of such shares of Series
A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, unless the date of issue of such shares
is prior to the record date for the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in



which case dividends on such shares shall begin to accrue from the date of issue
of such shares, or unless the date of issue is a Quarterly Dividend Payment Date
or is a date after the record date for the determination of holders of shares
of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive a
quarterly dividend and before such Quarterly Dividend Payment Date, in either of
which events such dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from such
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but unpaid dividends shall not bear
interest. Dividends paid on the shares of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock in an amount less than the total amount of such dividends at the
time accrued and payable on such shares shall be allocated pro rata on a
share-by-share basis among all such shares at the time outstanding. The Board of
Directors may fix a record date for the determination of holders of shares of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock entitled to receive payment of a
dividend or distribution authorized and declared thereon, which record date
shall be no more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for the payment thereof.

         Section 3. Voting Rights. The holders of shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock shall have the following voting rights:

         (A) Subject to the provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth, each
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall entitle the holder
thereof to 100 votes on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders of
the Corporation. In the event the Corporation shall at any time after the Rights
Record
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Date (i) authorize and declare any dividend on Common Stock payable in shares of
Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Common Stock, or (iii) combine the
outstanding Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case
the number of votes per share to which holders of shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock were entitled immediately prior to such event
shall be adjusted by multiplying such number by a fraction the numerator of
which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such
event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that
were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

         (B) Except as otherwise provided herein, the holders of shares of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and the holders of shares of
Common Stock shall vote together as one class on all matters submitted to a vote
of stockholders of the Corporation.

         (C) (i) If at any time dividends on any Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock shall be in arrears in an amount equal to six (6) quarterly
dividends thereon, the occurrence of such contingency shall mark the beginning
of a period (herein called a "default period") which shall extend until such
time when all accrued and unpaid dividends for all previous quarterly dividend
periods and for the current quarterly dividend period on all shares of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock then outstanding shall have been authorized
and declared and paid or set apart for payment. During each default period, all
holders of Preferred Stock (including holders of the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock) with dividends in arrears in an amount equal to
six (6) quarterly dividends thereon, voting as a class, irrespective of series,
shall have the right to elect two (2) directors.

                  (ii) During any default period, such voting right of the
         holders of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock may be
         exercised initially at a special meeting called pursuant to
         subparagraph (iii) of this Section 3(C) or at any annual meeting of
         stockholders, and thereafter at annual meetings of stockholders,
         provided that neither such voting right nor the
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         right of the holders of any other series of Preferred Stock, if any, to
         increase, in certain cases, the authorized number of directors shall
         such voting right shall not be exercised unless the holders of ten
         percent (10%) in number of shares of Preferred Stock outstanding shall
         be present in person or by proxy. The absence of a quorum of the
         holders of Common Stock shall not affect the exercise by the holders of
         Preferred Stock of such voting right. At any meeting at which the
         holders of Preferred Stock shall exercise such voting right initially
         during an existing default period, they shall have the right, voting as
         a class, to elect directors to fill such vacancies, if any, in the
         Board of Directors as may then exist up to two (2) directors or, if
         such right is exercised at an annual meeting, to elect two (2)
         directors. If the number which may be so elected at any special meeting
         does not amount to the required number, the holders of the Preferred
         Stock shall have the right to make such increase in the number of
         directors as shall be necessary to permit the election by them of the
         required number. After the holders of the Preferred Stock shall have
         exercised their right to elect directors in any default period and
         during the continuance of such period, the number of directors shall
         not be in creased or decreased except by vote of the holders of
         Preferred Stock as herein provided or pursuant to the rights of any



         equity securities ranking senior to or paripassu with the Series A
         Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

                  (iii) Unless the holders of Preferred Stock shall, during an
         existing default period, have previously exercised their right to elect
         directors, the Board of Directors may order, or any stockholder or
         stockholders owning in the aggregate not less than ten percent (10%)
         of the total number of shares of Preferred Stock outstanding,
         irrespective of series, may request, the calling of a special meeting
         of the holders of Preferred Stock, which meeting shall thereupon be
         called by the President, a Vice-President or the Secretary of the
         Corporation. Notice of such meeting and of
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         any annual meeting at which holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to
         vote pursuant to this Paragraph (C)(iii) shall be given to each holder
         of record of Preferred Stock by mailing a copy of such notice to him at
         his last ad dress as the same appears on the books of the Corporation.
         Such meeting shall be called for a time not earlier than 20 days and
         not later than 60 days after such order or request or in default of the
         calling of such meeting within 60 days after such order or request,
         such meeting may be called on similar notice by any stockholder or
         stockholders owning in the aggregate not less than ten percent (10%)
         of the total number of shares of Preferred Stock out standing.
         Notwithstanding the provisions of this Paragraph (C)(iii), no such
         special meeting shall be called during the period within 60 days
         immediately preceding the date or the first day of the period, as the
         case may be, fixed by the Bylaws of the Corporation for the next annual
         meeting of the stockholders.

                  (iv) In any default period, the holders of Common Stock, and
         other classes of stock of the Corporation if applicable, shall continue
         to be entitled to elect the whole number of directors until the holders
         of Preferred Stock shall have exercised their right to elect two (2)
         directors voting as a class, after the exercise of which right (x) the
         directors so elected by the holders of Preferred Stock shall continue
         in office until their successors shall have been elected by such
         holders or until the expiration of the default period, whichever
         happens first, and (y) any vacancy in the Board of Directors may
         (except as provided in Paragraph (C)(ii) of this Section 3) be filled
         by vote of a majority of the remaining directors theretofore elected by
         the holders of the class of stock which elected the director whose
         office shall have become vacant. References in this Paragraph (C) to
         directors elected by the holders of a particular class of stock shall
         include directors elected by such directors to fill vacancies as
         provided in clause (y) of the foregoing sentence.
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                  (v) Immediately upon the expiration of a default period, (x)
         the right of the holders of Preferred Stock as a class to elect
         directors shall cease, (y) the term of any directors elected by the
         holders of Preferred Stock as a class shall terminate, and (z) the
         number of directors shall be such number as may be provided for in the
         charter or Bylaws irrespective of any increase made pursuant to the
         provisions of Paragraph (C)(ii) of this Section 3 (such number being
         subject, however, to change thereafter in any manner provided by law or
         in the charter or Bylaws). Any vacancies in the Board of Directors
         effected by the provisions of clauses (y) and (z) in the preceding
         sentence may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors.

         (D) Except as set forth herein, holders of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock shall have no special voting rights and their
consent shall not be required (except to the extent they are entitled to vote
with holders of Common Stock as set forth herein) for taking any corporate
action.

                        Section 4. Certain Restrictions.

         (A) Whenever quarterly dividends or other dividends or distributions
payable on the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock as provided in
Section 2 are in arrears, thereafter and until all accrued and unpaid dividends
and distributions, whether or not authorized or declared, on shares of Series A
Junior Partici pating Preferred Stock outstanding shall have been paid in full,
the Corporation shall not

                  (i) authorize or declare or pay dividends on, make any other
         distributions on, or redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for
         consideration any shares of stock ranking junior (either as to
         dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) to the Series
         A Junior Participating Preferred Stock;

                  (ii) authorize or declare or pay dividends on or make any
         other distributions on any shares of stock ranking on a parity (either



         as to dividends or upon liquida-
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         tion, dissolution or winding up) with the Series A Junior Participating
         Preferred Stock, except dividends paid ratably on the Series A Junior
         Participating Preferred Stock and all such parity stock on which
         dividends are pay able or in arrears in proportion to the total amounts
         to which the holders of all such shares are then entitled;

                  (iii) redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire for
         consideration shares of any stock ranking on a parity (either as to
         dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with the
         Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, provided that the
         Corporation may at any time redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire
         shares of any such parity stock in exchange for shares of any stock of
         the Corporation ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon
         dissolution, liquidation or winding up) to the Series A Junior
         Participating Preferred Stock; or

                  (iv) purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any
         shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, or any shares
         of stock ranking on a parity with the Series A Junior Participating
         Preferred Stock, except in accordance with a purchase offer made in
         writing or by publication (as determined by the Board of Directors) to
         all holders of such shares upon such terms as the Board of Directors,
         after consideration of the respective annual dividend rates and other
         relative rights and preferences of the respective series and classes,
         shall determine in good faith will result in fair and equitable
         treatment among the respective series or classes.

         (B) The Corporation shall not permit any subsidiary of the Corporation
to purchase or otherwise acquire for consideration any shares of stock of the
Corporation unless the Corporation could, under Paragraph (A) of this Section 4,
purchase or otherwise acquire such shares at such time and in such manner.

         Section 5. Reacquired Shares. Any shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock purchased
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or otherwise acquired by the Corporation in any manner whatsoever shall be
retired and cancelled promptly after the acquisition thereof. All such shares
shall upon their cancellation become authorized but unissued shares of Preferred
Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Preferred Stock to be
created by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, subject to the
conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth herein.

         Section 6. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up. (A) Upon any
liquidation (voluntary or otherwise), dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation, no distribution shall be made to the holders of shares of stock
ranking junior (either as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up) to the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock unless, prior
thereto, the holders of shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock
shall have received an amount equal to $100 per share of Series A Participating
Preferred Stock, plus an amount equal to accrued and unpaid dividends and
distributions thereon, whether or not authorized or declared, to the date of
such payment (the "Series A Liquidation Preference"). Following the payment of
the full amount of the Series A Liquidation Preference, no additional
distributions shall be made to the holders of shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the holders of shares of
Common Stock shall have received an amount per share (the "Common Adjustment")
equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the Series A Liquidation
Preference by (ii) 100 (as appropriately adjusted as set forth in subparagraph
(C) below to reflect such events as stock splits, stock dividends and
recapitalizations with respect to the Common Stock) (such number in clause (ii),
the "Adjustment Number"). Following the payment of the full amount of the Series
A Liquidation Preference and the Common Adjustment in respect of all outstanding
shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and Common Stock,
respectively, holders of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock and
holders of shares of Common Stock shall receive their ratable and proportionate
share of the remaining assets to be distributed in the ratio of the Adjustment
Number to 1 with respect to such Preferred Stock and Common Stock, on a per
share basis, respectively. The merger or consolidation of the Corporation,
regardless of whether the Corporation is the surviving entity in such merger or
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consolidation, shall not be deemed to be the liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the Corporation.

         (B) In the event, however, that there are not sufficient assets
available to permit payment in full of the Series A Liquidation Preference and
the liquidation preferences of all other series of preferred stock, if any,
which rank on a parity with the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock,



then such remaining assets shall be distributed ratably to the holders of such
parity shares in proportion to their respective liquidation preferences. In the
event, however, that there are not sufficient assets available to permit payment
in full of the Common Adjustment, then such remaining assets shall be
distributed ratably to the holders of Common Stock.

         (C) In the event the Corporation shall at any time after the Rights
Record Date (i) declare any dividend on Common Stock payable in shares of
Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Common Stock, or (iii) combine the
outstanding Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case
the Adjustment Number in effect immediately prior to such event shall be
adjusted by multiplying such Adjustment Number by a fraction the numerator of
which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such
event and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that
were outstanding immediately prior to such event.

         Section 7. Consolidation, Merger, etc. If the Corporation shall enter
into any consolidation, merger, combination or other transaction in which the
shares of Common Stock are exchanged for or changed into other stock or
securities, cash and/or any other property, then in any such case the shares of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall at the same time be
similarly exchanged or changed in an amount per share (subject to the provision
for adjustment hereinafter set forth) equal to 100 times the aggregate amount of
stock, securities, cash and/or any other property (payable in kind), as the case
may be, into which or for which each share of Common Stock is changed or
exchanged. In the event the Corporation shall at any time after the Rights
Record Date (i) declare any dividend on Common Stock payable in shares of Common
Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Common Stock, or (iii) combine the
outstand-
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ing Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, then in each such case the
amount set forth in the preceding sentence with respect to the exchange or
change of shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shall be
adjusted by multiplying such amount by a fraction the numerator of which is the
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event and
the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that were
outstanding immediately prior to such event.

         Section 8. No Redemption. The shares of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable.

         Section 9. Ranking. (a) The Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock shall rank junior to all other series of the Corporation's Preferred Stock
as to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets, unless the terms
of any such series shall provide otherwise.

         (b) The liquidation preference of the outstanding shares of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock will not be added to the liabilities of the
Corporation for the purpose of determining whether under the Maryland General
Corporation Law a distribution may be made to stockholders of the Corporation
whose preferential rights upon dissolution of the Corporation are junior to
those of holders of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

         Section 10. Amendment. At any time when any shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock are outstanding, neither the charter nor these
Articles Supplementary shall be amended in any manner which would materially
alter or change the powers, preferences or special rights of the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock so as to affect them adversely without the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority or more of the outstanding shares
of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, voting separately as a class;
provided that none of (i) the creation or issuance of (A) additional shares of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock or (B) shares of any class or
series of Preferred Stock ranking junior to or on parity with the Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock as to the payment of dividends and the
distribution of assets, (ii)
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a merger or consolidation in which the Corporation is the surviving entity and
the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock remains outstanding with no
material adverse change in its powers, preferences and special rights, or (iii)
a merger or consolidation in which the Corporation is not the surviving entity
and the holders of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock receive in
exchange therefor a substantially identical security of the surviving entity,
shall be considered to materially adversely alter or change the powers,
preferences or special powers of the Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock.

         Section 11. Fractional Shares. Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock may be issued in fractions of a share which shall entitle the holder, in
proportion to such holder's fractional shares, to exercise voting rights,
receive dividends, participate in distributions and to have the benefit of all
other rights of holders of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock.



         SECOND: The Shares have been classified and designated by the Board of
Directors under authority contained in the Charter.

         THIRD: These Articles Supplementary have been approved by the Board of
Directors in the manner and by the vote required by law.

         FOURTH: The undersigned Chairman of the Board of the Corporation
acknowledges these Articles Supplementary to be the corporate act of the
Corporation and, as to all matters or facts required to be verified under oath,
the undersigned Chairman of the Board acknowledges that to the best of his
knowledge, information and belief, these matters and facts are true in all
material respects and that this statement is made under the penalties for
perjury.

         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused these Articles
Supplementary to be executed under seal in its name and on its behalf by its
President and attested to by its Secretary on this ____ of __________, 2002.

ATTEST:                                              Newcastle INVESTMENT CORP.
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                                          By:                             (SEAL)
- ------------------------                     -----------------------------
Randal A. Nardone,                        Wesley K. Edens, Chairman
Secretary                                 of the Board of Directors
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                                                                       Exhibit B

                          [Form of Rights Certificate]

Certificate No. R-                                               ________ Rights

NOT EXERCISABLE AFTER OCTOBER 16, 2012 UNLESS EXTENDED PRIOR THERETO BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OR EARLIER IF REDEEMED BY THE COMPANY. THE RIGHTS ARE SUBJECT
TO REDEMPTION, AT THE OPTION OF THE COMPANY, AT $.01 PER RIGHT ON THE TERMS SET
FORTH IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT. UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES, RIGHTS BENEFICIALLY
OWNED BY AN ACQUIRING PERSON (AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT)
AND ANY SUBSEQUENT HOLDER OF SUCH RIGHTS MAY BECOME NULL AND VOID. [THE RIGHTS
REPRESENTED BY THIS RIGHTS CERTIFICATE ARE OR WERE BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY A
PERSON WHO WAS OR BECAME AN ACQUIRING PERSON OR AN AFFILIATE OR ASSOCIATE OF AN
ACQUIRING PERSON (AS SUCH TERMS ARE DEFINED IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT).
ACCORDINGLY, THIS RIGHTS CERTIFICATE AND THE RIGHTS REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY
BECOME NULL AND VOID IN THE CIRCUMSTANCES SPECIFIED IN SECTION 7(e) OF SUCH
AGREEMENT.](2)

                               Rights Certificate

                           NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP.

         This certifies that           , or registered assigns, is the
registered owner of the number of Rights set forth above, each of which entitles
the owner thereof, subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of the Rights
Agreement, dated as of October 16, 2002 (the "Rights Agreement"), between
Newcastle Invest-

- ----------
(2)      The portion of the legend in brackets shall be inserted only if
         applicable and shall replace the preceding sentence.
ment Corp., a Maryland corporation (the "Company"), and American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company, a New York corporation (the "Rights Agent"), to purchase from
the Company at any time prior to 5:00 P.M. (New York City time) on October 16,
2012 (unless such date is extended prior thereto by the Board of Directors) at
the office or offices of the Rights Agent designated for such purpose, or its
successors as Rights Agent, one one-hundredth of a fully paid, non-assessable
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (the "Preferred Stock")
of the Company, at a purchase price of $70 per one one-hundredth of a share (the
"Purchase Price"), upon presentation and surrender of this Rights Certificate
with the Form of Election to Purchase and related Certificate duly executed. The
number of Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate (and the number of shares
which may be purchased upon exercise thereof) set forth above, and the Purchase
Price per share set forth above, are the number and Purchase Price as of October
16, 2002, based on the Preferred Stock as constituted at such date. The Company
reserves the right to require prior to the occurrence of a Triggering Event (as
such term is defined in the Rights Agreement) that a number of Rights be
exercised so that only whole shares of Preferred Stock will be issued.



         Upon the occurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii) Event (as such term is
defined in the Rights Agreement), if the Rights evidenced by this Rights
Certificate are beneficially owned by (i) an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or
Associate of any such Acquiring Person (as such terms are defined in the Rights
Agreement), (ii) a transferee of any such Acquiring Person, Associate or
Affiliate, or (iii) under certain circumstances specified in the Rights
Agreement, a transferee of a person who, after such transfer, became an
Acquiring Person, or an Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person, such
Rights shall become null and void and no holder hereof shall have any right with
respect to such Rights from and after the occurrence of such Section 11(a)(ii)
Event.

         As provided in the Rights Agreement, the Purchase Price and the number
and kind of shares of Preferred Stock or other securities, which may be
purchased upon the exercise of the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate
are subject to modification and adjustment upon the happening of certain events,
including Triggering Events.
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         This Rights Certificate is subject to all of the terms, provisions and
conditions of the Rights Agreement, which terms, provisions and conditions are
hereby incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof and to which
Rights Agreement reference is hereby made for a full description of the rights,
limitations of rights, obligations, duties and immunities hereunder of the
Rights Agent, the Company and the holders of the Rights Certificates, which
limitations of rights include the temporary suspension of the exercisability of
such Rights under the specific circumstances set forth in the Rights Agreement.
Copies of the Rights Agreement are on file at the above-mentioned office of the
Rights Agent and are also available upon written request to the Rights Agent.

         This Rights Certificate, with or without other Rights Certificates,
upon surrender at the principal office or offices of the Rights Agent designated
for such purpose, may be exchanged for another Rights Certificate or Rights
Certificates of like tenor and date evidencing Rights entitling the holder to
purchase a like aggregate number of one one-hundredths of a share of Preferred
Stock as the Rights evidenced by the Rights Certificate or Rights Certificates
surrendered shall have entitled such holder to purchase. If this Rights
Certificate shall be exercised in part, the holder shall be entitled to receive
upon surrender hereof another Rights Certificate or Rights Certificates for the
number of whole Rights not exercised.

         Subject to the provisions of the Rights Agreement, the Rights evidenced
by this Certificate may be redeemed by the Company at its option at a redemption
price of $.01 per Right at any time prior to the earlier of the close of
business on (i) the tenth Business Day following the Stock Acquisition Date (as
such time period may be extended pursuant to the Rights Agreement), and (ii) the
Final Expiration Date. In addition, under certain circumstances following the
Stock Acquisition Date, the Rights may be exchanged, in whole or in part, for
shares of the Common Stock, or shares of preferred stock of the Company having
essentially the same value or economic rights as such shares. Immediately upon
the action of the Board of Directors of the Company authorizing any such
exchange, and without any further action or any notice, the Rights (other than
Rights which are not subject to such exchange) will terminate and the Rights
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will only enable holders to receive the shares issuable upon such exchange.

         No fractional shares of Preferred Stock will be issued upon the
exercise of any Right or Rights evidenced hereby (other than fractions which are
integral multiples of one one-hundredth of a share of Preferred Stock, which
may, at the election of the Company, be evidenced by depositary receipts), but
in lieu thereof a cash payment will be made, as provided in the Rights
Agreement. The Company, at its election, may require that a number of Rights be
exercised so that only whole shares of Preferred Stock would be issued.

         No holder of this Rights Certificate shall be entitled to vote or
receive dividends or be deemed for any purpose the holder of shares of Preferred
Stock or of any other securities of the Company which may at any time be
issuable on the exercise hereof, nor shall anything contained in the Rights
Agreement or herein be construed to confer upon the holder hereof, as such, any
of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote for the
election of directors or upon any matter submitted to stockholders at any
meeting thereof, or to give consent to or withhold consent from any corporate
action, or, to receive notice of meetings or other actions affecting
stockholders (except as provided in the Rights Agreement), or to receive
dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, until the Right or Rights
evidenced by this Rights Certificate shall have been exercised as provided in
the Rights Agreement.

         This Rights Certificate shall not be valid or obligatory for any
purpose until it shall have been countersigned by the Rights Agent.
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         WITNESS the facsimile signature of the proper officers of the Company
and its corporate seal.

Dated as of _________ __,______.

ATTEST:                                              NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP.

                                                 By
________________________________                 _______________________________
         Secretary                               Title:

Countersigned:

AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY

By_____________________

   Authorized Signature
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                  [Form of Reverse Side of Rights Certificate]

                               FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

                (To be executed by the registered holder if such
               holder desires to transfer the Rights Certificate.)

          FOR VALUE RECEIVED
                            ----------------------------------------------------
hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto
                                        ----------------------------------------
- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                  (Please print name and address of transferee)

- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------
this Rights Certificate, together with all right, title and interest therein,
and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint                    Attorney,
to transfer the within Rights Certificate on the books of the within named
Company, with full power of substitution.

Dated:                    ,
      -------------------   ------

                                                             -------------------
                                                             Signature

Signature Guaranteed:

                                   Certificate

         The undersigned hereby certifies by checking the appropriate boxes
that:

         (1) this Rights Certificate [ ] is [ ] is not being sold, assigned and
transferred by or on behalf of a Person who is or was an Acquiring Person or an
Affiliate or Associate of any such Acquiring Person (as such terms are defined
pursuant to the Rights Agreement);

         (2) after due inquiry and to the best knowledge of the undersigned, it
[ ] did [ ] did not acquire the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate from
any Person who is, was or subsequently became an Acquiring Person or an
Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person.

Dated:                    ,
      -------------------   -----                     --------------------------
                                                      Signature

Signature Guaranteed:
                                     NOTICE



         The signature to the foregoing Assignment and Certificate must
correspond to the name as written upon the face of this Rights Certificate in
every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.
                          FORM OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE

              (To be executed if holder desires to exercise Rights
                     represented by the Rights Certificate.)

To: NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP.:

         The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise            Rights
represented by this Rights Certificate to purchase the shares of Preferred Stock
issuable upon the exercise of the Rights (or such other securities of the
Company or of any other person which may be issuable upon the exercise of the
Rights) and requests that certificates for such shares be issued in the name of
and delivered to:

Please insert social security
or other identifying number

- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                         (Please print name and address)

- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------

         If such number of Rights shall not be all the Rights evidenced by this
Rights Certificate, a new Rights Certificate for the balance of such Rights
shall be registered in the name of and delivered to:

Please insert social security
or other identifying number

- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------
                         (Please print name and address)

- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------

- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Dated:                ,
      ---------------   ------

                                                             -------------------
                                                             Signature

Signature Guaranteed:
                                   Certificate

         The undersigned hereby certifies by checking the appropriate boxes
that:

         (1) the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate [ ] are [ ] are
not being exercised by or on behalf of a Person who is or was an Acquiring
Person or an Affiliate or Associate of any such Acquiring Person (as such terms
are defined pursuant to the Rights Agreement);

         (2) after due inquiry and to the best knowledge of the undersigned, it
[ ] did [ ] did not acquire the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certificate from
any Person who is, was or became an Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or
Associate of an Acquiring Person.

Dated:               ,
      --------------   -----                                   -----------------
                                                               Signature

Signature Guaranteed:
                                     NOTICE

         The signature to the foregoing Election to Purchase and Certificate
must correspond to the name as written upon the face of this Rights Certificate
in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change whatsoever.
                                                                       Exhibit C

                          SUMMARY OF RIGHTS TO PURCHASE
                                 PREFERRED STOCK



         On June 6, 2002, the Board of Directors of Newcastle Investment Corp.
(the "Company") declared a dividend distribution of one Right for each
outstanding share of Company Common Stock to stockholders of record at the close
of business on October 16, 2002 (the "Record Date"). Each Right entitles the
registered holder to purchase from the Company a unit consisting of one
one-hundredth of a share (a "Unit") of Series A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, par value $.01 per share (the "Preferred Stock") at a Purchase Price of
$70 per Unit, subject to adjustment. The description and terms of the Rights are
set forth in a Rights Agreement (the "Rights Agreement") between the Company and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent.

         Initially, the Rights will be attached to all Common Stock certificates
representing shares then outstanding, and no separate Rights Certificates will
be distributed. Subject to certain exceptions specified in the Rights Agreement,
the Rights will separate from the Common Stock and a Distribution Date will
occur upon the earlier of (i) 10 business days following a public announcement
that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons (an "Acquiring
Person") has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of
15% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (the "Stock Acquisition
Date"), other than as a result of repurchases of stock by the Company or certain
inadvertent actions by institutional or certain other stockholders or (ii) 10
business days (or such later date as the Board shall determine) following the
commencement of a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in a person
or group becoming an Acquiring Person. Until the Distribution Date, (i) the
Rights will be evidenced by the Common Stock certificates and will be
transferred with and only with such Common Stock certificates, (ii) new Common
Stock certificates issued after the Record Date will contain a notation
incorporating the Rights Agreement by reference and (iii) the surrender for
transfer of any certificates for Common Stock outstanding will also constitute
the transfer of the Rights associated with the Common Stock represented by such
certificate. Pursuant to the Rights Agreement, the Company reserves
the right to require prior to the occurrence of a Triggering Event (as defined
below) that, upon any exercise of Rights, a number of Rights be exercised so
that only whole shares of Preferred Stock will be issued.

         The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date and will
expire at 5:00 P.M. (New York City time) on October 16, 2012, unless earlier
redeemed or exchanged by the Company as described below.

         As soon as practicable after the Distribution Date, Rights Certificates
will be mailed to holders of record of the Common Stock as of the close of
business on the Distribution Date and, thereafter, the separate Rights
Certificates alone will represent the Rights. Except as otherwise determined by
the Board of Directors, only shares of Common Stock issued prior to the
Distribution Date will be issued with Rights.

         In the event that a Person becomes an Acquiring Person, except pursuant
to an offer for all outstanding shares of Common Stock which the independent
directors determine to be at a price which is fair and not inadequate and to
otherwise be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, after
receiving advice from one or more investment banking firms (a "Qualified
Offer"), each holder of a Right will thereafter have the right to receive, upon
exercise, Common Stock (or, in certain circumstances, cash, property or other
securities of the Company) having a value equal to two times the exercise price
of the Right. The Exercise Price is the Purchase Price times the number of
shares of Common Stock associated with each Right. Notwithstanding any of the
foregoing, following the occurrence of the event set forth in this paragraph,
all Rights that are, or (under certain circumstances specified in the Rights
Agreement) were, beneficially owned by any Acquiring Person will be null and
void. However, Rights are not exercisable following the occurrence of the event
set forth above until such time as the Rights are no longer redeemable by the
Company as set forth below.

         For example, at an exercise price of $70 per Right, each Right not
owned by an Acquiring Person (or by certain related parties) following an event
set forth in the preceding paragraph would entitle its holder to purchase $160
worth of Common Stock (or other consideration, as noted above) for $70. Assuming
that the Common
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Stock had a per share value of $20 at such time, the holder of each valid Right
would be entitled to purchase 8 shares of Common Stock for $70.

         In the event that, at any time following the Stock Acquisition Date,
(i) the Company engages in a merger or other business combination transaction in
which the Company is not the surviving corporation (other than with an entity
which acquired the shares pursuant to a Qualified Offer), (ii) the Company
engages in a merger or other business combination transaction in which the
Company is the surviving corporation and the Common Stock of the Company is
changed or exchanged, or (iii) 50% or more of the Company's assets or cash flow
is sold or transferred, each holder of a Right (except Rights which have



previously been voided as set forth above) shall thereafter have the right to
receive, upon exercise, common stock of the acquiring company having a value
equal to two times the exercise price of the Right. The events set forth in this
paragraph and in the second preceding paragraph are referred to as the
"Triggering Events."

         At any time after a person becomes an Acquiring Person and prior to the
acquisition by such person or group of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
outstanding Common Stock, the Board may exchange the Rights (other than Rights
owned by such person or group which have become void), in whole or in part, at
an exchange ratio of one share of Common Stock, or one one-hundredth of a share
of Preferred Stock (or of a share of a class or series of the Company's
preferred stock having equivalent rights, preferences and privileges), per Right
(subject to adjustment).

         At any time until ten business days following the Stock Acquisition
Date, the Company may redeem the Rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of
$.01 per Right (payable in cash, Common Stock or other consideration deemed
appropriate by the Board of Directors). Immediately upon the action of the Board
of Directors ordering redemption of the Rights, the Rights will terminate and
the only right of the holders of Rights will be to receive the $.01 redemption
price.

         Until a Right is exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no
rights as a stockholder of the Company, including, without limitation, the right
to vote
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or to receive dividends. While the distribution of the Rights will not be
taxable to stockholders or to the Company, stockholders may, depending upon the
circumstances, recognize taxable income in the event that the Rights become
exercisable for Common Stock (or other consideration) of the Company or for
common stock of the acquiring company or in the event of the redemption of the
Rights as set forth above.

         Any of the provisions of the Rights Agreement may be amended by the
Board of Directors of the Company prior to the Distribution Date. After the
Distribution Date, the provisions of the Rights Agreement may be amended by the
Board in order to cure any ambiguity, to make changes which do not adversely
affect the interests of holders of Rights, or to shorten or lengthen any time
period under the Rights Agreement. The foregoing notwithstanding, no amendment
may be made at such time as the Rights are not redeemable.

         A copy of the Rights Agreement is available free of charge from the
Rights Agent. This summary description of the Rights does not purport to be
complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Rights Agreement,
which is incorporated herein by reference.



                                                                    Exhibit 10.1

                        MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORY AGREEMENT

            THIS MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORY AGREEMENT, is made as of June 6, 2002
(the "Agreement") by and among NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP., a Maryland
corporation (the "Company"), and FORTRESS INVESTMENT GROUP LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (together with its permitted assignees, the
"Manager").

                              W I T N E S S E T H :

            WHEREAS, the Company desires to avail itself of the experience,
sources of information, advice, assistance and certain facilities of or
available to the Manager and to have the Manager undertake the duties and
responsibilities hereinafter set forth, on behalf of the Company, as provided in
this Agreement; and

            WHEREAS, the Manager is willing to undertake to render such services
on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

            NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein set
forth, the parties hereto agree as follows:

      SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. The following terms have the meanings assigned
them:

                  (a) "Agreement" means this Management and Advisory Agreement,
as amended from time to time.

                  (b) "Board of Directors" means the Board of Directors of the
Company.

                  (c) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.

                  (d) "Common Share" means a share of capital stock of the
Company now or hereafter authorized as common voting stock of the Company.

                  (e) "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended.
                  (f) "Funds from Operations" is as defined by the National
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts and means net income (computed in
accordance with GAAP) excluding gains (or losses) from debt restructuring and
sales of property, plus depreciation and amortization on real estate assets, and
after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.

                  (g) "Governing Instruments" means, with regard to any entity,
the articles of incorporation and bylaws in the case of a corporation,
certificate of limited partnership (if applicable) and the partnership agreement
in the case of a general or limited partnership or the articles of formation and
the operating agreement in the case of a limited liability company.

                  (h) "Independent Directors" means the members of the Board of
Directors who are not officers or employees of the Manager.

                  (i) "Investments" means the investments of the Company.

                  (j) "Junior Share" means a share of capital stock of the
Company now or hereafter authorized or reclassified that has dividend rights, or
rights upon liquidation, winding up and dissolution, that are inferior or junior
to the REIT Shares.

                  (k) "Preferred Share" means a share of capital stock of the
Company now or hereafter authorized or reclassified that has dividend rights, or
rights upon liquidation, winding up and dissolution, that are superior or prior
to the REIT Shares.

                  (l) "Prospectus" means the prospectus of the Company relating
to the Company's initial public offering of common stock.

                  (m) "Real Estate Securities" and "credit sensitive real
estate-related securities" have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms
in the Prospectus.

                  (n) "REIT Share" means a share of the Company's Common Shares,
par value $.01 per share. Where relevant in this Agreement, "REIT Shares"
includes shares of the Company's Common Shares, par value $.01 per share, issued
upon conversion of Preferred Shares or Junior Shares.
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                  (o) "Subsidiary" means any subsidiary of the Company and any
partnership, the general partner of which is the Company or any subsidiary of



the Company and any limited liability company, the managing member of which is
the Company or any subsidiary of the Company.

      SECTION 2. APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF THE MANAGER.

                  (a) The Company hereby appoints the Manager to manage the
assets of the Company subject to the further terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement and the Manager hereby agrees to use its commercially reasonable
efforts to perform each of the duties set forth herein. The appointment of the
Manager shall be exclusive to the Manager except to the extent that the Manager
otherwise agrees, in its sole and absolute discretion, and except to the extent
that the Manager elects, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, to cause the
duties of the Manager hereunder to be provided by third parties.

                  (b) The Manager, in its capacity as manager of the assets and
the day-to-day operations of the Company, at all times will be subject to the
supervision of the Company's Board of Directors and will have only such
functions and authority as the Company may delegate to it including, without
limitation, the functions and authority identified herein and delegated to the
Manager hereby. The Manager will be responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Company and will perform (or cause to be performed) such services and
activities relating to the assets and operations of the Company as may be
appropriate, including, without limitation:

                              (i) serving as the Company's consultant with
      respect to the periodic review of the investment criteria and parameters
      for Investments, borrowings and operations, any modifications to which
      shall be approved by a majority of the independent members of the Board
      of Directors (such policy guidelines as are in effect on the date hereof,
      as the same may be modified with such approval, the "Guidelines") and
      other policies for approval by the Board of Directors;

                              (ii) investigation, analysis and selection of
      investment opportunities;

                              (iii) with respect to prospective investments by
      the Company and dispositions of Investments, conducting negotiations with
      real estate brokers, sellers and purchasers
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      and their respective agents and representatives, investment bankers and
      owners of privately and publicly held real estate companies;

                              (iv) engaging and supervising, on behalf of the
      Company and at the Company's expense, independent contractors which
      provide real estate brokerage, investment banking and leasing services,
      mortgage brokerage, securities brokerage and other financial services and
      such other services as may be required relating to the Investments;

                              (v) negotiating on behalf of the Company for the
      sale, exchange or other disposition of any Investments;

                              (vi) coordinating and managing operations of any
      joint venture or co-investment interests held by the Company and
      conducting all matters with the joint venture or co-investment partners;

                              (vii) coordinating and supervising, on behalf of
      the Company and at the Company's expense, all property managers, leasing
      agents and developers for the administration, leasing, management and/or
      development of any of the Investments;

                              (viii) providing executive and administrative
      personnel, office space and office services required in rendering
      services to the Company;

                              (ix) administering the day-to-day operations of
      the Company and performing and supervising the performance of such other
      administrative functions necessary in the management of the Company as may
      be agreed upon by the Manager and the Board of Directors, including,
      without limitation, the collection of revenues and the payment of the
      Company's debts and obligations and maintenance of appropriate computer
      services to perform such administrative functions;

                              (x) communicating on behalf of the Company with
      the holders of any equity or debt securities of the Company as required to
      satisfy the reporting and other requirements
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      of any governmental bodies or agencies or trading markets and to maintain
      effective relations with such holders;

                              (xi) counseling the Company in connection with
      policy decisions to be made by the Board of Directors;



                              (xii) evaluating and recommending to the Board of
      Directors modifications to the hedging strategies in effect on the date
      hereof and engaging in hedging activities on behalf of the Company,
      consistent with such strategies, as so modified from time to time, with
      the Company's status as a real estate investment trust, and with the
      Guidelines;

                              (xiii) counseling the Company regarding the
      maintenance of its status as a real estate investment trust and monitoring
      compliance with the various real estate investment trust qualification
      tests and other rules set out in the Code and Treasury Regulations
      thereunder;

                              (xiv) counseling the Company regarding the
      maintenance of its exemption from the Investment Company Act and
      monitoring compliance with the requirements for maintaining an exemption
      from that Act;

                              (xv) assisting the Company in developing
      criteria for asset purchase commitments that are specifically tailored to
      the Company's investment objectives and making available to the Company
      its knowledge and experience with respect to mortgage loans, real
      estate, real estate securities and other real estate-related assets;

                              (xvi) representing and making recommendations to
      the Company in connection with the purchase and finance, and commitment to
      purchase and finance, of mortgage loans (including on a portfolio basis),
      real estate, real estate securities and other real estate-related assets,
      and in connection with the sale and commitment to sell such assets;
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                              (xvii) monitoring the operating performance of
      the Investments and providing periodic reports with respect thereto to the
      Board of Directors, including comparative information with respect to such
      operating and performance and budgeted or projected operating results;

                              (xviii) investing and re-investing any moneys and
      securities of the Company (including investing in short-term Investments
      pending investment in Investments, payment of fees, costs and expenses, or
      payments of dividends or distributions to stockholders and partners of the
      Company) and advising the Company as to its capital structure and capital
      raising;

                              (xix) causing the Company to retain qualified
      accountants and legal counsel, as applicable, to assist in developing
      appropriate accounting procedures, compliance procedures and testing
      systems with respect to financial reporting obligations and compliance
      with the provisions of the Code applicable to real estate investment
      trusts and to conduct quarterly compliance reviews with respect thereto;

                              (xx) causing the Company to qualify to do business
      in all applicable jurisdictions and to obtain and maintain all
      appropriate licenses;

                              (xxi) assisting the Company in complying with
      all regulatory requirements applicable to the Company in respect of its
      business activities, including preparing or causing to be prepared all
      financial statements required under applicable regulations and contractual
      undertakings and all reports and documents required under the Exchange
      Act;

                              (xxii) taking all necessary actions to enable the
      Company to make required tax filings and reports, including soliciting
      stockholders for required information to the extent provided by the
      provisions of the Code applicable to real estate investment trusts;

                              (xxiii) handling and resolving all claims,
      disputes or controversies (including all litigation, arbitration,
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      settlement or other proceedings or negotiations) in which the Company may
      be involved or to which the Company may be subject arising out of the
      Company's day-to-day operations, subject to such limitations or parameters
      as may be imposed from time to time by the Board of Directors;

                              (xxiv) using commercially reasonable efforts to
      cause expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Company to be reasonable or
      customary and within any budgeted parameters or expense guidelines set by
      the Board of Directors from time to time;

                              (xxv) performing such other services as may be
      required from time to time for management and other activities relating to



      the assets of the Company as the Board of Directors shall reasonably
      request or the Manager shall deem appropriate under the particular
      circumstances; and

                              (xxvi) using commercially reasonable efforts to
      cause the Company to comply with all applicable laws.

Without limiting the foregoing, the Manager will perform portfolio management
services (the "Portfolio Management Services") on behalf of the Company with
respect to the Investments. Such services will include, but not be limited to,
consulting with the Company on the purchase and sale of, and other investment
opportunities in connection with, the Company's portfolio of assets; the
collection of information and the submission of reports pertaining to the
Company's assets, interest rates and general economic conditions; periodic
review and evaluation of the performance of the Company's portfolio of assets;
acting as liaison between the Company and banking, mortgage banking, investment
banking and other parties with respect to the purchase, financing and
disposition of assets; and other customary functions related to portfolio
management. Additionally, the Manager will perform monitoring services (the
"Monitoring Services") on behalf of the Company with respect to any loan
servicing activities provided by third parties. Such Monitoring Services will
include, but not be limited to, negotiating servicing agreements; acting as a
liaison between the servicers of the assets and the Company; review of
servicers' delinquency, foreclosure and other reports on assets; supervising
claims filed under any insurance policies; and enforcing the obligation of any
servicer to repurchase assets.

                  (c) The Manager may enter into agreements with other parties,
including its affiliates, for the purpose of engaging one or more property
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and/or asset managers for and on behalf, and at the sole cost and expense, of
the Company to provide property management, asset management, leasing,
development and/or similar services to the Company (including, without
limitation, Portfolio Management Services and Monitoring Services) with respect
to the Investments, pursuant to property management agreement(s) and/or asset
management agreement(s) with terms which are then customary for agreements
regarding the management of assets similar in type, quality and value to the
assets of the Company; provided, that (i) any such agreements entered into with
affiliates of the Manager shall be (A) on terms no more favorable to such
affiliate then would be obtained from a third party on an arms'-length basis and
(B) to the extent the same do not fall within the provisions of the Guidelines,
approved by a majority of the independent members of the Board of Directors,
(ii) with respect to Portfolio Management Services, (A) any such agreements
shall be subject to the Company's prior written approval and (B) the Manager
shall remain liable for the performance of such Portfolio Management Services,
and (iii) with respect to Monitoring Services, any such agreements shall be
subject to the Company's prior written approval.

                  (d) The Manager may retain, for and on behalf, and at the sole
cost and expense, of the Company, such services of accountants, legal counsel,
appraisers, insurers, brokers, transfer agents, registrars, developers,
investment banks, financial advisors, banks and other lenders and others as the
Manager deems necessary or advisable in connection with the management and
operations of the Company. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, the Manager shall have the right to cause any such services to be
rendered by its employees or affiliates. The Company shall pay or reimburse the
Manager or its affiliates performing such services for the cost thereof;
provided, that such costs and reimbursements are no greater than those which
would be payable to outside professionals or consultants engaged to perform such
services pursuant to agreements negotiated on an arm's-length basis; and
provided, further, that such costs shall not be reimbursed in excess of $500,000
per annum.

                  (e) As frequently as the Manager may deem necessary or
advisable, or at the direction of the Board of Directors, the Manager shall, at
the sole cost and expense of the Company, prepare, or cause to be prepared, with
respect to any Investment (i) an appraisal prepared by an independent real
estate appraiser, (ii) reports and information on the Company's operations and
asset performance and (iii) other information reasonably requested by the
Company.

                  (f) The Manager shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, at the
sole cost and expense of the Company, all reports, financial or otherwise, with
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respect to the Company reasonably required by the Board of Directors in order
for the Company to comply with its Governing Instruments or any other materials
required to be filed with any governmental body or agency, and shall prepare, or
cause to be prepared, all materials and data necessary to complete such reports
and other materials including, without limitation, an annual audit of the
Company's books of account by a nationally recognized independent accounting
firm.



                  (g) The Manager shall prepare regular reports for the Board of
Directors to enable the Board of Directors to review the Company's acquisitions,
portfolio composition and characteristics, credit quality, performance and
compliance with the Guidelines and policies approved by the Board of Directors.

                  (h) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to
the contrary, except to the extent that the payment of additional moneys is
proven by the Company to have been required as a direct result of the Manager's
acts or omissions which result in the right of the Company to terminate this
Agreement pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement, the Manager shall not be
required to expend money ("Excess Funds") in excess of that contained in any
applicable Company Account (as herein defined) or otherwise made available by
the Company to be expended by the Manager hereunder. Failure of the Manager to
expend Excess Funds out-of-pocket shall not give rise or be a contributing
factor to the right of the Company under Section 13(a) of this Agreement to
terminate this Agreement due to the Manager's unsatisfactory performance.

                  (i) In performing its duties under this Section 2, the Manager
shall be entitled to rely reasonably on qualified experts hired by the Manager.

      SECTION 3. DEVOTION OF TIME; ADDITIONAL ACTIVITIES.

                  (a) The Manager will provide a dedicated management team,
including a President, a Chief Financial Officer and a Chief Operating Officer
of the Company, to provide the management services to be provided by the Manager
to the Company hereunder, the members of which team shall have as their primary
responsibility the management of the Company and shall devote such of their time
to the management of the Company as the Board of Directors reasonably deems
necessary and appropriate, commensurate with the level of activity of the
Company from time to time.
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                  (b) The Manager hereby agrees that neither the Manager nor any
entity controlled by or under common control with the Manager shall raise or
sponsor any new investment fund, company or vehicle whose investment policies,
guidelines or plan targets as its primary investment category investment in
credit sensitive real estate-related securities; it being understood that no
such fund, company or vehicle shall be prohibited from investing in credit
sensitive real estate-related securities. The Company shall have the benefit of
Manager's best judgement and effort in rendering services and, in furtherance of
the foregoing, the Manager shall not undertake activities which, in its
judgement, will substantially adversely affect the performance of its
obligations under this Agreement.

                  (c) Except to the extent set forth in clauses (a) and (b)
above, nothing herein shall prevent the Manager or any of its affiliates or any
of the officers and employees of any of the foregoing from engaging in other
businesses or from rendering services of any kind to any other person or entity,
including investment in, or advisory service to others investing in, any type of
real estate or real estate-related investment, including investments which meet
the principal investment objectives of the Company.

                  (d) Managers, members, partners, officers, employees and
agents of the Manager or affiliates of the Manager may serve as directors,
officers, employees, agents, nominees or signatories for the Company or any
Subsidiary, to the extent permitted by their Governing Instruments, as from time
to time amended, or by any resolutions duly adopted by the Board of Directors
pursuant to the Company's Governing Instruments. When executing documents or
otherwise acting in such capacities for the Company, such persons shall use
their respective titles in the Company.

      SECTION 4. AGENCY. The Manager shall act as agent of the Company in
making, acquiring, financing and disposing of Investments, disbursing and
collecting the Company's funds, paying the debts and fulfilling the obligations
of the Company, supervising the performance of professionals engaged by or on
behalf of the Company and handling, prosecuting and settling any claims of or
against the Company, the Board of Directors, holders of the Company's securities
or the Company's representatives or properties.

      SECTION 5. BANK ACCOUNTS. At the direction of the Board of Directors, the
Manager may establish and maintain one or more bank accounts in the name of the
Company or any Subsidiary (any such account, a "Company Account"), and may

                                       10
collect and deposit funds into any such Company Account or Company Accounts, and
disburse funds from any such Company Account or Company Accounts, under such
terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may approve; and the Manager
shall from time to time render appropriate accountings of such collections and
payments to the Board of Directors and, upon request, to the auditors of the
Company or any Subsidiary.



      SECTION 6. RECORDS; CONFIDENTIALITY. The Manager shall maintain
appropriate books of accounts and records relating to services performed under
this Agreement, and such books of account and records shall be accessible for
inspection by representatives of the Company or any Subsidiary at any time
during normal business hours upon one (1) business day's advance written notice.
The Manager shall keep confidential any and all information obtained in
connection with the services rendered under this Agreement and shall not
disclose any such information to nonaffiliated third parties except with the
prior written consent of the Board of Directors.

      SECTION 7. OBLIGATIONS OF MANAGER; RESTRICTIONS.

                  (a) The Manager shall require each seller or transferor of
investment assets to the Company to make such representations and warranties
regarding such assets as may, in the judgment of the Manager, be necessary and
appropriate. In addition, the Manager shall take such other action as it deems
necessary or appropriate with regard to the protection of the Investments.

                  (b) The Manager shall refrain from any action that, in its
sole judgment made in good faith, (i) is not in compliance with the Guidelines
or (ii) would adversely affect the status of the Company as a real estate
investment trust under the Code or that, in its sole judgment made in good
faith, would violate any law, rule or regulation of any governmental body or
agency having jurisdiction over the Company or any Subsidiary or that would
otherwise not be permitted by such entity's Governing Instruments. If the
Manager is ordered to take any such action by the Board of Directors, the
Manager shall promptly notify the Board of Directors of the Manager's judgment
that such action would adversely affect such status or violate any such law,
rule or regulation or the Governing Instruments. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the Manager, its directors, officers, stockholders and employees shall not be
liable to the Company or any Subsidiary, the Board of Directors, or the
Company's or any Subsidiary's stockholders or partners for any act or omission
by the Manager, its directors, officers, stockholders or employees except as
provided in Section 11 of this Agreement.
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                  (c) The Manager shall not (i) consummate any transaction which
would involve the acquisition by the Company of property in which the Manager or
any affiliate thereof has an ownership interest or the sale by the Company of
property to the Manager or any affiliate thereof, or (ii) under circumstances
where the Manager is subject to an actual or potential conflict of interest
because it manages both the Company and another Person (not an Affiliate of the
Company) with which the Company has a contractual relationship, take any action
constituting the granting to such Person of a waiver, forebearance or other
relief, or the enforcement against such Person of remedies, under or with
respect to the applicable contract, unless such transaction or action, as the
case may be and in each case, is approved by a majority of the Independent
Directors.

                  (d) The Company shall not invest in joint ventures with the
Manager or any affiliate thereof, unless (i) such Investment is made in
accordance with the Guidelines and (ii) such Investment is approved in advance
by a majority of the Independent Directors.

                  (e) The Board of Directors periodically reviews the Guidelines
and the Company's portfolio of Investments. If a majority of the Independent
Directors determine in their periodic review of transactions that a particular
transaction does not comply with the Guidelines, then a majority of the
Independent Directors will consider what corrective action, if any, can be
taken. If the transaction involved the acquisition of an asset from the Manager
or an affiliate of the Manager that was not approved in advance by a majority of
the Independent Directors, then the Manager may be required to repurchase the
asset at the purchase price (plus closing costs) to the Company.

                  (f) The Manager shall at all times during the term of this
Agreement (including the Initial Term and any renewal term) maintain a tangible
net worth equal to or greater than $1,000,000. Additionally, during such period
the Manager shall maintain "errors and omissions" insurance coverage and other
insurance coverage which is customarily carried by property and asset and
investment managers performing functions similar to those of the Manager under
this Agreement with respect to assets similar to the assets of the Company, in
an amount which is comparable to that customarily maintained by other managers
or servicers of similar assets.

      SECTION 8. COMPENSATION.
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                  (a) During the term of this Agreement, as the same may be
extended from time to time, the Manager will receive an annual management fee
(the "Management Fee") equal to 1.50% of the Company's "Gross Equity." The
Management Fee shall be calculated and paid monthly in arrears based upon the
weighted daily average of the Gross Equity of the Company for such month. The
term "Gross Equity" for any period means (A) the sum of (i) the "Total Equity,"



plus (ii) the value of contributions made by partners other than the Company,
from time to time, to the capital of any Subsidiary (reduced proportionately in
the case of a Subsidiary to the extent that the Company owns, directly or
indirectly, less than 100% of the equity interests in such Subsidiary), less (B)
any capital dividends or capital distributions made by the Company to its
stockholders or, without duplication, by any Subsidiary to its stockholders,
partners or other equity holders. As used herein, the term "Total Equity" shall
mean (i) the equity transferred from Newcastle Investment Holdings Corp. at the
inception of the Company, plus (ii) the amount of accumulated depreciation on
the real estate assets transferred (as directly or indirectly held assets) to
the Company (items (i) and (ii) thus representing the gross equity transferred
to the Company at inception), plus (iii) the total net proceeds to the Company
from any common equity capital heretofore or hereafter raised by the Company or
any Subsidiary of the Company (exclusive, with respect to any Subsidiary, of
capital of such Subsidiary consisting of a capital contribution or other form of
capital investment made by the Company or another Subsidiary of the Company).

                  (b) The Manager shall compute each installment of the
Management Fee within 15 days after the end of the calendar month with respect
to which such installment is payable. A copy of the computations made by the
Manager to calculate such installment shall thereafter, for informational
purposes only and subject in any event to Section 13(a) of this Agreement,
promptly be delivered to the Board of Directors and, upon such delivery, payment
of such installment of the Management Fee shown therein shall be due and payable
no later than the earlier to occur of (i) the date which is 20 days after the
end of the calendar month with respect to which such installment is payable and
(ii) the date which is two (2) business days after the date of delivery to the
Board of Directors of such computations.

                  (c) The Management Fee is subject to adjustment pursuant to
and in accordance with the provisions of Section 13(a) of this Agreement.

                  (d) The Board of Directors may, by written notice to the
Manager delivered ten (10) days prior to the date on which any payment of the
Incentive Compensation is payable, request that the Manager accept all or a
portion of such payment in the form of issued shares of common stock in
Newcastle Invest-
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ment Corp., which notice shall specify the amount of the payment of the
Incentive Compensation, the amount thereof which the Company intends to pay in
cash, if any, and the amount thereof which the Company intends to pay in the
form of such shares of common stock of Newcastle Investment Corp. in the number
of such shares as determined by the Board of Directors. Within five (5) days
following receipt of said notice, the Manager shall notify the Company in
writing, such election to be made by the Manager in its sole discretion, whether
it will accept such portion of such payment in the form of such shares and in
such number of such shares.

                  (e) In addition to the Management Fee otherwise payable
hereunder, the Company shall pay the Manager annual incentive compensation on a
cumulative, but not compounding, basis, in an amount equal to the product of (A)
25% of the dollar amount by which (1)(a) the Funds from Operations (before such
payment) of the Company, per REIT Share (based on the weighted average number of
REIT Shares outstanding), plus (b) gains (or losses) from debt restructuring and
gains (or losses) from sales of property per REIT Share (based on the weighted
average number of REIT Shares outstanding), exceed (2) an amount equal to (a)
the weighted average of the book value per REIT Share of the net assets
transferred to the Company on or prior to July 12, 2002 by Newcastle Investment
Holdings Corp. and the prices per REIT Share at any subsequent offerings by the
Company (adjusted for any prior capital dividends or capital distributions)
multiplied by (b) a simple interest rate of ten percent (10%) per annum
multiplied by (B) the weighted average number of REIT Shares outstanding during
such period. The obligation of the Company to pay the Incentive Compensation
shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, subject
to Section 16(b).

      SECTION 9. EXPENSES OF THE COMPANY. The Company shall pay all of its
expenses and shall reimburse the Manager for documented expenses of the Manager
incurred on its behalf (collectively, the "Expenses"). Expenses include all
costs and expenses which are expressly designated elsewhere in this Agreement as
the Company's, together with the following:

                  (a) expenses in connection with the issuance and transaction
costs incident to the acquisitions, disposition and financing of Investments;

                  (b) travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by
managers, officers, employees and agents of the Manager in connection with the
purchase, financing, refinancing, sale or other disposition of an Investment;
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                  (c) costs of legal, accounting, tax, auditing, administrative
and other similar services rendered for the Company by providers retained by the
Manager or, if provided by the Manager's employees, in amounts which are no
greater than those which would be payable to outside professionals or
consultants engaged to perform such services pursuant to agreements negotiated
on an arm's-length basis;

                  (d) the compensation and expenses of the Independent Directors
and the cost of liability insurance to indemnify the Company's directors and
officers;

                  (e) compensation and expenses of the Company's custodian and
transfer agent, if any;

                  (f) costs associated with the establishment and maintenance of
any credit facilities and other indebtedness of the Company (including
commitment fees, legal fees, closing and other costs) or any securities
offerings of the Company;

                  (g) costs associated with any computer software or hardware
that is used solely for the Company;

                  (h) costs and expenses incurred in contracting with third
parties, including affiliates of the Manager, for the servicing and special
servicing of assets of the Company;

                  (i) all other costs and expenses relating to the Company's
business and investment operations, including, without limitation, the costs and
expenses of acquiring, owning, protecting, maintaining, developing and disposing
of Investments, including appraisal, reporting, audit and legal fees;

                  (j) all insurance costs incurred in connection with the
operation of the Company's business except for the costs attributable to the
insurance that the Manager elects to carry for itself and its employees;

                  (k) expenses relating to any office or office facilities
maintained for the Company or Investments separate from the office or offices of
the Manager;
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                  (l) expenses connected with the payments of interest,
dividends or distributions in cash or any other form made or caused to be made
by the Board of Directors to or on account of the holders of securities of the
Company or its Subsidiaries, including, without limitation, in connection with
any dividend reinvestment plan;

                  (m) expenses connected with communications to holders of
securities of the Company or its Subsidiaries and other bookkeeping and clerical
work necessary in maintaining relations with holders of such securities and in
complying with the continuous reporting and other requirements of governmental
bodies or agencies, including, without limitation, all costs of preparing and
filing required reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the costs
payable by the Company to any transfer agent and registrar in connection with
the listing and/or trading of the Company's stock on any exchange, the fees
payable by the Company to any such exchange in connection with its listing,
costs of preparing, printing and mailing the Company's annual report to its
shareholders and proxy materials with respect to any meeting of the shareholders
of the Company; and

                  (n) all other expenses actually incurred by the Manager which
are reasonably necessary for the performance by the Manager of its duties and
functions under this Agreement.

      Without regard to the amount of compensation received under this Agreement
by the Manager, the Manager shall bear the following expenses: (i) wages and
salaries of the Manager's officers and employees; (ii) rent attributable to the
space occupied by the Manager; and (iii) all other "overhead" expenses of the
Manager.

      SECTION 10. CALCULATIONS OF EXPENSES. The Manager shall prepare a
statement documenting the Expenses of the Company and the Expenses incurred by
the Manager on behalf of the Company during each calendar month, and shall
deliver such statement to the Company within 20 days after the end of each
calendar month. Expenses incurred by the Manager on behalf of the Company shall
be reimbursed monthly to the Manager on the first business day of the month
immediately following the date of delivery of such statement.

      SECTION 11. LIMITS OF MANAGER RESPONSIBILITY; INDEMNIFICATION. (a) The
Manager assumes no responsibility under this Agreement other than to render the
services called for under this Agreement in good faith and shall not be
responsible for any action of the Board of Directors in following or declining
to follow any advice or recommendations of the Manager, including as set forth
in Section 7(b) of
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this Agreement. The Manager, its members, managers, officers and employees will
not be liable to the Company or any Subsidiary, to the Board of Directors, or
the Company's or any Subsidiary's stockholders or partners for any acts or
omissions by the Manager, its members, managers, officers or employees, pursuant
to or in accordance with this Agreement, except by reason of acts constituting
bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or reckless disregard of the
Manager's duties under this Agreement. The Company shall, to the full extent
lawful, reimburse, indemnify and hold the Manager, its members, managers,
officers and employees and each other Person, if any, controlling the Manager
(each, an "Indemnified Party"), harmless of and from any and all expenses,
losses, damages, liabilities, demands, charges and claims of any nature
whatsoever (including attorneys' fees) in respect of or arising from any acts or
omissions of such Indemnified Party made in good faith in the performance of the
Manager's duties under this Agreement and not constituting such Indemnified
Party's bad faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or reckless disregard of
the Manager's duties under this Agreement.

                  (b) The Manager shall, to the full extent lawful, reimburse,
indemnify and hold the Company, its shareholders, directors, officers and
employees and each other Person, if any, controlling the Company (each, a
"Company Indemnified Party"), harmless of and from any and all expenses, losses,
damages, liabilities, demands, charges and claims of any nature whatsoever
(including attorneys' fees) in respect of or arising from the Manager's bad
faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or reckless disregard of its duties
under this Agreement.

      SECTION 12. NO JOINT VENTURE. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to make the Company and the Manager partners or joint venturers or impose any
liability as such on either of them.

      SECTION 13. TERM; TERMINATION.

                  (a) Until this Agreement is terminated in accordance with its
terms, this Agreement shall be in effect until the date that is one (1) years
after the date hereof, and thereafter on each anniversary of such date deemed
renewed automatically each year for an additional one-year period unless (i) a
majority consisting of at least two-thirds of the Independent Directors or a
simple majority of the holders of outstanding shares of Common Stock of the
Company, agree that there has been unsatisfactory performance that is materially
detrimental to the Company or (ii) a simple majority of the Independent
Directors agree that the Management Fee payable to the Manager is unfair;
provided, that the Company shall not have the right to terminate this Agreement
under clause (ii) foregoing if the Manager agrees to
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continue to provide the services under this Agreement at a fee that the
Independent Directors have determined to be fair. If the Company elects not to
renew this Agreement at the expiration of the original term or any such one-year
extension term as set forth above, the Company shall deliver to the Manager
prior written notice (the "Termination Notice") of the Company's intention not
to renew this Agreement based upon the terms set forth in this Section 13(a) of
this Agreement not less than 60 days prior to the expiration of the then
existing term. If the Company so elects not to renew this Agreement, the Company
shall designate the date (the "Effective Termination Date"), not less than 60
days from the date of the notice, on which the Manager shall cease to provide
services under this Agreement and this Agreement shall terminate on such date;
provided, however, that in the event that such Termination Notice is given in
connection with a determination that the compensation payable to the Manager is
unfair, the Manager shall have the right to renegotiate the Management Fee by
delivering to the Company, no fewer than forty-five (45) days prior to the
prospective Effective Termination Date, written notice (any such notice, a
"Notice of Proposal to Negotiate") of its intention to renegotiate its
compensation under this Agreement. Thereupon, the Company and the Manager shall
endeavor to negotiate in good faith the revised compensation payable to the
Manager under this Agreement. Provided that the Manager and the Company agree to
a revised Management Fee (or other compensation structure) within 45 days
following the receipt of the Notice of Proposal to Negotiate, the Termination
Notice shall be deemed of no force and effect and this Agreement shall continue
in full force and effect on the terms stated in this Agreement, except that the
Management Fee shall be the revised Management Fee (or other compensation
structure) then agreed upon by the parties to this Agreement. The Company and
the Manager agree to execute and deliver an amendment to this Agreement setting
forth such revised Management Fee promptly upon reaching an agreement regarding
same. In the event that the Company and the Manager are unable to agree to a
revised Management Fee during such 30 day period, this Agreement shall
terminate, such termination to be effective on the date which is the later of
(A) ten (10) days following the end of such 30 day period and (B) the Effective
Termination Date originally set forth in the Termination Notice.

                  (b) In the event that this Agreement is terminated in
accordance with the provisions of Section 13(a) of this Agreement, the Company



shall pay to the Manager, on the date on which such termination is effective, a
termination fee (the "Termination Fee") equal to the amount of the Management
Fee earned by the Manager during the period consisting of the twelve (12) full,
consecutive calendar months immediately preceding such termination. The
obligation of the Company to pay the Termination Fee shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.
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                  (c) No later than sixty (60) days prior to the anniversary
date of this Agreement of any year during the Term, the Manager may deliver
written notice to the Company informing it of the Manager's intention not to
renew the Term, whereupon the Term of this Agreement shall not be renewed and
extended and this Agreement shall terminate effective on the anniversary of the
Closing Date next following the delivery of such notice.

                  (d) If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section
13, such termination shall be without any further liability or obligation of
either party to the other, except as provided in Section 13(b) and Section 16 of
this Agreement. In addition, Section 11 of this Agreement shall survive
termination of this Agreement.

      SECTION 14. ASSIGNMENT.

                  (a) Except as set forth in Section 14(b) of this Agreement,
this Agreement shall terminate automatically in the event of its assignment, in
whole or in part, by the Manager, unless such assignment is consented to in
writing by the Company with the consent of a majority of the Independent
Directors; provided, however, that no such consent shall be required in the case
of an assignment by the Manager to an entity whose day-to-day business and
operations are managed and supervised by any two (2) or more of the Messrs.
Wesley R. Edens, Robert I. Kauffman, Randal A. Nardone and Erik P. Nygaard
(collectively, the "Principals"), one of whom must be Mr. Edens. Any such
permitted assignment shall bind the assignee under this Agreement in the same
manner as the Manager is bound, and the Manager shall be liable to the Company
for all errors or omissions of the assignee under any such assignment. In
addition, the assignee shall execute and deliver to the Company a counterpart of
this Agreement naming such assignee as Manager. This Agreement shall not be
assigned by the Company without the prior written consent of the Manager, except
in the case of assignment by the Company to another real estate investment trust
or other organization which is a successor (by merger, consolidation or purchase
of assets) to the Company, in which case such successor organization shall be
bound under this Agreement and by the terms of such assignment in the same
manner as the Company is bound under this Agreement.

                  (b) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, the
Manager may subcontract and assign any or all of its responsibilities under
Sections 2(b), 2(c) and 2(d) of this Agreement to any of its affiliates in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement applicable to any such subcontract
or assignment, and the
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Company hereby consents to any such assignment and subcontracting. In addition,
provided that the Manager provides prior written notice to the Company for
informational purposes only, nothing contained in this Agreement shall preclude
any pledge, hypothecation or other transfer of any amounts payable to the
Manager under this Agreement.

      SECTION 15. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE.

                  (a) The Company may terminate this Agreement effective upon
sixty (60) days prior written notice of termination from the Company to the
Manager, without payment of any Termination Fee, if any act of fraud,
misappropriation of funds, or embezzlement against the Company or other willful
violation of this Agreement by the Manager in its corporate capacity (as
distinguished from the acts of any employees of the Manager which are taken
without the complicity of any of the Principals) under this Agreement or in the
event of any gross negligence on the part of the Manager in the performance of
its duties under this Agreement.

                  (b) The Manager may terminate this Agreement effective upon
sixty (60) days prior written notice of termination to the Company in the event
that the Company shall default in the performance or observance of any material
term, condition or covenant contained in this Agreement and such default shall
continue for a period of 30 days after written notice thereof specifying such
default and requesting that the same be remedied in such 30 day period.

      SECTION 16. ACTION UPON TERMINATION. (a) From and after the effective date
of termination of this Agreement, pursuant to Sections 13, 14, or 15 of this
Agreement, the Manager shall not be entitled to compensation for further
services under this Agreement, but shall be paid all compensation accruing to
the date of termination and, if terminated pursuant to Section 13 or Section



15(b), the applicable Termination Fee. Upon such termination, the Manager shall
forthwith:

                  (i) after deducting any accrued compensation and reimbursement
for its expenses to which it is then entitled, pay over to the Company or a
Subsidiary all money collected and held for the account of the Company or a
Subsidiary pursuant to this Agreement;

                  (ii) deliver to the Board of Directors a full accounting,
including a statement showing all payments collected by it and a statement of
all money held by it, covering the period following the date of the last
accounting furnished to the Board of Directors with respect to the Company or a
Subsidiary; and
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                  (iii) deliver to the Board of Directors all property and
documents of the Company or any Subsidiary then in the custody of the Manager.

            (b) In the event that this Agreement is terminated, the Company
shall have the option, to be exercised by written notice to the Manager within
ten (10) days following such termination, to purchase from the Manager the right
of the Manager to receive the Incentive Compensation. In exchange therefor the
Company will be obligated to pay the Manager a cash purchase price (the "Cash
Price") equal to the amount of the Incentive Compensation that would be paid to
the Manager if all of the Company's assets were sold for cash at their then
current fair market value (taking into account, among other things, expected
future performance of the underlying investments, the "Fair Market Value"). In
the event that the Company does not elect to exercise such option to purchase
the Incentive Compensation, the Manager shall have the right to require the
Company to do so at the Cash Price by delivering to the Company written notice
within twenty (20) days following such termination. The Fair Market Value shall
be determined by independent appraisal to be conducted by a nationally
recognized appraisal firm mutually agreed upon by the Company and the Manager.
If the Company and the Manager are unable to agree upon an appraisal firm, then
each of the Company and the Manager shall choose an independent appraisal firm
to conduct an appraisal. In such event, (i) if the appraisals prepared by the
two appraisers so selected are the same or differ by an amount that does not
exceed 20% of the higher of the two appraisals, the Fair Market Value will be
deemed to be the average of such appraisals, and (ii) if the two appraisals
differ by more than 20% of the higher of the two appraisals, the two appraisers
together shall select a third nationally recognized appraisal firm to conduct an
appraisal. If the two appraisers are unable to agree as to the identity of such
third appraiser, either of the Manager and the Company may request that the
American Arbitration Association ("AAA") select the third appraiser, which shall
then be selected by the AAA. The Fair Market Value will then be deemed to be the
amount determined by such third appraiser, but in no event less than the lower
or more than the higher of the first two appraisals made under this Section
16(b).

      SECTION 17. RELEASE OF MONEY OR OTHER PROPERTY UPON WRITTEN REQUEST. The
Manager agrees that any money or other property of the Company or Subsidiary
held by the Manager under this Agreement shall be held by the Manager as
custodian for the Company or Subsidiary, and the Manager's records shall be
appropriately marked clearly to reflect the ownership of such money or other
property by the Company or such Subsidiary. Upon the receipt by the Manager of a
written request signed by a duly authorized officer of the Company requesting
the Manager to release to the Company or any Subsidiary any money or other
property
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then held by the Manager for the account of the Company or any Subsidiary under
this Agreement, the Manager shall release such money or other property to the
Company or any Subsidiary within a reasonable period of time, but in no event
later than sixty (60) days following such request. The Manager shall not be
liable to the Company, any Subsidiary, the Independent Directors, or the
Company's or a Subsidiary's stockholders or partners for any acts performed or
omissions to act by the Company or any Subsidiary in connection with the money
or other property released to the Company or any Subsidiary in accordance with
the first sentence of this Section 17. The Company and any Subsidiary shall
indemnify the Manager and its members, managers, officers and employees against
any and all expenses, losses, damages, liabilities, demands, charges and claims
of any nature whatsoever, which arise in connection with the Manager's release
of such money or other property to the Company or any Subsidiary in accordance
with the terms of this Section 17. Indemnification pursuant to this provision
shall be in addition to any right of the Manager to indemnification under
Section 11 of this Agreement.

       SECTION 18. NOTICES. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this
Agreement, all notices, requests, demands and other communications required or
permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have
been duly given, made and received when delivered against receipt or upon actual
receipt of (i) personal delivery, (ii) delivery by reputable overnight courier,
(iii) delivery by facsimile transmission against answerback, (iv) delivery by



registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested,
addressed as set forth below:

                  (a)   If to the Company:

                              Newcastle Investment Corp.
                              c/o Fortress Investment Group LLC
                              1251 Avenue of the Americas
                              16th Floor
                              New York, New York  10020
                              Attention: Mr. Randal A. Nardone

                  (b)   If to the Manager:

                              Fortress Investment Group, LLC
                              1251 Avenue of the Americas
                              16th Floor
                              New York, New York  10020
                              Attention: Mr. Randal A. Nardone
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      Either party may alter the address to which communications or copies are
to be sent by giving notice of such change of address in conformity with the
provisions of this Section 18 for the giving of notice.

      SECTION 19. BINDING NATURE OF AGREEMENT; SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and permitted
assigns as provided in this Agreement.

      SECTION 20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement
and understanding among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter of
this Agreement, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, inducements and conditions, express or implied, oral or written,
of any nature whatsoever with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.
The express terms of this Agreement control and supersede any course of
performance and/or usage of the trade inconsistent with any of the terms of this
Agreement. This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than by an
agreement in writing.

      SECTION 21. CONTROLLING LAW. This Agreement and all questions relating to
its validity, interpretation, performance and enforcement shall be governed by
and construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State
of New York, notwithstanding any New York or other conflict-of-law provisions to
the contrary.

      SECTION 22. INDULGENCES, NOT WAIVERS. Neither the failure nor any delay on
the part of a party to exercise any right, remedy, power or privilege under this
Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege preclude any other or further
exercise of the same or of any other right, remedy, power or privilege, nor
shall any waiver of any right, remedy, power or privilege with respect to any
occurrence be construed as a waiver of such right, remedy, power or privilege
with respect to any other occurrence. No waiver shall be effective unless it
is in writing and is signed by the party asserted to have granted such waiver.

      SECTION 23. TITLES NOT TO AFFECT INTERPRETATION. The titles of paragraphs
and subparagraphs contained in this Agreement are for convenience only, and they
neither form a part of this Agreement nor are they to be used in the
construction or interpretation of this Agreement.
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      SECTION 24. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in
any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original as
against any party whose signature appears thereon, and all of which shall
together constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement shall become
binding when one or more counterparts of this Agreement, individually or taken
together, shall bear the signatures of all of the parties reflected hereon as
the signatories.

      SECTION 25. PROVISIONS SEPARABLE. The provisions of this Agreement are
independent of and separable from each other, and no provision shall be affected
or rendered invalid or unenforceable by virtue of the fact that for any reason
any other or others of them may be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part.

      SECTION 26. GENDER. Words used herein regardless of the number and gender
specifically used, shall be deemed and construed to include any other number,
singular or plural, and any other gender, masculine, feminine or neuter, as the
context requires.
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      IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of



the date first written above.

                                 COMPANY:

                                 NEWCASTLE INVESTMENT CORP.,
                                 a Maryland corporation

                                 By:  /s/ Randal A. Nardone
                                      --------------------------------
                                      Name:  Randal A. Nardone
                                      Its:   Secretary

                                 MANAGER:

                                 FORTRESS INVESTMENT GROUP
                                 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

                                 By:  /s/ Randal A. Nardone
                                      --------------------------------
                                      Name:  Randal A. Nardone
                                      Its:   Chief Operating Officer
                                              and Secretary



                                  EXHIBIT 99.1

                        CERTIFICATION OF CEO PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Newcastle Investment
Corp. (the "Company") for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"),
Wesley R. Edens, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

      (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

      (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

/S/ Wesley R. Edens
- --------------------------
Wesley R. Edens
Chief Executive Officer
November 22, 2002

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.



                                  EXHIBIT 99.2

                        CERTIFICATION OF CFO PURSUANT TO
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Newcastle Investment
Corp. (the "Company") for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"),
Michael I. Wirth, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

      (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

      (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

/S/ Michael I. Wirth
- ------------------------
Michael I. Wirth
Chief Financial Officer
November 22, 2002

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.


